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To the Sole Shareholder of COMPAÑÍA ESPAÑOLA DE PETRÓLEOS, S.A.U.: 

Opinion 

We have audited the financia! statements of Compañía Española de Petróleos, S.A.U. (the Company), 
which comprise the balance sheet as at December 31, 2018, the income statement, the statement of 
changes in equity, the cash flow statement, and the notes thereto for the year then ended. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financia! statements give a true and fair view, in all material 
respects, of the equity and financia! position of the Company as at December 31, 2018 and of its 
financia! performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the applicable 
regulatory framework for financia! information in Spain (identified in Note 2.1 to the accompanying 
financia! statements) and, specifically, the accounting principies and criteria contained therein. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with prevailing audit regulations in Spain. Our responsibilities 
under those regulations are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the

financia/ statements section of our report. 

We are independent ot the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements, including those 
related to independence, t_t:1at are relevant to our audit of the financia! statements in Spain as 
required by prevailing audit regulations. In this regard, we have not provided non-audit services nor 
have any situations or circumstances arisen that might have compromised our mandatory 
independence in a manner prohibited by the aforementioned requirements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

Domicilio Social: C/Raimurido Fernández 1/il!averde, óS 28003 t,1adrid -Inscrita en e! Registro t.1ercantil de Madrid, tamo 9 364 general. 8 130 de la sección 3 del Libro de Sociedades, folio 68, ho¡a nº 87 690· 1, 
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Most relevant audit issues 

Most relevant audit issues are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were the most 

significant assessed risks of material misstatements in our audit of the financia! statements of the 

current period. These risks were addressed in the context of our audit of the financia! statements as 

a whole, and in forming our audit opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these 

risks. 

lmpairment assessment of investments in Group companies and associates 

Description The Company makes significant estimates when valuing certain economic and 

finance transactions, such as to determine the recoverability from investments in 

Group companies and associates. The main criteria and assumptions used for the 

valuation of these assets are described in note 4.1.g of the accompanying financia! 

statements. 

We have determined these estimates and valuations to be a most relevant audit 

issue since, given the amount of the assets affected, changes in the hypotheses 

could have a material impact on the Entity 's financia! statements. 

Our response Among others, we have performed the following procedures: 

We obtained an understanding and walked through the Company's process to 

assess recoverability of equity investments in Group companies and associates . 

.,. We carried out procedures, including testing for indicators of impairment and 

validating the appropriateness of the leve! at which the testing took place. 

We reviewed, in collaboration with valuation specialists, of the reasonableness 

of the methodology used by management for preparing the discounted cash 

flow statements of each company, focusing particularly on the discount rate 

and long-term growth rate applied. 

Regarding cash flow inputs, we: 

Confirmed that the key inputs shown in the business plan could be 

supported by approved strategic plan and that their reasonability was 

based on current conditions of every company and their projections of 

potential changes. 

We also verified the mathematical integrity of the impairment models, 

performed a sensitivity analysis and other additional procedures to assess the 

completeness of the impairment. 

11 We reviewed the disclosures included in the accompanying financia! statements 

in accordance with current regulation. 

A member firm of Emst & Young Global Umited 
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Description As disclosed in Note 14.6 to the financia! statements, the Company has deferred tax 
assets of EUR 419 million at December 31, 2018. The recoverability assessment is 

based on management's conclusion that it is probable that there will be sufficient 

future taxable profits against which to offset these deferred tax assets, primarily 

comprised of timing differences and credits. 

This area was important to our audit due to the judgments and estimates involved in 

evaluating the extent of positive factors such as reversing deferred tax liabilities 

and expectations of future taxable income and negative factors, such as operating 

losses in current or prior periods. 

Our response Among others, we have performed the following procedures: 

We obtained an understanding and walked through the Company's process to 

assess recoverability of deferred tax assets, including management's estímate 

of Coastal's oil reserves depletion and the future liquidation process of the 

investment in the Coastal Group as disclosed in Note 14.6 

► We evaluated underlying data and assumptions used by management in

determining the expected future tax losses in Coastal group companies and
our tax specialists assisted us in verifying tax regulation and the computations

of deferred tax assets.

► We reviewed of the disclosures included in the accompanying financia!

statements in accordance with current regulation.

Other information: management report 

Other information refers exclusively to the 2018 management report, the preparation of which is the 

responsibility of the Company's directors and is not an integral part of the financia! statements. 

Our audit opinion on the financia! statements does not cover the management report. Our 

responsibility for the consolidated management report, in conformity with prevailing audit 

regulations in Spain, establishes two levels of responsibility: 

a. A specific leve! applicable to non-financia! information, which solely requires that we verify

whether said information has been included in the management report, or if applicable, that

the management report includes the corresponding reference to the separate report on non

financial information as required by regulations, and if not, disclose this fact.

b. A general leve! applicable to the remaining information included in the management report,

which requires us to evaluate and report on the consistency of said information in the
financia! statements, based on knowledge of the Company obtained during the audit,

excluding information not obtained from evidence. Moreover, we are required to evaluate
and report on whether the content and presentation of this part of the management report

are in conformity with applicable regulations. lf, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there are material misstatements, we are required to report that fact.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 
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Based on the work performed, as described in the above, we have verified that the management 

report includes a reference that the information in paragraph a) above is provided in a separate 

report "Annual and Corporate Responsibility Report", to which reference is included in the 

consolidated management report of the Cepsa Group to which the company belongs and that the 

remaining the information contained therein is consistent with that provided in the 2018 financia! 
statements and their content and presentation are in confarmity with applicable regulations. 
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Directors' responslbilities for the financia! statements 

The directors are responsible far the preparation of the accompanying financia! statements so that 

they give a true and fair view of the equity, financia! position and results of the Company, in 

accordance with the regulatory framework far financia! information applicable to the Company in 

Spain, identified in Note 2.1 to the accompanying financia! statements, and far such interna! control 

as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financia! statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financia! statements, the directors are responsible far assessing the Company's 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the 

Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financia! statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financia! statements as a whole 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 

that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 

accordance with prevailing audit regulations in Spain will always detect a material misstatement 

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these financia! statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with prevailing audit regulations in Spain, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

► ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia! statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis far our opinion. The

risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than far one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of interna! control.

• Obtain an understanding of interna! control relevant to the audit in arder to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not far the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's interna! control.

► Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

A member f1rm of Ernst & Young Global Ltmiied 
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► Conclude on the appropriateness of the director's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financia!
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

► Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financia! statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financia! statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the directors of the Company regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
interna! control that we identify during our audit. 
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From the significant risks communicated with the Company's directors, we determine those that were 
of most significance in the audit of the financia! statements of the current period and are therefore 
the most significant assessed risks. 

We describe those risks in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter. 

February 28, 2019 

A member lirm of Ernst & Young Globai Llmited 

ERNST & YOUNG, S.L. 
(Registered in the Official Register of 
Auditors under No. S0530) 

Francisc;.o"Rahola Carral 
(Registered in the Official Register of 
Auditors under No. 20597) 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT OECEMBER 31, 201B 

Non-Qlrrent asseJ:s 

Intan ible a� 
Patents 
Goodwill 
Computer sofware 
Other intangible assets 

---- --------------

--------------- - ---

Notes 

Notes 

Thousands of euros 

2018 2017 

6.107017 4 686.6.07 

59.401. 80,,U.! 
10,498 13,259 

279 319 
48,377 46,733 

247 19,806 

ProJJ.!!!!Y,_ lont and egJ!ÍJ!_ment 
Land and buildings 

Z,094,386 Note-'6'-------�===�-- 2,160,734 

Plant and machinery 
Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction and advance payments 

Investments in Group rompan/es and assoeiates 
Equity instruments 
Loans to third parties 

Non-current financia/ assets 
Equity instruments 
Loans to third parties 
Deriva ti ves 
Other flnancial assets 

Oef'erred tax assets 

Cun-ent asse/5 

Note V 
Note 8.3 
Nota 8.1 

Note8.1 

Note 9 

Nore14 

Inllf!ntorles Note 10 
Goods far resale 
Raw materials 
Finished goods 
By-products, waste and recovered materials 
Advances to suppliers 

Trade and other receivables 
T rade receivables far sales and services 
Trade receivables, group companies 
Other debtors 
Personnel 
Current tax assets 
Public entities 

CuFTents ini,estment In Group Compan!es i1IHI associates 
Loans to third parties 
Derivatives 
Other financia! assets 

Currents ��ts 
Loans to third parties 
Derivatives 
Other financia! assets 

Currentspre� ments and aa:rued lncomo 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash 
Short-term higly-liquid investments 

Note 8.2 
Notes 8.2 and 17 

Note 8.2 
Note 8.2 
Note 14 
Note 14 

Notes 8.2 ami 17 

Note 9 

Note8,Z 

Note 9 

59,509 
1,412,939 

- - 621,9� 

3,521,707 
3,468,507 

53,200 

lZ,643 
1,932 
1,819 

228 
8,664 

418.880 

3,801,698 

308 

.J,697,500 
62,593 

688,932 
935,928 

9,870 
177 

1,844,519 
763,488 
944,699 

6,768 
673 

121,183 
7,708 

129,084 
126,452 

562 
2,070 

-�,052 
10,113 

3,561 
378 

59,696 
1,477,789 

623,249 

1,991,659 
1,962,924 

28,735 

16,630 
1,932 
3,552 
2,873 
8,273 

437.467 

3,942,865 

1,463,626 
20,768 

724,321 
709,509 

8,783 
245 

1,880,300 
888,635 
871,229 
10,543 

670 
102,577 

6,646 

189,376 
148,000 

2,008 
39,368 

24,456 
14,138 
7,641 
2,677 

--- - --'---

895 
_ --- J.1.flL 

115,340 
10,071 

105,269 

382,610 
131,018 
251,592 

�r,�º='1:al=a=cse=ts=-------- ---------------------- -------9.�,�9fJ=8.�,�7.='15�-----�8,629,472 

Toe accompanying Notes 1 to 22 are an integral part of this Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2018 
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Sh�reholdcr's Egult;y and Llabllltlcs 

Shareholder's Equitv 

Sharebofder's E< ui 
Registered share capital 

Share premium 

Reserves 

Legal reserves 

Other reserves 

Retained earnings 

Prior year losses 

Profit (loss) for the year 

Interi m dividend 

A!!i.ustments for changes in va/ue 
Hedging transacüons 

Grants, donations or gifts and feqacies received 
Grants, donations or gifts and legacies received 

Non-current /iabilitíes 

I.Dng-term provisions 
Provisions for long-term employee benefits 

Provisions for environmental actíons 

Provision for restructuring costs 

Other provisions 

Lon -term debts 
Bank borrowings 

Derivatives 

Other financia! liabilities 

Oeferred tax liabillties 

Non-current accrua/s and deferred lncome 

Current liabililíes 

Short-term provisions 

Short-term debts 
Bank borrowings 

Deriva ti ves 

Other financia! liabilities 

J!i!Y..ab/e to ou com ,mies and assoc/ates 

Trade and other 'ab/es 
Suppliers 

Suppliers, group companies and associates 

Other payables 
Personnel 

Current @x liabilities 

Public entities, other 

Advances from customers 

Current accruals and deferred íncome 

Total sharehofder's equfty and 1/abilltfes 

Notes 

Note 11 

Note9 and11 

Note!.!. 

Note12 

Note!.3 

Note 9 

Note1.4 

Note1.2 

Note!.3.2 

Note 9 

Notes 1.3.2 and 17 

Note 13.2 
Notes 13,2 and 17 

Note 13.2 

Note 13.2 

Note 14 

Note 14 

Note 13.2 

The accompanying Notes 1 to 22 are an integral part of this Balance Sheet as at December 31, 2018 
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Thousands of euros 

2018 2017 

3,899,508 3,242,093 

3, 9 3, 1.72 
267,575 267,575 

338,728 338,728 

53,605 53,605 

3,671,402 3,671,402 

(1,259,683) (1,317,436) 

1,010,464 408,276 

(189,978) (189,978) 

{439) 1,728 
(439) 1,728 

7,834 8,193 
7,834 8,193 

3092298 1783 473 

275,212 274,805 
9,841 9,813 

16,111 15,954 

1,833 1,833 
247,427 247,205 

710.935 1 8!l639 
2,680,371 1,342,469 

4,284 10,251 

26,280 36,919 

102393 :tJ.5000 

3,758 4,029 

2 916.909 3603906 

49,835 40,065 

339.398 523812 
201,671 292,742 

910 2,029 

136,817 229,041 

624,637 1,187,791 

900.480 1,850,250 
156,437 193,794 

1,053,427 929,533 

506,144 436,080 
54,392 53,100 

724 1,857 

128,672 234,932 

684 954 

,?,559 1.,988 

9,908,71.5 8,629,472 
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INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 

Notes __ 2018 

Thousands of euros 

2017 

Conttnulng Operatipns 

Revenue Noto.llf .l9459,B9B 1.6,.154453 
Sales 

Services 

19,125,585 

334,313 

15,822,237 
332,216 

Chan es In inventor:les ornntshed oods and work in ™-,ress _________________ _____ u=-"7,¿JJ7�---- .l00,.146 

25,904 Sll!!!!Lwork c,,a itollsed ________________ _ JXote.s .s and 6 23,22.l 

�P�rocv==re="�'="�"=ª"--------------------------- -------'-No=te=-=1.=6 ___ �(=.1�4_,614,0();IJ (.l.l,.192,,.160) 
(361,885) 

(10,816,797) 
(13,480) 

2 

Goods consumed (1,018,201) 

Raw matenals and other materials consumed (13,581,959) 

Subcontracted work (13,783) 

Impairment of merchandlse, raw materials and other supplies (60) 

Other w,ero_rt_r¿9...,f.'-'-""co=mo= _______________________________________ 4.,.,.9.:'94c..c... _ __ ___ -'4"-6.=3=0-
Non-core and other current operating lncome 4,730 3,558 

Income-related grants transferred to profit or loss 264 _ __ l,072 

St8ff=sts ---'-�==HfU ___ _ 1�.g._6.141_ 
Wages, salaries and similar expenses 
Em ployee benefit costs 
Provisions 

Ollle.r o. atin eXB!!_,.,nse=s�---
External Services 
Taxes other than lncome taxes 
Losses, 1mpairment and change ín operating allowances 

Othe, current ope.-atlng expenses 

AmorNzatlon/Depreclatlon 

Alloc.ation or non-linanCl.al l'íxed asset and other rants 

Note 16 

Notes5nnd6 

Note1:J, 

(197,683) (194,183) 

(60,974) 

(303) 

(58,169) 
(262) 

_('Ml,�¿_2§)_ ___ ��3,B65,776 
(1,310,206) (1,196,645) 
(2,678,599) (2,649,579) 

1,066 (2,772) 

(30,687) (16,780) 

(3Q9,980) (293,81.7) 

.1.48 2 676 

Over. rovisions ___________ _,2,.._0B,.,7,_ _____ _,2"Q=.1"'6"'2a-

Im aírment aad alns or losses on dls. sa/s ar non-current assets 
Impairment and other losses 
Gains ar losses on disposals and other 

Other qalns o.r Jo.sses 

o IOSS 

Flnonce rncome 
From investments in equ1ty instrument.5 

Group companies and associates 
Third parties 

From marketable securities and other financial instruments 
Group companies and associates 
Third parties 

Notes 5 and 6 

Note:J,6 

Note 8,3 

Note 17 

Note 17 

.J 6611 

1,668 

(10,363) 

.I 

709,.154 
691,796 

691,601 
195 

17,358 

15,840 
1,518 

(B02)_ 
453 

(1,255) 

(6,953) 

7.15.849 

4.10,639 
388,922 

388,447 

475 
21,717 

20,762 
955 

__.Fl-"n:.::"=ce=-_.,C,,orts=,e._ ______________________________________ Uf!g,233} _____ __,l<.,,6c.;:4,,_,,685) 
On debts to Group companies and associates Note 17 (14,024) (10,866) 

On debts to thírd partíes (80,503) (49,077) 

Interest cost relating to provisions _ _ _ _  Note 12 �� (4,742) 

Clrengo lp l'a_/_r va ue or llnanclal lnst'rumonts 
tléld•for•tradm9 r,n�ncial asset,s/hab,lltles and otMr 

�lrment and �/!JS ar tosses on dls�snls or llnunclal ln.stJ:J.!!.!]_ontse<-----
Im pa1 rment and other losses 
Gains or losses on disposals and other 

Financia/ prolit / (Loss} 

Profit / {Lass} berore tax 
Income tax (expense)/benefit 

Other taxes 

Note 16 y 8.3 

Note 14 

Mote 14 

ProHt / (LO!ffe lbr hp ye,..,f:1,:g_1J2.§P.=n�t�ln�¡,�l.�f'fl��ºcP"=r.l=C/,=on=•,; ______________________ _ 

Prol'it / Loa for tho rtlJrr 

Toe accompanying Notes 1 to 22 are an integral part of this Income Statement as at December 31, 2018 
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5,300 

(!M,506 
(48,506) 

(U:,_¿.5.§l,_ ____ �6�4=4=.l.=B-

..l6,J?_74 -----�=""=º=5,�'Y!l. 
(6,179) (408,747) 

(95) 3,279 

5.90,Z,,.l 

Z,,120,58 

(4,308) 
(105,810) 

(43,602} 

6 7 247 
(149,087) 
(114,884.l. 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 

Statement of re nised lnc:ome and ex ense 

Proñt/Loss per income statement {I) 

Income and expenses recognised directly in equity 

Net (losses)/gains on cash flow hedges 

Grants, donations or gifts and legacies received 

Tax effect 

Total income and expenses recoonised dlrecUv in equity {II) 

Transfer to income statement 

Net (losses)/gains on cash flow hedges 

Grants, donations or gifts and legacies received 

Tax effect 

Total transfers ID income statemmt {DI) 

Total statement of recoqnised income and expense (I + II + JII) 

Notes 

Note 9 

Note 11 

Note 14 

Note 9 

Note 11 

Note 14 

2018 

1,010,464 

(1,681) 

21,668 

(4,997) 

14,990 

(1,208) 

(22,148) 

5,840 

(17,516) 

1,007,938 

The accompanying Notes 1 to 22 are an integral part of this Statement of Changes In Equity as at December 31, 2018 
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Thousands of euros 

2017 

408,276 

732 

19,433 

(5,041) 

15,124 

8,009 

(22,676) 

3,666 

{1J,001) 

412,399 
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STATEMENT OF TOTAL CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

Closinq balance 2016 

Ad[usted balance at 2017 

Total re nised income and ex nse 

Transactions with shareholders or owner. 

Dividends paid (-) 

Segregation (Note 2.5) 

Clasino balance 2017 

Ad[usted balance at 2018 

Total reco nised income and ex nse 

Transactions with shareholders or owner. 

Dividends Qaid ( -) 

Other chant1es in e u 

Closino balance 2018 

Share Share 
Ca ltal Premium 

267,575 338,728 

267,575 338,728 

267,575 338,728 

267,575 338,728 

267,575 338,728 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

Prloryear 
Reserves losses 

3,846,885 (1,446,570} 

3,846,885 (1,446,570) 

221878 

(121,878) 

129-134 

3,725,007 (1,317,436} 

3,725,007 (1,317,436} 

57.753 

3,725,007 (1,259,683} 

Toe accompanying Notes 1 to 22 are an integral part of this Statement of Changes in Equity as at December 31, 2018 
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Thousands of euros 

Grants, 
Donations or 

Gifts ancl 
Profit / Loss (Interim Cash flow Bequests 
for the Year Dlvldend hed e Recerved Total 

460,927 (189,978} (4,827} 10,625 3,283,365 

460,927 (189,978l_ (4,827} 10,625 3,283,365 

408.276 6.555 '2,432 412399 

"331793 453.671 

(331,793) (331,793) 

(121,878) 

229-134 

408,276 (189,978) 1,728 8,193 3,242,093 

408,276 (189,978} J,728 8,193 3,242
c
093 

1010464 2167 "359 1
L.
00�93B 

"350523 "350523 

(350,523) (350,523) 

"57.753 

1,010,464 (189,978) (439} 7,834 3,899,508 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 

Cash flow from operating activities 

Profit/Loss for the rear befare tax 

Adiustment to result 
Depredation and amortization charge 

Impairment losses 

Changes in provisions 

Recognition of grants in P&L 

Gains/Losses on derecognitions and disposals of non-current assets 

Gains/Losses on derecognitions and disposals of financia! instruments 

Finance income 

Fi nance costs 

Exchange differences 

Changes in fair value of financia! instruments 

Other income and expenses 

Operatínq worklng capital 
Inventaries 

Trade and other receivables 

Other current assets 

Trade and other payables 

Other current liabilities 

Other cash nows from o ratin activities 
Interest paid 

Dividends received 

Interest received 

Income tax paid 

Other payments (proceeds) 

Cash now from lnvcsting actlvltles 

Parment for lnvestment 
Group companies and associates 

Intangible assets 

Property, plant and equipment 

Other financia! assets 

Proceeds from disposals 
Group companies and associates 

Property, plant and equipment 

Other financia! assets 

Cash now írom finandnq actMl:ics (Ill) 

Proceeds and ment relatin to e ui instruments 
Grants, donations or gifts and legacies received 

Proceeds and ments on lssue 
Issued bank borrowing 

Issued Other debts 

Repaid of bank borrowing 

Repaid of other debts 

Divldends In retum on other equ!ty fnstruments pafd 
Dividends 

Effect on exchange rate changes {IV) 

Net inaease/deaease in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 

Notes 

Note 14.4 

Notes 5 and 6 

Note 11.6 

Note 15 

Note 10 

The accompanying Notes 1 to 22 are an integral part of thís Statement of Cash Flows as at December 31, 2018 
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Thousands of euros 

2018 2017 

414,062 940,229 

1,120,582 672,247 

{61,478) 359,879 
309,980 293,817 

30,805 408,403 

29,955 25,262 

(22,148) (22,676) 

(1,668) 1,255 

(3,279) 

(709,154) (410,639) 

94,527 59,943 

213,666 (40,835) 

(5,300) 48,506 

(2,141) 122 

(1,2.70,054) (275,233) 
(260,888) (171,912) 

171,305 (270,603) 

(343,065) 143,272 

(185,091) 97,539 

(652,315) (73,529) 

625.012 1.83,336 
(91,867) (61,234) 

729,214 327,462 

5,239 24,257 

(27,510) (115,598) 

9,936 8,449 

1528.964 '406.933 

(1,787,900) (755,836) 
(1,461,105) (445,745) 

(9,731) (13,368) 

(316,385) (296,163) 

(679) (560) 

258,936 348,903 
254,944 348,361 

3,975 512 

17 30 

848,037 (J,284,216) 

19 1 
19 1 

1198.541 952424 
1,294,062 31,247 

2,654 2,599 

(83,928) (976,251) 

(14,247) (10,019) 

(350,523) (331,793) 
(350,523) (331,793) 

(405) 1,060 

(267,270) (749,860) 

382,610 1,132,470 

115,340 382,610 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 
December 31, 2018 

Compañía Española de Petróleos, S.A.U. (CEPSA) 

1. Company activity

a) Corporate information

Compañía Española de Petróleos, S.A.U. ("CEPSA"), a company existing under the laws of Spain, with its 
registered office at Torre Cepsa, Paseo de la Castellana 259-A, Madrid, was incorporated for an unlimited 
period on September 26, 1929, and is entered in the Madrid Mercantile Register, Volume 588 of the 
Companies book, sheet 35, page M-12,689. Its Tax ID code is A-28003119. Cepsa is a single shareholder 
company whose only shareholder and direct owner of all the shares is Cepsa Holding LLC. The ultimate 
parent company of Cepsa Holding LLC, and which exercíses effective control over it, is Mubadala 
Development Company PJSC ("MIC"). 

The Company engages in all kinds of extraction, industrial, commercial, corporate and promotion activities 
connected mainly with oil and gas, in both solid and liquid form in Spain and abroad; the production of oil, 
petrochemical chemical and assocíated energy products, polymers, fibers and other derivative materials, 
compound or synthetic; all types of mineral or gas deposits, underground structures, rock, mineral, and 
geological resources, and on a complementary basis, any other raw materials, substances, products, 
energy, or waste which are related to, connected with or a substitute for or derive from or complement the 
above. The Company also carries out the above activities through the incorporation of or ownership of 
shares in other companies with similar or identical corporate purposes. 

The Company is the parent of a group of subsidiaries and is required under current legislation to prepare 
consolidated financia! statements separately. The consolidated financia! statements of the CEPSA Group for 
2017 were formally drafted by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on March 15, 2018. The 
consolidated financia! statements for 2017 were approved by resolution of the Sole Shareholder at CEPSA's 
Annual General Meeting held on March 21, 2018 and were filed at the Madrid Mercantile Registry. 
Additionally, the company-only and consolidated 2018 annual accounts will be formally prepared on 
February 28, 2019 and it is expected they will be approved without significant changes by the sole 
shareholder. 

b) Regulatory framework

The activities carried out by the Company, in Spain or abroad, are subject to numerous legal, regulatory, 
safety and environmental protection regulations. Any changes that may arise in applicable legislation can 
affect the framework in which these activities are carried out and therefore the results generated by the 
Company's operations. 

The hydrocarbons sector, in which CEPSA operates, is basically regulated by Law 34/1998, of October 7, 
on the Oíl and Gas Sector, amended by Law 11/2013 of July 26 and Law 8/2015 of May 21, which regulates 
certain measures to support entrepreneurship and stimulate growth and tax and non-tax measures related 
to exploration, research and development of hydrocarbons. 

Law 8/2015 introduced significant changes in the different activities performed by operators in the oíl and 
gas industry, including drilling, refining and commercialization of petral products. 

The changes made by Law 8/2015 in the fuels and combustibles industry set certain limits on the growth 
of wholesale operators depending on their market share and established the possibility of retail operators 
supplying each other. 

As far as refining activities are concerned, there are numerous industrial safety and environmental 
protection regulations, particularly Royal Legislative Decree 1/2016, dated December 16, which published 
the revised text of the law on the integrated prevention and control of pollution. 
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CEPSA also operates in the electricity sector, regulated by the Law 24/2013 of December 26. During 2014, 
a new remuneration system far renewable energies, including electricity cogeneration, was approved, 
resulting in a majar decrease in the profitability of this type of facility. The approval of Royal Decree 
900/2015 of October 2015 regulating administrative, technical and economic conditions far the different 
types of electrical energy supply with self-consumption and production with self-consumption, is also 
important. 

By means of Law 18/2014 of October 15, a National Energy Efficiency Fund was created in Spain. Wholesale 
operators of oil products or liquefied petroleum gases and natural gas and electricity supply companies 
must contribute to this Fund on a year basis affecting profits in these business areas. 

2. Basis of presentation of the financial statements

2.1 Regulatory financia! reporting framework applicable to the Company 

The financia! statements were prepared by the Directors in accordance with the regulatory financia! 
reporting framework applicable to the Company, which consists of: 

a) The Spanish Commercial Code and all other Spanish corporate law.

b) The Spanish National Chart of Accounts approved by Royal Decree 1514/2007, modified by Royal Decree
1159/2010 and Royal Decree 602/2016 and its sector-specific adaptations.

c) The mandatory rules approved by the Spanish Accounting and Audit Institute (ICAC) in arder to
implement the Spanish Chart of Accounts and the relevant secondary legislation.

d) AII other applicable Spanish accounting legislation.

2.2 Fair presentation 

The accompanying financia! statements, prepared from the Company's accounting records, are presented 
in accordance with the regulatory financia! reporting framework applicable to the Company and present 
fairly, in all material respects, its financia! position, the results of its operations and cash flows far the 
related year. These financia! statements are presented in thousands of euros unless otherwise stated. 

These financia! statements, drafted by the Company's Directors, will be submitted far approval by the Sale 
Shareholder, and it is expected that they will be approved without any changes. The financia! statements 
far 2017 were approved in a resolution adopted by the sale shareholder at the Annual General Meeting 
held on March 21, 2018. 

2.3 Non-mandatory accounting principies applied 

No non-mandatory accounting principies were applied. In addition, the Directors formally drafted these 
financia! statements taking into account ali the obligatory accounting principies and standards with a 
significant effect thereon. AII obligatory accounting principies were applied. 

2.4 Critica! measurement issues and estimation of uncertainty 

In preparing the accompanying financia! statements estimates were made by the Company's Directors in 
arder to measure certain assets, liabilities, income, expenses and commitments reported herein. These 
estimates relate basically to the fallowing: 

• Determining the recoverable amount in arder to calculate impairment losses on certain assets:
Intangible Assets, Property, Plant and Equipment and Investments in associates and joint ventures.
(See Note 4.1.g)

• The process of estimating reserves <1l, is a key part of the Company 's decision making-process.
The volume of oil and gas reserves, proved and probable (2P) is considered to calculate
amortization charges applying the unit of production method. Likewise reserves (2P), together with
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contingent resources, are considered in the evaluation of the recoverable amounts of the 
investments in Exploration and Production assets. Toe Cepsa Reserves and Contingent Resources 
Evaluation Procedure fallows the guidelines established by the SPE, AAPG, WPC, SPEE and SEG in 
March 2007, revised in November 2011 and known by the abbreviated term "SPE-PRMS" 
(Petroleum Resources Management System), which is determined taking into account estimates of 
the oíl and natural gas existing in the place, recovery factors and hypotheses of price farecasts, 
estimated operating costs and investments, and other factors. 

cii Every two years the negative volumes are audited by independent engineering firms. Toe estimation of reserves made 
by these firms in 2018 did not generate significant differences with those registered in CEPSA.

• The useful life of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. (Notes 4.1 and 4.2)

• When the fair value of financia! assets and financia! liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk (own and
counterparty) and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported
fair value of financia! instruments. (Notes 4.5 and 21)

• The inventaries valuation. (See Note 4.6).

• The assessment of potential effects of legal claims and contingencies, far which the Company relies
on the opinion of its legal counsel, that are based on their best professional judgment and take
into account the present situation of the proceedings and the accumulated legal experience

regarding the different issues. Since the results of the claims and contingencies may ultimately be
determined by the courts, they may be different from those that are initially expected.

• Likewise, regarding tax and legal provisions, the assessment of possible claims and contingencies
results is based on the opinions of the Company's legal and tax advisors and takes into account
the situation at the time of legal proceedings as well as their accumulated experience.

• Additionally, Cepsa makes judgments and estimates far the recording of costs and the recognition
of provisions far environmental restoration and remediation costs which are based on current
information regarding costs and expected ptans for remediation. Most of the restoration events are
many years in the future and the precise requirements that will have to be met when the event
occurs are uncertain. Decommissioning technologies and costs are constantly changing, as well as
political, environmental, safety and public expectations. (See note 4.10)

• The calculation of income tax and the recognition of deferred tax assets. They are recognized to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available. Significant management judgment
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based u pon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, together with future tax planning strategies as
well as the offset period (See Note 4.8).

Although these estimates were made on the basis of the best information available at 2018 year-end, 
events that take place in the future might make it necessary to change these estimates (upwards or 
downwards) in coming years. Changes in accounting estimates would be applied prospectively. 

2.5 Comparability 

When comparing the figures far 2018 with those far 2017, it is necessary to take into account the non
monetary contribution of the operating branch of the Timimoun field to the subsidiary Cepsa Algerie S.L. 
as a disbursement from the capital increase approved by its shareholders on March 15, 2018. In accordance 
with Spanish GAAP measurement and recognition criteria, the contributed portian of activity is measured 
at its overall carrying amount, which is 133,033 thousand euros, which mainly corresponds to the carrying 
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amount of the property, plant, and equipment from the spin-off, and the short-term debt with the field 
shareholders (157,493 and 25,580 thousand euros, respectively) (Notes 5, 6 and 13.2). 

The capital increase by mea ns of a non-monetary contribution was duly registered in the Mercantile Registry 
on August 16, 2018. In compliance with the provisions of article 89 of Law 27/2014, dated November 27 
on corporate income tax, the transaction availed itself of the special tax regime described in Chapter VII of 
Title VII therein. 

2.6 Grouping of items 

Far clarity, certain items presented in the balance sheet and income statement are grouped together; 
nevertheless, in cases where the amounts involved are material, a breakdown is included in the relevant 
notes to the financia! statements. 

2. 7 Correction of errors

No material errors were detected in the preparation of the accompanying annual accounts and which might 
lead to the restatement of the amounts included in the 2018 annual accounts. 

3. Distribution of results

The proposed distribution of profits far the year ended December 31, 2018 that the Board of Directors will 
submit to the Sale Shareholder far approval, is as follows: 

Outcomes implementataion 

Interim dividend 

Final dividend 

To offset prior year losses 

Total app/ied 

Thousands of euros 

2018 

189,978 

176,599 

643,887 

1,010,464 

The dividends figure includes 189,978 thousand euros already distributed as interim dividends in 2018, 
recorded under the "Interim dividend" caption in Equity of the balance sheet. This was approved by the 
Board of Directors' meeting held on September 17, 2018 and the payment was made on October 16, 2018. 

The provisional accounting statement prepared according to legal requirements that reflected sufficient 
liquidity far the distribution is the following: 
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ASSETS 

Non-wrrent assets 

Intangible assets 

Property, plant and equipment 

Investments in Group companies and associates 

Non-current financia! assets 

Deferred tax assets 

Current assets 

Assets held for sale 

Inventories 

Trade and other receivables 

Current investments in Group companies and assodates 

Current finandal assets 

Current prepayments and accrued income 

Cash and cash eguivalents 

Total assets 

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY ANO LIABILITIES 

Shareho/ders' equity 

5hareholders' e uít 

Capital and reserves 

Prior year losses 

Profit for the year 2017 

Ad"ustments for value chan es 

Grants. donations or uests received 

Non-wrrent 1/abllltlcs 

Long-term provisions 

Bank borrowings 

Deferred tax liabilities 

Non-current accruals and deferred income 

Current liabilities 

Short-term provisions 

Bank borrowings 

Payable to Group companies and associates 

Trade and other payables 

Current accruals and deferred income 

Total shareholders' equlty and llabilities 

Compañía Española de Petróleos, S.A.U. -14-

Thousands of euros 

Unauditied position as 

of 06.30.2018 

6,231407 

75,772 

2,174,646 

3,519,752 

16,026 

445 211 

4339352 

228 

1,631,374 

1,950,331 

134,765 

15,684 

7,077 

599,893 

10,570,759 

Thousands of euros 

Unaudltied position as 

of 06.30.2018 

3,258,615 

3.241623 

4,331,310 

(1,259,683) 

169,996 

1656 

15,336 

3,531,544 

272,624 

3,144,197 

110,830 

3 893 

3780600 

34,822 

254,877 

1,558,110 

1,930,990 

1 801 

10,570,759 
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4. Accountinq policies and measurement bases

The principal accounting policies and measurement bases used by CEPSA in the preparation of its financia! 
statements far 2018, prepared in accordance with the Spanish National Chart of Accounts, are the fallowing: 

4.1 Intangible assets 

As a general rule, intangible assets are initially measured at acquisition or production cost. They are 
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated amortization and any impairment losses. These assets 
are amortized over their years of useful lives. (Notes 4.1.g y 5) 

a) �loration and production assets

Investments in exploration and production are recognized based on the "successful efforts" criteria. The 
accounting treatment far the varying incurred expenses fallows: 

Exploration and evaluation costs 

Exploration costs, not including well drilling, are charged to profít and loss as incurred, via capitalization 
and automatic amortization in the same month. Acquired exploration rights are capitalized, with periodic 
viability tests performed on the CGUs, and depending on the outcome, and where applicable, the 
corresponding impairment tests are performed (Note 4.lg) and amortized over the useful lives of the 
contract maximum. If proven oil reserves are faund, their net value is transferred to "Investments" in areas 
with proven reserves once the development is completed production begins and amortized based on the 
production unit method. 

Well drillíng costs (exploratory drills) are capitalized temporarily until analyses deem that proven reserves 
have been faund, in which case they are transferred to the "Investments in areas with proven reserves" 
heading. Conversely, if the outcome is negative, they are charged to profit and loss. The event which 
determines the change of an intangible asset into a PP&E asset occurs when governmental authorizatíon 
is obtained far the commercial exploitation of a field during a specific period. 

b) Research and Development expenses

The Company recognizes research expenses in which it incurs during the year to the income statement. 

e) Patents, licenses. trademarks and similar

This account reflects amounts paid to buy or use property or the right to use far its different manifestations, 
including expenses incurred to register that of the Company. These amounts are amortized at the same 
rates as those used to depreciate the industrial units to which they relate (between 7 and 45 years). 

CEPSA owns the registered trademarks and industrial designs with which it performs a portian of its trade 
transactions which until the previous year were regarded as having an indefinite useful life. These assets 
are amortized over the period over which they are expected to generate economic benefits far the company. 
Far these purposes, when the useful life cannot be reliably estimated, they must be amortized over a period 
of 10 years - without prejudice to any specific rules that may exist - which is the period taken by the 
Company. 

d) Goodwill

Goodwill is recognized when triggered by an acquisition far consideration, in the context of a business 
combination. Goodwill is allocated to each of the cash-generating units expected to benefit from the 
synergies of the combination, and is depreciated in ten years, unless evidence to the contrary exists. These 
cash-generating units are tested far impairment at least annually, according to the methodology described 
below, with any impairment recognized. 

Goodwill impairment losses cannot be reversed in future periods. 

e) Computer software

CEPSA recognizes computer software at the amount of costs incurred to acquire and develop them; these 
costs include website development costs. Computer software maintenance costs are recognized with a 
charge to the income statement for the year in which they are incurred. 
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Computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over a maximum of five years. 

f) Other intangible assets

Surface rights are amortized in accordance with the agreements executed for this type of operations 
(between 7 and 45 years). 

Additionally, this caption includes licenses, management and flag station contracts, with a useful life of less 
than 50 years. 

Other intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over a maximum of five years. 

g) Impairment of goodwill. intangible assets, property, _plant and equipment and investm roup 
companies and associate� 

At the reporting date or whenever there are circumstances requiring it, CEPSA assesses whether there is 
any indication of impairment of goodwill, intangible assets, property, plant and equipment and investments 
in group companies and associates and, where appropriate, estimates the recovera ble amount thereof. 

A cash-generating unit (CGU) is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that 
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets. 

For these purposes, assets are grouped in cash generating units (CGU) when, individually taken, they do 
not generate cash flows separately from others generated from other assets of the CGU. The grouping of 
the assets in different CGUs implies the making of professional judgments and the consideration, among 
other parameters, of the business segments and the geographic areas in which the company operates. 

• Particularly, provided the special characteristics of Exploration and Production segment assets,
each CGU corresponds to each of the different contractual areas commonly known as "blocks";
as an exception, in cases where the cash flows generated by several blocks are interdependent
from each other, these blocks are grouped into a single CGU, as is the case of the Algerian CGU.

• Refining and Marketing: it is considered a single CGU due to the interrelation of flows that exists
throughout its production process. Within the refining segment, only in the area of gas and
electricity each plant corresponds to a CGU since they have an individual remuneration by the
Spanish Government.

In order to perform the aforementioned impairment test, the carrying amount of the cash generating unit 
(CGU) will be calculated in the following way: 

a) The carrying amount of only those assets that can be attributed directly, or allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis, to the CGU and will generate the future cash inflows used in determining the CGU's
value in use;

b) It will not include the carrying amount of any recognized liability, unless the recoverable amount of the
CGU cannot be determined without consideration of this liability.

The recoverable amount of each CGU is determined as the higher of fair value less costs to sell, based on 
the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted, using assumptions 
which are consistent with the CEPSA Group's strategic plan 2019-2023, approved by the Board of Directors. 

These projections cover the following five years, and include a residual value appropriate to each business 
for which a constant expected growth rate is used that ranges from 0% to 2.5% based on the business 
under analysis and expected long-term CPI. For the purpose of calculating residual values, the only 
investment considered is maintenance capital expenditure and any investment needed for renovation 
purposes in order to maintain the asset's or CGU's productive capacity. 

Valuations of Exploration & Production assets (Upstream) use cash flow projections for a period that covers 
the economically productive lives of the oil and gas fields, limited by the contractual expiration of the 
operating permits, agreements or contracts. The general principies applied to determine the variables that 
most affect the cash flows of this business line are described below: 
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a) Oil and gas sales prices

Estimated crude oil prices used to project cash flows of each of the assets are similar to those used in the 
CEPSA 2019-2023 strategic plan. These estimates are based on estimates made by various international 
organizations. The quoted Brent crude oil price is used as the basis, and the remaining international prices 
are calculated with the use of differentials. In particular, prices considered are 65 USD per barre! for 2019, 
67 USD per barre! for 2020, 68 USD per barre! for 2021, 70 USD per barre! for 2022 and 71.5 USD per 
barre! for 2023. Later on prices are increased by a CPI of 2%. 

b) Reserves and production schedules

For each asset a long-term development plan is established with an annual production schedule. This 
production schedule takes probable reserves into account as well as the best estimate for contingent 
resources, weighted by associated risk factors. The estimates for reserves and resources are made in 
accordance with the guidelines established by the Petroleum Resource Management System of the Society 
of Petroleum Engineers (PRMS-SPE). These profiles are revised every two years by an independent expert. 

c) Operating expenses and capital expenditure

For E&P assets the development plan established far each asset takes into account the investments 
necessary for production of the estimated reserves and resources. Both investments and operating 
expenses are estimated according to the actual procurement contracts and our best estimation using, when 
is applicable, an annual inflation rate, depending on the country where the asset is located. 

For the remaining CGUs assets in which there are signs of impairment, the valuation takes into account 
cash flow projections covering a five-year period plus terminal value, with an annual increase of between 
1.9%-2.5%. 

Far the purpose of calculating the present value of these cash flows, a discount rate is used that reflects 
the weighted average cost of capital employed, adjusted according to the country and business risk 
corresponding to each asset or CGU. Below are the discount rates (WACCs) used for each CGU in 2018 and 
2017: 

Business Unit 2018 2017 

Exploration and Production 7.5%-10% 8.0% - 11.0% 
Refining and Marketing 7.0% -8.0% 7.0% -8.0% 
Petrochemicals 7.0%-10% 7.5% -11.0% 
Gas and Power 6.0% - 6.5% 6.0%-6.5% 

The parameters taken into account for the composition of the aforementioned discount rates have been: 

Risk-free rate: normalized bond yield C1l 

Equity risk-premium: 5.0% 

Country risk-premium of the location of the asset 

Beta: based on comparable companies for each business segment 

After taxes Cost of Debt plus Spread based on comparable Oil and Gas integrated companies 

Net equity - Debt ratio: sector average 

(ll Risk-free rate in USD: US lOY average real rate + long term inflation forecasts. 
Risk-free rate in EUR: US lOY real rate by averaging + long-term inflation forecasts + Relative Inflation spread lOY. 

These WACC have been calculated considering the local currencies of the cash generating units, except 
Exploration and Production and Petrochemical Indonesia, which are expressed in USO. 

The discount rates (WACCs) used in the countries whose assets or CGUs had signs of impairment in 2018 
and 2017 are as follows: 
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WACCs by asset/CGU_ 2018 2017 

Exploration and Production 

Colombia 8.5% 7.8%-9.0% 

Colombia 8.0% 7.8%-9.0% 

Thailand 7.5% 9.0% 

Malaysia 9.0% 9.5% 

Algeria 10.0% 11.0% 

Abu Dhabi 7.5% 8.0% 

According to the above assumptions, the impairment (reversa!) has been recorded. See Notes 5, 6, 8.3 and 
16.6. 

In the case of those assets or CGUs for which CEPSA performs an impairment test as a result of identifying 
indications of impairment, the Company analyzes whether reasonably foreseeable changes in the key 
assumptions used to determine their recoverable amounts would have a material impact on the financia! 
statements. In the case of those assets or CGUs for which the recoverable amount exceeds the unit's 
carrying amount by a significant margin, it is assumed that these "reasonably foreseeable changes" would 
not have a material impact. In the case of those assets or CGUs for which the margin is below this threshold, 
CEPSA performs sensitivity analyses in arder to quantify changes in the recoverable amounts of these 
assets or CGUs as a result of changes in key assumptions deemed reasonably foreseeable Specifically, the 
most relevant sensitivity analyses performed, for all the CGUs, have been the following: 

Sen!itivity amilysis 

Increases in WACC 

Decrease in the oil price 

Change in $/€ exchange rate 

Variatlon 

50 p.b. 

-10 $/bbl 

o.os€/$ 

Amount in 
millions of 

euros 

36 

222 

3 

Based on the price curves posted by reputed analysts c1i, we consider reasonable the estimates made to 
calculate the recoverable value in the impairment tests performed. 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying 
amount, its value is reduced to its recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognized as an expense, 
under "Impairment and gains or losses on disposals of non-current assets" in the accompanying income 
statement. 

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating unit), 
is increased up to the revised estímate of its recoverable amount, except for goodwill, recognizing an 
income item, in such a way that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined if no impairment loss had been recognized for the asset (cash-generating 
unit) in prior years. 

(ll Ana/ysts cansidered are Waad Mackenzie, JP Margan, Barclays, Sacieté Genera/e, Citl� IHS, Margan Stanley and the US Energy 
Infarmatian Administratian. 

4.2 Property, plant and equipment 

a) �loration and Rroduction assets

Investments in exploration and production are recognized based on the "successful efforts" method. The 
accounting treatment for the varying incurred expenses follows: 

Investments in areas with proven reserves 

Investments relating to the acquisition of proven reserves, the development of fields and the construction 
of production plants, as well as the estimated present value of abandonment costs, are capitalized and 
depreciated over the estimated life of the field based on the proven and probable and recovera ble reserves 
extracted (unit-of-production method) at the beginning of each year. 
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With respect to joint production contracts, this calculation is based on the proportion of production and 
reserves assigned to the Company taking account of the estimates based on the contractual clauses. 

An impairment test is regularly performed for each CGU. Impairment tests are recognized in the income 
statement (Note 4.1.g). 

b) Other items of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at acquisition or production cost, considering the 
update valuation made according to applicable regulation and are subsequently reduced by the related 
accumulated depreciation and by any impairment losses recognized, as indicated in notes 4.1.g y 6. 

Property, plant and equipment upkeep and maintenance expenses are recognized in the income statement 
far the year in which they are incurred. However, the costs of improvements leading to increased capacity 
ar efficiency ar to a lengthening of the useful lives of the assets are capitalized. 

Far non-current assets that necessarily take a period of more than twelve months to be ready far their 
intended use, the capitalized costs include such borrowing costs as might have been incurred before the 
assets are ready far their intended use and which have been charged by the supplier ar relate to loans or 
other specific-purpose or general-purpose borrowings directly attributable to the acquisition ar production 
of the assets. 

In-house work on non-current assets is measured at accumulated externa! costs plus in-house costs, 
determined on the basis of in-house materials consumption, direct labor and general manufacturing costs. 

Assets acquired befare December 31, 1996, are measured at cost, revalued and adjusted, where 
appropriate, pursuant to applicable legislation. 

The Company decided to undertake the revaluation of certain qualifying items of property, plant and 
equipment on its balance sheet, pursuant to Act 16/2012 of December 27th. The assets involved were 
buildings and technical installations located in Algeciras and Huelva, whose restated value did not exceed 
their market value. 

CEPSA depreciates its property, plant and equipment using the straight-line method, at annual depreciation 
rates based on the years of estimated useful life, as follows: 

Buildings and other structures 

Plant and machinery 

Machinery, installations and fixtures 

Furniture 

Investments in areas with proven reserves 

Means of Transport 

Data processing equipments 

Other intangible assets 

4.3 Leases 

De redation rate 

10% - 2% 

100% - 1% 

25% - 7% 

Production Unit 

25% - 17% 

50% - 7% 

10% 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset to the lessee. AII other leases are classified as 
operating leases (note 7). 

Finance leases 

In finance leases in which the Company acts as the lessee, the cost of the leased assets is disclosed in the 
balance sheet, based on the nature of the leased asset, and, simultaneously, a liability far the same amount 
is recognized. This amount will be the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value, at 
the inception of the lease, of the agreed mínimum lease payments, including the price of the purchase 
option, when it is reasonably certain that it will be exercised. Contingent lease installments, the cost of 
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services and taxes payable by the lessor are not included in the calculation. The total finance charges 
arising under the lease are allocated to the income statement far the year in which they are incurred using 
the effective interest method. Contingent rent is recognized as an expense far the period in which it is 
incurred. 

Leased assets are depreciated, based on their nature, using similar criteria to those applied to the items of 
property, plant and equipment that are owned. 

Operatinq leases 

On operating leases, in which the Company acts as lessor or lessee, lease income and expenses are charged 
to the income statement in the year in which they accrue. 

Any collection or payment that might be made when arranging an operating lease is treated as a prepaid 
lease collection or payment which will be allocated to profit or loss over the lease term in accordance with 
the time over which the benefits of the leased asset are assigned or received. 

In addition, and when the Company acts as a lessor, the acquisition cost of a leased asset is classified on 
the balance sheet in accordance with its nature, increased by directly attributable contract expenses, which 
are subsequently expensed throughout the life of the tease arrangement following the same criteria used 
to recognize lease income. 

4.4 Asset exchange transactions 

"Asset exchange" means the acquisition of property, plant and equipment or intangible assets in exchange 
far the delivery of other non-monetary assets or a combination of monetary and non-monetary assets. 

As a general rule, the asset received in an asset exchange transaction with commercial substance is 
recognized at the fair value of the asset given up, plus, where appropriate, any monetary consideration 
paid. The valuation differences that arise on derecognition of the asset given up in the exchange are 
recognized in the income statement. 

Assets received in an exchange have commercial substance when cash flows from the item received are 
different (risks, calendar and amounts) than from the item provided or when the present value of cash 
flows after taxes from the activities related to the exchange are modified by the transaction. 

Assets received in an exchange that lack commercial substance are recognized at the carrying amount of 
the asset given up plus, where appropriate, any monetary consideration paid, up to the limit of the fair 
value of the asset received if this is lower. 

4.5 Financia! instruments 

4.5.1 Financia! assets-Classification 

The financia! assets held by CEPSA are classified in the following categories: 

a) Loans and receivables: financia! assets arising from the sale of goods or the rendering of services in the
ordinary course of the Company's business, or financia! assets which, not having commercial substance,
are not equity instruments or derivatives, have fixed or determinable payments and are not traded in
an active market.

b) Held-for-trading financia! assets: far the purpose of being sold in the near term and assets that form
part of a portfolio for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. This
category also includes financia! derivatives that are not financia! guarantees (e.g. suretyships) and that
have not been designated as hedging instruments (note 4.5.4).

c) Equi�estments in Group comp_anies, associates and jointly- c.:ontrolled entíties: Group companies
are deemed to be those related to the Company as a result of a relationship of control and associates
are companies over which the Company exercises significant influence. Significant influence is generally
deemed to be exercised over companies which are between 20% and 50% owned. Also in other
companies in which the ownership is less than 20% but significant influence is exercised because,
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among other factors, the CEPSA Group is present on its Board of Directors and there is a high volume 
of commercial operations between them. Jointly-controlled entities include companies over which, by 
virtue of an agreement, the Company exercises joint control with one or more other venturers. 

d) Available-for-sale financia! assets: these include debt securities and equity instruments of other
companies that are not classified in any of the aforementioned categories.

Initial recoqnition 

Financia! assets are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration given, plus any directly 
attributable transaction costs. In held-far-trading financia! assets directly attributable transaction costs are 
recognized in the income statement. 

In the case of equity investments in Group companies where there is control over the subsidiary, the fees 
paid to legal advisers and other professionals relating to the acquisition of the investment are recognized 
directly in the income statement. 

Subseguent valuation 

Loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost net of any impairment losses. 

Held-far-trading financia! assets are measured at fair value and the gains and losses arising from changes 
in fair value are recognized in the net profit ar loss far the year. 

Investments in Group companies and associates and interests in jointly-controlled entities are measured at 
cost net, where appropriate, of any accumulated impairment losses. These losses are calculated as the 
difference between the carrying amount of the investments and their recoverable amount. Recoverable 
amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and the present value of the future cash flows from the 
investment. Unless there is better evidence of the recoverable amount, it is based on the value of the 
equity of the investee, adjusted by the amount of any unrealized gains existing at the date of measurement 
(including any goodwill). The main assumptions applied in the valuation of equity instruments and the 
related sensitivity analyses therefare agree with the contents of Note 4.1.g. 

Available-far-sale financia! assets are measured at fair value and the gains and losses arising from changes 
in fair value are recognized in equity until the asset is disposed of ar it is determined that it has become 
(permanently) impaired, at which time the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in equity are 
recognized in the net profit or loss far the year. In this regard, impairment is deemed to exist (permanent) 
if the market value of the asset has fallen by more than 40% ar if there has been a prolonged fall in market 
value over a period of 18 months without the value having recovered. 

Whenever there is evidence or at least at each reporting date CEPSA tests financia! assets not measured 
at fair value through profit or loss for impairment. Objective evidence of impairment is considered to exist 
when the recoverable amount of the financia! asset is lower than its carrying amount. When this occurs, 
the appropriate write-down is recognized in the income statement. 

As regards the valuation adjustments of trade and other receivables, CEPSA recognizes a write-down when 
the receivable is over six months past-due or when the Company's Legal Advisory Department takes legal 
action in arder to obtain collection settlement or when the customer is in bankruptcy. 

CEPSA derecognizes a financia! asset when it expires or when the rights to the cash flows from the financia! 
asset have been transferred and substantially ali the risks and rewards of ownership of the financia! asset 
have been transferred, such as in the case of firm asset sales, factoring of trade receivables in which the 
Company does not retain any credit or default risk, sales of financia! assets with repurchase agreements or 
securitization of financia! assets in which the transferring company does not retain subordinated financing 
nor grants any other type of guarantee or assumes any other type of risk. 

However, CEPSA does not derecognize financia! assets, and recognizes a financia! liability for an amount 
equal to the consideration received, in transfers of financia! assets in which substantially ali the risks and 
rewards of ownership are retained, such as in the case of bill discounting and non-recourse factoring, sales 
of financia! assets with repurchase agreements at a fixed price or sales price plus interest and securitization 
of financia! assets in which the transferring company retains subordinated financing or other types of 
guarantees that substantially cover ali expected losses. 
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4.5.2 Financia! liabilities 

Financia! liabilities include accounts payable by CEPSA that have arisen from the purchase of goods or 
services in the normal course of the business and those which, not having commercial substance, cannot 
be classed as derivative financia! instruments. 

Accounts payable are initially recognized at the fair value of the consideration received, adjusted by the 
directly attributable transaction costs. These liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost. 

CEPSA derecognizes financia! liabilities when the obligation underlying the liability ceases to exist. 

4.5.3 Eguity instruments 

An equity instrument represents a residual portian in the equity of a company after deducting ali its 
liabilities. 

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded through net equity at the amount received, net of 
issuance costs. 

4.5.4 Derivative financia! instruments and hedge accounting 

CEPSA uses financia! derivatives to hedge against the risks to which its activities, operations, and projected 
cash flows are exposed. The main risks derive from exposure to changes in exchange rates, interest rates 
and commodities prices. Considering these transactions, the company arranges hedge instruments. 

For these instruments to qualify for hedge accounting, the Company designates them as hedges from the 
outset, while also documenting the hedging relationship. In addition, the Company assesses the 
effectiveness of its hedges from inception to derecognition/discontinuation (and at least at every clase). 
Hedges are deemed effective if it is expected, prospectively, that the changes in fair value or cash flows 
from the hedged item (attributable to the hedged risk) are almost entirely offset by the changes in the 
hedging instrument and that, retrospectively, the gains or losses on the hedge have fluctuated within a 
range of 80% to 125% of gains or losses on the hedged item. 

CEPSA accounts for the different types of hedges it uses as follows: 

- Fair value hedges: Changes in the value of the hedging instrument and the hedged item, attributable to
the covered risk, are recognized in the income statement.

- Cash flow hedges: The effective portian of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognized
temporarily in equity, while any ineffective portian is recognized in the income statement in the same
period in which the hedged item affects profit or loss, except when the hedge relates to a forecast
transaction that entails the recognition of a non-financia! asset or liability, in which case the amounts
recognized in equity are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset ar liability acquired or assumed.

- Net investment of businesses abroad hedge: these hedge transactions are focused on the exchange rate
hedge on Investments in group companies and associates and are deemed to be as fair value exchange
hedge.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, 
or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. At that time, any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging 
instrument recognized in equity is retained in equity until the forecast transaction occurs. When the forecast 
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was deferred in equity is 
recognized immediately in profit ar loss. 

Throughout the normal course of business, CEPSA enters into crude oil and natural gas sales and purchase 
contracts. These contracts are held and maintained to meet physical crude oíl and gas needs based on 
period hydrocarbons purchase and sale estimates and are monitored systematically and adjusted based on 
physical delivery, where applicable. This is why they are called "own use" contracts. 

4.6 Inventaries 

Crude oil, oil derivatives and petrochemical products, acquired as raw materials, are measured at the lower 
of the Average Unit Cost Method and net realizable value. Replacement parts and supplies and other 

Compañía Española de Petróleos, S.A.U. -22-



�!=CEPSR 

inventaries are measured at the lower of average acquisition or production cost or net realizable value. 
(See Note 10). 

Production cost includes those of direct materials and, where applicable, direct labor costs and general 
manufacturing costs. 

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price less the estimated costs of completion and costs to be 
incurred in marketing, selling and distribution. 

The cost of inventaries is assigned by using the Average Unit Cost Method. 

The Company recognizes the appropriate write-downs as an expense in the income statement when the 
net realizable value of the inventaries is lower than acquisition or production cost. 

In the case of refined products, the costs incurred are allocated in proportion to the selling price of the 
related products (isomargin method), due to the complexity of allocating production costs to each item. 

The measurement criteria applied to greenhouse gas emission rights are described as follows: 

Greenhouse gas emission allowances 

In compliance with European Union regulations on reducing greenhouse gas em1ss1ons within the 
framework of the Kyoto Protocol and hence, other community and Spanish regulations issued as a result, 
the Company must at least deliver an amount of CO2 emissions rights equivalent to those realized and 
verified during the year by April 28. 

CEPSA1s emissions rights for complying with the delivery obligations arising from its greenhouse gas 
emissions are classified under "Inventaries" as indicated in Royal Decree 602/2016, which amended the 
General Chart of Accounts. 

In this regard, the greenhouse gas emission allowances are recognized under "Commercial inventory." 
They are valued as follows: 

a) rights acquired are valued based on acquisition price;
b) rights received freely, in accordance with the emissions trading scheme, are valued at the prevailing

market price at the beginning of the corresponding year, assuming an official capital grant applied
to results at as expenses arising from the emissions associated to the received rights without
consideration paid.

Emissions rights are derecognized at the moment of delivery, when transferred to third parties, or meet 
the conditions established to consider them expired (Note 20). 

Should the emissions rights' market value be inferior to the carrying amount of the recognized rights, their 
carrying amount will be adjusted to market value. 

Depending on whether the rights are acquired or received from the government, either a provision is set 
aside for the impairment of inventory, or a value adjustment is made. In the latter case (rights received 
from the Administration), the value of official capital grants is also adjusted with a balancing entry under 
"Non-financia! and other capital grants" on the income statement (Notes 5, 11, and 20). 

The commitment to deliver emissions rights for the CO2 emissions during the year are recognized as the 
greenhouse gas is emitted. These expenses are recognized under "Greenhouse gas emission expenses" 
under "Other operating expenses" on the income statement, with a balancing entry of "Provisions for 
greenhouse gas emission rights "under "Non-current provisions" which will be canceled when the 
corresponding emissions rights have been delivered. 

The unit value to be assigned to the emissions is determined taking into account the following amounts: 

- Firstly, the carrying amount of the emission rights received for no consideration.
- Based on the Average Unit Cost Method of the rest of inventoried emissions rights.
- Lastly, where necessary, the most up-to-date estímate of the acquisition cost of the remaining allowances.
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4.7 Foreign currency transactions 

CEPSA's functional currency is the euro. Therefare, transactions in currencies other than the euro are 
deemed to be "fareign currency transactions" and are recognized by applying the exchange rates prevailing 
at the transaction date while exchange differences arising at the date of settlement of the transactions are 
charged ar credited, as appropriate, to income. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in fareign currencies are recognized at each year-end in euros 
at the exchange rates then prevailing. Any resulting gains ar losses are recognized directly in the income 
statement in the year in which they arise. 

Non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the 
transaction date. 

4.8 Income tax 

Toe tax income ar expense comprises current tax income ar expense and deferred tax income ar expense. 

The current income tax expense is the amount payable by the Company as a result of income tax 
assessments far a given year. Tax credits and other tax benefits, excluding tax withholdings and pre
payments, and tax loss carryforwards effectively offset in the current year reduce the current income tax 
expense. 

The deferred tax expense ar income relates to the recognition and derecognition of deferred tax assets 
and liabilities. These include temporary differences measured at the amount expected to be payable or 
recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases, and 
available tax loss and tax credit carryforwards. These amounts are measured at the tax rates that are 
expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized ar the liability is settled. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized far all taxable temporary differences, except far those arising from 
the initial recognition of goodwill ar other assets and liabilities in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and affects neither accounting profit (loss) nor taxable profit (tax loss). 

Deferred tax assets, however, are only recognized to the extent that it is considered probable that sufficient 
future taxable profit will be available against which they can be utilized. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from transactions charged ar credited directly to equity are also 
recognized directly in equity. 

At each accounting clase the deferred tax assets recognized are reviewed and appropriate adjustments are 
made where there are doubts as to their future recoverability. Likewise, at each accounting clase the 
deferred tax assets that have not been recognized in the balance sheets are assessed and are recognized 
to the extent that their recovery against future taxable profits is probable. 

4.9 Revenues and expense recognition 

Revenue and expenses are recognized on an accrual basis, i.e. when the actual flow of the related goods 
and services occurs, regardless of when the resulting monetary or financia! flow arises. Revenue is 
measured at the fair value of the consideration received, net of discounts and taxes. 

The Company recognizes revenues whenever the amount of such revenues can be reliably measured, it is 
likely that any future economic benefit associated with the item of revenue will flow to the Company and 
the specific conditions far each of the activities, as detailed below, are met. 

Revenue from sales is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods sold 
have been transferred to the buyer, and the Company neither continues to manage the goods nor retains 
effective control over them. 

Revenue from the sale of oil is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been 
transferred, which is when the title passes to the customer. This generally occurs when product is physically 
transferred into a vessel, pipe ar other delivery mechanism. 

Revenue from the production of oil in which the Company has an interest with other producers is recognized 
based on the working interest and the terms of the relevant production sharing contracts. 
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Sales and Supplies exclude the value of transactions relating to the exchange of goods of a similar nature 
carried out with other operators. 

In accordance with the legislation applicable to companies operating in the oil and gas industry, the excise 
tax on oil and gas sales is recognized as part of the selling price and as an addition to cost under "Revenue" 
and "Other operating expenses," respectively, in the income statement. 

Revenue from services rendered is recognized by referring to the degree of completion of the service at 
the end of the reporting period, provided the transaction results may be reliably estimated. 

Interest income from financia! assets is recognized using the effective interest method and dividend income 
is recognized when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been established. Interest and dividends 
from financia! assets accrued after the acquisition date are recognized as income. 

4.10 Provisions and contingencies 

When preparing the fínancial statements the Company's directors make a distinction between: 

a) Provisions: credit balances covering present obligations arising from past events with respect to
which it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits of certain amount
and/or timing will be required to settle the obligations.

b) Contingent liabilities: possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within
the Company's control.

The financia! statements include all the provisions with respect to which it is considered that it is more 
likely than not that the obligation will have to be settled. Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the 
financia! statements, but rather are disclosed, unless the possibility of an outflow in settlement is considered 
to be remate. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of the best possible estimate of the amount required to settle 
or transfer the obligation, taking into account the information available on the event and its consequences. 
Where discounting is used, adjustments made to provisions are recognized as interest cost on an accrual 
basis. 

The compensation to be received from a third party on settlement of the obligation is recognized as an 
asset, provided that there are no doubts that the reimbursement will take place, unless there is a legal 
relationship whereby a portian of the risk has been externalized as a result of which the Company is not 
Hable; in this situation, the compensation will be taken into account for the purpose of estimating the 
amount of the related provision that should be recognized. 

4.11 Termination benefits 

Under current legislation, CEPSA is required to pay termination benefits to employees when employment 
is terminated under certain conditions. Therefore, termination benefits that can be reasonably quantified 
are recognized as an expense in the year in which the decision to terminate the employment relationship 
is taken. (Note 12). 

4.12 Environmental matters 

Environmental investments are defined as investments included in the Company's assets for use in its 
business on a lasting basis which are mainly for the purpose of minimizing the impact on the environment 
and protecting and improving the environment, including the reduction or elimination of pollution in the 
future caused by the operations performed by the Company. 

Environmental expenses are also deemed to be those incurred to prevent, reduce or repair damage to the 
environment, i.e. the natural surroundings, as well as those relating to environmental commitments. 

With respect to provisions for environmental risks and obligations, CEPSA records provisions for 
environmental actions to remedy the risk of gradual soil pollution, with a charge to "Other operating 
expenses" in the income statements, calculated based on interna! technical estimates and studies. In 
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addítíon, CEPSA has taken out ínsurance polícies to cover the thírd party líabílíty that míght aríse from 
sudden accidental pollutíon and gradual subsequent pollutíon. (Note 18). 

4.13 Pension commitments and similar obligations 

CEPSA has the followíng pensíon commítments towards employees and theír beneficíaries: 

Long-term defined contrlbution benefits 

- Commitments covered through Employee Pensíon Plans: These pension plans entítle participants to
receive benefíts for retirement, death or disabílity, as specified in the plans. The plans take the form of
hybrid plans and combine defined contribution plans, which cover retirement - whereby the sponsor
makes periodíc contríbutíons-, and defined benefit plans which cover benefits for death or disabílity
through a temporary annually renewable polícy arranged wíth an insurance company under whích the
sponsor undertakes to make the contributions corresponding to the pension plans. Accordingly, these
contingencies should be consídered to be a defined contributíon plan. The accrued amount of the
contingency assumed by the sponsor is covered each year through the annual contribution, which is
recognized under "Staff costs" in the íncome statement.

- Lífe insurance: A defined contríbution obligatíon arranged through an ínsurance policy whích establíshes
the ríght of the ínsured partíes to receíve retirement benefits or, where appropríate, benefits for death
or dísabílity. The contríbutíons made by the policyholder are made as a supplement to the pension plan,
ar because the commítments to employees exceed the maxímum contríbutions to pensíon plans. The
contributions are recognized under "Staff costs" in the íncome statement.

- Annuíty income far retired employees: These are oblígations prior to the arrangement of pension plans,
whích entitle personnel ar theír beneficiaries to supplementary social securíty pension benefíts in the
event of retirement, death or permanent dísabilíty. This commitment has been externalized in full
through the related insurance policies. The contributions made, through modifícation of the group
insured, variation of said polícy commítments or CPI revaluatíons, are recognized under "Employee
benefits expense11 on the íncome statement.

The adjustments arísíng from commítments are recognízed as expenses or íncome for the year, as 
appropríate, and theír amount is not material. 

Long-term defined benefit consideratíons 

- The Company has entered into a commitment with a certaín group of employees for the payment of an
annuity in the form of monetary consideration arising from the closing of company stores. Actuaría!
studies are performed annually, based on life expectancy tables (PEMF2000) with a discount rate of
1.5% and salary increases anticipated at 0.25%, and the actuaría! gaíns and losses are recognized as
income or expenses, as appropríate. The annual accrual of oblígatíons to employees and the ínterest
cost on the funds are recognízed under "Staff costs" and "Finance costs."

- Employees have the ríght to receive from the company both medals for seníority and values awards. In
the La Rábida refinery, workers have the ríght to receive amounts/remuneratíon in kind for length of
service. On an annual basis, an actuaria! study is performed, recognizing the actuaria( gaíns and losses
as expenses or income, as applícable.

The captíon "Long-term provisions - Provisíons for long-term employee benefits11 on the balance sheet
íncludes the present value of the defined benefit consideratíons, net of the fair value of the assets 
consídered as "ínvolved assets11 and the "cost of rendered servíces" from not record post-employment 
considerations, íf applicable. 

4.14 Grants, donations or gifts and legacies received 

The Company accounts for grants, donations ar gífts and bequests received from third partíes other than 
the shareholder using the followíng críteria: 
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a) Non-refundable grants, donations and gifts, and bequests: These are measured at the fair value of
the amount or the asset received, based on whether or not they are monetary grants, and are taken
to income in proportion to the period depreciation taken on the assets far which the grants were
received or, where appropriate, on disposal of the asset or on the recognition of an impairment loss.

b) Refundable grants: while they are refundable, they are recognized as a liability.

c) Operating grants: They are allocated to income at the time they are granted except if they are used
to finance an operating deficit in future years, in which case they will be allocated in those years.
But if grants are received to finance specifíc expenses, they are allocated to income as the related
expenses are incurred.

4.15 Joint ventures 

a) Jointly controlled assets

CEPSA accounts far its investments in joint ventures by recogrnzmg in its balance sheet the share 
corresponding to it, in proportion to its ownership interest, of the jointly controlled assets and of the jointly 
incurred liabilities. In addition, it recognizes in the income statement its share of the income earned and 
expenses incurred by the joint venture. In addition, the proportional part corresponding to the Company 
of the related items of the joint venture is included in the statement of changes in equity and cash flow 
statement. 

b) Jointly controlled subsidiaries

Shareholdings in a jointly-controlled company are recorded pursuant to the requirements far Investments 
in group companies, associates and jointly-controlled entities (Note 4.5). 

4.16 Related party transactions 

CEPSA performs all its transactions with related parties at market prices. Transfer prices are appropriately 
supported and accordingly, the Company's directors do not consider that any significant risks that could 
give rise to material liabilities in the future exist in this connection. 

Notwithstanding the above, in mergers, spin-offs ar non-cash contributions to a business, the acquired 
assets making up the business are valued at the amount assigned to such assets, once the transaction has 
been completed, in the consolidated financia! statements of the group ar sub-group. 

4.17 Current/non-current classification 

Current assets are deemed to be those related to the normal operating cycle which in general is considered 
to be one year, as well as those other assets that mature, are disposed of or are realized in the short term 
fallowing the balance sheet date, held-far-trading financia! assets, except far derivative financia! 
instruments settled at more than twelve months and cash and cash equivalents. Assets that do not meet 
these requirements are classified as non-current. 

Also, current liabilities are those related to the normal operating cycle, held-for-trading financia! liabilities, 
except far derivative financia! instruments settled at more than twelve months and, in general, all the 
obligations that mature or expire in the short term. AII other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

4.18 Cash flow statement 

CEPSA reports the information regarding cash flows from operations using the "indirect method", which 

implies starting with the "Profit befare taxes" on the statement of income, and subsequently adjusting this 
figure far the effects of non-monetary transactions and accruals far the period, as well as, gains or losses 
associated with cash flows from investing or financing operations. 
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s. Intangible assets

The main movements during 2018 and 2017 are as follows: 

Thousands of euros 
Additlons or 

Balance at Non-Cash charges for the Retlrements or Balance at 
2018 01.01.18 Contributions ear Transfers diSJ!!!.Si!IS 12.31.18 

A55ro 

Concessions 58 58 

Parents and limices 49,089 285 49,374 

Goodwill 399 399 

Computer software 148,696 17,252 (4,399) 161,549 

Othe- in@ngible asse:s 590 (19) 571 

Investme1ts in areas with unprove1 rese-ves 121,061 (12,600) 1,350 109,811 

Total 319,893 {12,600) 18,887 {4,399) (19) 321,762 

A a:vmula/a1 amortisation and impairmffit losses 

Concessions (58) (58) 

Patents and licences (35,830) (3,046) (38,876) 

Goodwill (80) (40) (120) 

Computer software (101,963) (11,209) (113,172) 

Otile- in@ngible asse:s (305) {19) (324) 

Investments in are.as with unll:[0ven resaves (101,540) 12,600 (20,871) (109,811) 

Total (239,716) 12,600 (35,185) (262,361) 

A a:vmulalEd amortizaüon 

N« lngllleasse:s 80,JV (16,298) (4.399) (19} 59,401 

Thousands of euros 
Addltions or 

Balance at Transfer to charges for tf1e Retirements or Balance at 
2017 01.01.17 lnventories �r Transfers di Is 12,31.17 

Assets 

Concesslons 58 58 

Patents and licences 48,683 48 358 49,089 

Goodwill 9,970 (9,571) 399 

Compute- software 135,061 (373) 13,599 409 148,696 

Othe- in@ngible asse:s 100,074 (99,484) 590 

Investments in areas with Ullll:[0ven reserves 119,461 1,158 442 121,061 

Total 413,307 (109,428) 14,805 1,209 319,893 

A cwmulate1 amortisation and impalrmffit /osses 

Concesslons (58) (58) 

Patents and licences (32,777) (3,053) {35,830) 

Goodwill (997) 957 (40) (80) 

Compute- software (92,248) 235 (9,873) (77) (101,963) 

Other intangible asSEts (15,552) 15,266 {19) (305) 

Investments in areas with l@?!OVen.L� (101,098) (442) (101,5401 
Total (242,730) 16,458 (13,427) (77) {239,776) 
Acwmulate1 amortiZlJÜon 

Nt'!finl2nfJJ!i.e"5Sl!ls 17!!,517 {g,970/ 1,378 1,132 80,117 

In 2018 and 2017, 9,874 thousand and 6,965 thousand euros, respectively, in respect of staff, finance and 
other costs relating basically to computer software developed in those years were capitalized as intangible 
assets with a credit to "In-house work on non-current assets" in the accompanying income statement. The 
rest of the investment recognized by CEPSA under "Computer software" relates basically to acquisitions 
made in arder to upgrade computer software to the most recent market versions. 

In 2018, as a result of the non-monetary contribution described in Note 2.5, the intangible assets associated 
with the Timimoun field, whose carrying amount was zero, were derecognized. 

In 2017 the branch of activity corresponding to the service stations in the Canary Islands was segregated 
and the intangible assets associated with this branch of activity were derecognized. These mainly 
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corresponded to "other intangible assets", which basically included service station licenses amounting to 
99,484 thousand euros (84,218 thousand euros net of amortization). 

The amounts recorded under "Investments in a reas with unproven reserves" includes investments in other 
Algerian deposits. 

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, CEPSA had investments in items of property, plant, and equipment 
located at the different Algerian exploration camps: 

2018 

Desaiption 

Investment in areas with unproven reserves 

Total 

2017 

Desaiption 

Investments in areas with unproven reserves 

Total 

Gross carrying 
amount 

109,811 

109,811 

Thousands of euros 

Ac:cumulated 
depreciation 

(109,811) 

(109,811) 

Net carrying 
amount 

Thousands of euros 

Gross carrying Ac:cumulated Net carrying 
amount depredation amount 

121,061 (101,540) 19,521 

W,061 (101,540) 19,521 

At 2018 and 2017 year-end CEPSA had the following fully amortized intangible assets still in use: 

Gross carrying amount 

Concessions 

Patents and licences 

Computer software 

lnvestments ln areas with unproven reserves 

Total 

Thousands of euros 

2018 

58 

10,284 

92,343 

109,811 

212 496 

2017 

58 

10,284 

86,051 

101,540 

197933 

At year-end 2018 and 2017, CEPSA's non-current assets were not subject to any guarantees ar any other 
círcumstance of a substantive nature affecting them. 

At year-end 2018 and 2017, CEPSA had firm intangible asset purchase commitments amounting to 1,824 
thousand euros and 1,480 thousand euros, respectively. 
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6. Property, plant and eguipment

The main movements during 2018 and 2017 are as follows: 

Addltions0< 
Non-CUh Classified as d,arges for the 

2018 
Balance at 
01.01.18 contributlllll'I hetd for sale year 

Asm 

Land and buildings 
Plant and machinery 
lnvestments in areas with provei reserves 
Furniture 
Compute- hardware 
Transport s¡uipment 
Olher property, plant and e,iulpment 

�. plant and ff!Uipmeit in the rourse o/ mruitruttlon and advance payments 
Total 

Accumu/a/81 �on inJ impiitmffit losses 

61,745 
5,001,923 
1,353,425 

4,755 
22,229 

409 
47,869 

623,249 
7,115,604 

Land and buildings (1,870) 
Plant and machinery (3,547,728) 

Investmsits in areas with provsi reserves (1,289,933) 

�� �� 

Compute- hardware (14,814) 

Transport s¡uipment (399) 

(157,493) 
(157,493) 

Other o , plant amleq,�ui-ei�t� _ _ _____________ (_4B_ 5) ______ _ 
Total (4,857,369) 

Accumu/a/81 deprediJÜon 

Plant and machinery 
Laod and buildinqs 

Total 

Nd �s or prope,tv. plant ,nd eguipment 

(179) 
(97,322) 

(97,501} 

2,160,734 (157,493) 

(228) 
(1,115) 

{1,343) 

1,035 

1,035 

(308/ 

19 

1,662 

376,175 
377,856 

(58) 
(249,159) 

(20,810) 
(354) 

(4,390) 
(6) 

(18) 

(17'1,195) 

101,0/JJ 

Additions or 
dlarges for the 

2017 
Balance at 
01.01.17 Se r ation ear 

Land and buildings 

Plant and machinery 
Investments in areas with proveo reserves 

Furniture 
Computer hardware 
Transport equipment 

Other property, plant and equipment 

�jllant ari.d eguipment 1n the rourse of construction and a<Jvance payments 
Total 

Accumulateo deprroalion and impaírment losses 

64,792 

4,953,324 
1,352,782 

4,687 

18,235 

428 

46,945 

411,165 

6,852,358 

(4,969) 

(21,265) 

(273) 

(4,391) 
(30,898) 

643 

328,227 

328,870 

Thousands of euros 

Relirements Balance at 
Tnmsrers or dlspo,als 12.31.18 

71 
174,420 
43,647 

56 
3,300 

46 

61,607 
(38,315) 5,136,913 

(456,079) 942,655 

(46) 

4,811 
25,529 

409 
2,852 50,721 

(219,993) 621,938 

4,399 (494/140) 6,844,583 

9 

3 

(9) 

(3) 

(1,919) 
36,490 (3,759,359) 

441,943 (868,800) 
(2,503) 

(19,204) 
(405) 
(506) 

478,433 (4,651,696) 

(179) 
(97,322) 

{97,501) 

4,399 (15,007) 2,094,386 

Thousands of euros 

Retirements or Balance at 
Transfers dls Is 12.31.17 

2,369 

102,837 

68 
4,267 

78 
924 

(111,752) 
(1,209) 

(447) 61,745 

(32,973) 5,001,923 

(97) 

1,353,425 

4,755 

22,229 
409 

47,869 

623,249 

(33,517} 7,115,604 

Land and buildings (1,952) (35) (94) 211 (1,870) 

Plant and machinery (3,329,796) 7,282 (258,178) 1,458 31,506 (3,547,728) 

fnvestments in areas witll proven reser ves (1,271,645) (18,288) (1,289,933) 

Furniture (1,783) (352) (5) (2,140) 

Computer hardware (10,174) 169 (3,527) (1,282) (14,814) 

Transport equipment (390) (9) (399) 

Otller property, plantand �u'-'l=en'-"t'-- ------------- ---�(4_84�) _________ �(�1)  _____________ �(4_85---'--) 
Total (4,616,224} 7,451 (280,390) 77 31,717 (4,857,369) 

Accumula/eti deprer:iation 

Plant and machinery 
Land and buildin s 

Tot;JI 

(179) 

(97,775) 

(97,954) 

453 
453 

(179) 
(97,322) 

(97,501) 

Net ítems of property, plant and equipment 2,138,180 (23,447) 48,480 (1,132) (1,347) 2,160,734 

Own work capitalized is recognized at production cost and includes, where appropriate, staff, financia! 
expenses and other costs incurred during the related construction period; during 2018 and 2017, property, 
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plant, and equipment amounting to 13,347 thousand and 18,939 thousand euros, respectively, were 
recognized under "Own work capitalized" on the accompanying income statement according to their nature. 

The additions to property, plant, and equipment in 2018 and 2017, amounting to 377,856 thousand and 
328,870 thousand euros, respectively, related mainly to investments in the fields in Algeria and to new 
refinery units aimed at increasing, enhancing and flexibilizing the production processes, and generally 
speaking, improvements in industrial installations aimed at minimizing the impact on the environment while 
increasing safety. 

In 2018, as a result of the non-monetary contribution described in Note 2.5, the current property, plant 
and equipment associated with the Timimoun field, with a value of 157,493 thousand euros, were 
derecognized. 

Retirements, disposals or reductions made in 2018 included the sale of certain fixed assets in the RKF field, 
which had a net value of 14,136 thousand euros, giving rise to a gain of 3,363 thousand euros. In 2017, 
there were deregistrations due to the segregation of the branch of activity corresponding to the service 
stations in the Canary Islands. The derecognition in both years of other items of property, plant and 
equipment is due to their obsolescence. 

Set out below is a breakdown of the value of lands and buildings for 2018 and 2017: 

Thousands of euros 

Investment property 

Land 

Buifdings 

2018 

57,195 

2,314 

2017 

57,404 

2,292 

Total 59509 59696 

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, CEPSA had investments in property, plant and equipment located in 
various prospecting fields in Algeria, as detailed below: 

2018 

Description 

Investment in areas with proven reserves 

Furniture 

Com pu ter hardware 

Transport equipment 

Property, plant and eguipment in the course of construction and advance payments 

ToliJ/ 

2017 

Desaiptlon 

Investment in areas with preven reserves 

Furniture 

Computer hardware 

Transport equipment 

Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction and advance payments 

Total 

Gross carrying 
amount 

942,655 

124 

32 

63 

11,675 

954,549 

Gross carrying 
amount 

1,353,425 

124 

32 

63 

186,472 

1,540,116 

AII property, plant and equipment are assigned to operating facilities. 

Thousands of euros 

Accumulated Net c:a rryi ng 
depreciation amount 

(868,800) 73,855 

(124) 

(32) 

(63) 

11,675 

(869,019) 85,530 

Thousands of euros 

Aa:umulated Net carrying 
depredation amount 

(1,289,933) 63,492 

(124) 

(32) 

(63) 

186,472 

(1,290,152) 249,964 

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, Cepsa had the following fully-depreciated property, plant and 
equipment still in use: 
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Thousands of euros 

Gross car in amount 2018 2017 

Land and buildings 

Plant and machinery 

1,727 

2,094,366 

1,727 

2,006,344 

Investments in areas with proven reserves 

Furniture 

30,485 

1,310 

74,265 

1,248 

Computer hardware 

Transport equipment 

10,023 

400 

7,239 

365 

Other property, plant and eguipment 484 484 

Total 2138.795 2091 672 

At year-end, CEPSA had no non-current assets subject to guarantees or any other circumstance of a 
substantive nature that may affect them. 

At year-end 2018, CEPSA had grants awarded by the Ministry of Industry, Tourism, and Commerce in the 
amount of 718 thousand euros (2017: same amount), devoted to technical installations in refineries, as 
well as grants from the Ministry of Economy totaling 462 thousand euros (2017; 253 thousand euros), and 
the Ministry of Science and Innovation in the amount of 76 thousand euros (2017: same amount), used 
far acquiring equipment far Technological Center. There are grants transferred to results based on the 
corresponding amortization (see Note 11.6). 

At year-end 2018 and 2017, CEPSA had firm commitments to purchase items of property, plant, and 
equipment amounting to 269,964 thousand and 407,150 thousand euros, respectively. The commitments 
mainly correspond to the following projects: 

at the Gibraltar San Roque refinery: the "Bottom of Barrel" project, consisting in the construction 
of a new unit far producing additional tons to current metaxilene output, while revamping the 
alkylation unit to increase daily production capacity from 650 MT to 750 MT; 
revamping of the La Rábida refinery's FCC reactor (replacing the current reactor to increase the 
conversion index), revamping the Aromax unit to increase efficiency through the substitution of 
the recycling turbine compressor for an electric one, and reduced lost profit from programmed 
shutdowns, revamping the hydrocracking unit, whose objective is to extend the catalyst, s cycle 
from 16 to 30 months, to reach full capacity until the end of the catalyst's cycle, and increasing 
energy efficiency; 
generally, to improvements in industrial installations to minimize environmental impact, 
improvements in infrastructures and installations, and investments related to the plan for 
developing the Algerian exploration fields. 

It is CEPSA policy to arrange insurance policies to cover the possible risks to which its property, plant and 
equipment are subject (note 21). 

Pursuant to the applicable legislation (Royal Decree 2,607/1996, of December 20, regulating the standards 
approved by Royal Decree-Law 7/1996, of June 7, on the Restatement of Balance Sheets), CEPSA updated 
its property, plant and equipment by 75,705 thousand euros, including the absorbed companies Ertoil, S.A. 
and Lubrisur S.A. This increase in value is being depreciated (the depreciation charge is a tax-deductible 
expense) with a charge to profit in 1997 and subsequent years based on the years of residual useful lives 
of the revalued assets. In 2018 and 2017, additional depreciation allowances resulting from the 
abovementioned restatement of assets, amounted to 120 thousand and 165 thousand euros and disposals 
of 93 thousand and 683 thousand euros (corresponding to fully depreciated assets eliminated from 
inventaries), respectively. At year-end 2018 and 2017, the increase in value pending depreciation amounted 
to 4,366 and 4,510 thousand euros, respectively. 

In accordance with Law 16/2012 on balance sheet revaluation, as of December 27, CEPSA restated its 
property, plant, and equipment as at December 31, 2013, in the amount of 128,036 thousand euros. In 
2018 and 2017, additional depreciation allowances resulting from the abovementioned restatement of 
assets, amounted to 8,036 and 9,251 thousand euros, while disposals amounted to 614 thousand euros in 
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2018 and 350 thousand euros in 2017 (corresponding to fully depreciated assets eliminated from 
inventaries). 

CEPSA has been granted administrative concessions by the Spanish Government to use mooring facilities, 
access and adjacent areas at the port of Algecíras which will revert to the Government in 2022, Santa Cruz 
de Tenerife in 2027 and Palos de la Frontera between 2018 and 2065. CEPSA management expects ali the 
concessions to be renewed on expiration. The facilities are adequately being maintained and the related 
cost will have been deprecíated in ful! far accounting purposes during the concession term. 

7. Leases

7.1 Operating leases: lessee 

Set out below is a breakdown of assets under operating leases and the future amounts payable as at 
December 31, 2018 and 2017: 

2018 

Lease payments payable 

2019 

2020 

2021 

2022 

2023 

Otner maturities 

Future 12,aJt:._ments 
Continq_ent rent recoq_nised in income 

2017 

Lease payments payable 

2018 

2019 

2020 

2021 

2022 

Otner maturities 

Future oavments 
Continq_ent rent recoq_nised in income 

7.2 Operating leases: lessor 

Buildin 

20,508 

20,188 

20,133 

20,113 

20,086 

55,660 

156,688 

{.6842 

Building 

25,992 

25,533 

25,699 

25,956 

27,235 

27,508 

157,_923 

(2,1522 

Plant 

3,876 

1,038 

705 

691 

670 

2,228 

9,208 
362 

Plant 

9,690 

5,510 

4,153 

1,590 

1,569 

22,512 
1,160 

Thousands of euros 

Transport Computer 
e ui ment hardware Total 

20,586 1,420 46,390 

9,809 1,195 32,230 

6,832 678 28,348 

4,873 133 25,810 

2,577 1 23,334 

4,853 62,741 

49,530 3,427 218,853 

0222 

Thousands of euros 

Transport Computer 
egui�ment hardware Total 

16,651 2,975 55,308 

8,961 2,975 42,979 

7,856 2,975 40,683 

7,076 2,975 37,597 

6,854 2,975 38,633 

2,870 2,975 33,353 

50,268 17,850 248,553 
(992) 

At 2018 year-end, the Company does not have any leasing agreements in which it acts as a lessor. 

8. Financial assets (current and non-current)

8.1 Non-current financia! assets 

The book value of "non-current financia! assets" by category, at 2018 and 2017 year end is as follows: 
(Equity instruments disclosed in note 8.3 are not included) 
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-------Classes 
--

Categories � 
Loans and receivables 
Avaliable-for-sale financia! assets 
Derivatives (Note 9) 

To/El 

Egulty instruments 

lfl l!!... -----12.!l 

1,932 1,932 
. 

-- --

1932 1 932 

Deriva ti ves 
2018 2017 

_ _w¡_ 1,873 

228 2,873 

Thousands of euros 

Credits and other 
finandal assets Total 

2.018 2017 20� 2017 

63,683 40,560 63,683 40,560 

1,932 1,932 
. 

-- ____m__ 2,873 

6),683 40,560 65,843 45,365 

During 2018 and 2017, "Loans and receivables" mainly included loans to group companies and associates 
in the amount of 53,200 thousand euros (2017: 28,735), non-current non-trade receivables used to finance 
installations, create customer loyalty, and long-term deposits given far office leases in the amount of 3,341 
thousand euros (2017: 3,316 thousand euros). 

"Available-for-sale financia! assets" mainly reflects the fair value of the permanent investments in equity 
instruments in companies not listed on official stock exchanges that are not investments in group companies 
and associates. 

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, there were no firm non-current sales commitments to third parties. 

There were no changes arising from impairment losses during 2018 and 2017. 

The breakdown by maturity of "Non-current financia! assets" as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as 
follows: 

2018 

Loans and receivables 
Available-for-sale financia! asset:s 
Derivatives (Note 9) 

Total 

2017 

Loans and receivables 
Available-fo r -sale financia! asset:s 
Derivados de cobertura 

Total 
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2020 

10,576 

10576 

2019 

8,614 

1 oso 

9664 

-34-

Maturingin 

2021 2022 

1,085 43,427 

1085 43427 

Maturlng in 

2020 2021 

696 649 

696 649 

Subsequent 
2023 years Total 

3,787 4,808 63,683 

1,932 1,932 

228 228 

4015 6740 65.843 

Thousands of euros 

Subsequent 
2022 years Total 

25,842 4,759 40,560 

1,932 1,932 

1 823 2 873 

25.842 8514 45.365 
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8.2 Current financia! assets 

The book value of the current financia! assets, by category, far 2018 and 2017 is as follows: 

Derívatíves 

Categorles 2018 2017 

Loans and receivables 

Derivatives (Note 9 l 4,123 9,649 

Total 4123 9649 

Credits and other 

financia! assets 

2018 2017 

1,854,641 1,975,260 

1854 641 1975,260 

Thousands of euros 

2018 

1,854,641 

4,123 

1858764 

Total 

2017 

1,975,260 

9,649 

1 984909 

The fair value of these derivative financia! instruments was estimated discounting their associated cash 
flows by applying prevailing interest and exchange rates at the balance sheet date, and including 
differentials in accordance with the credit risk of each instrument. Far sorne derivative instruments, market 
value as provided by the pertinent financia! entities is used as a complementary reference (note 9). 

Variations arising from impairment losses recognized under "Loans and receivables" in 2018 and 2017 were 
as follows: 

2018 

Loans and redevables 

Trade redevable for sales and services 

Loans to third parties 

Loans to Group Companies and associates 

Total 

2017 

Loans and redevables 

Trade recievable for sales and services 

Loans to third parties 

Loans to Group Companies and associates 

Total 
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Impairment as 
of 01.0J.�018 

40,035 

9,967 

50,002 

Impairment as 
of01.0L2017 

39,747 
9,967 

11,448 

61,162 

Thousands of euros 

Impairment/ 
(Reversa!) 

during .2018 

(3,888) 

{3,888) 

Acumulated 
as of 

J.2.3L2018 

36,147 

9,967 

46,114 

Thousands of euros 

Impairment/ Acumulated 
Segregation (Reversa!) as of 

(note 2,5) during 2017 J.2.31.2017 

(995) 1,283 40,035 

9,967 

(11,448)

{995) [10,165) 50,002 
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8.3 Equity instruments 

The main information relating to Group companies and associates at 2018 and 2017 year end is as follows: 

Thousands of euros 

(Impalrment) 
and Reven;al 

Reoognlzed for the year Aocumulated Net Dlvidends 

2018 Ownershl � Cost Note 16.6 lm airment lnvestment recelved 

ASFALTOS ESPAÑOLES, S.A. 50% 17,869 17,869 1,000 

MOPU HOLDING SINGAPORE 100% 291,246 (6,353) (108,241) 183,005 

CEPSA (RHOUDE EL ROUNI) UMITED 100% 156,033 156,033 

CEPSA COLOMBIA, S.A. 100% 471,207 25,011 (217,313) 253,894 53,053 

COASTAL ENERGY KBM SDN BHD 70% 81,826 (1,775) (30,689) 51,137 47,782 

CEPSA COMERCIAL PETROLEO, S.A.U. 100% 219,373 219,373 240,000 

CEPSA EP, S.A.U. 100% 16,275 9,504 (6,632) 9,643 

CEPSA GAS Y ELECTRICIDAD, S.A.U. 100% 55,621 55,621 9,812 

CEPSA INTERNACIONAL B.V. 100% 196,372 196,372 

CEPSA MARINE FUELS DMCC 100% 30,323 (30,323) 

CEPSA OLEO E GAS DO BRASIL, LTDA 100% 50,432 (43,288) 7,144 

CEPSA PERU, S.A. 100% 160,096 (29,026) (60,879) 99,217 

CEPSA PORTUGUESA PETRÓLEOS S.A. 100% 65,957 65,957 6,420 

CEPSA QUIMICA, S.A. 100% 80,192 80,192 228,760 

CEPSA SURINAME, S.L.U. 100% 101,254 10,798 (66,593) 34,661 

CEPSA SEA, S.L.U. 100% 272,358 (3,810) (162,592) 109,766 

CMD AEROPUERTOS CANARIOS, S.L. 60% 12,946 12,946 

CEPSA ALGERIE, S.L. 100% 188,112 188,112 14,085 

COASTAL ENERGY MALASIA SDN BHD 100% 17,875 (342) (8,032) 9,843 

MEDGAZ S.A. 42% 139,854 139,854 36,620 

NUEVA GENERADORA DEL SUR,S.A. 50% 21,535 21,535 

CEPSA E.P. ABU DHABI, S.L. 100% 1,484,719 1,484,719 

.Q!t>� investments 84,715 (10,186) (13,101) 71,614 54,264 

Total 4,216.190 (_6,_1792 {?47,.6832 3,468,507 691,796 
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Thousands of euros 
(Impairment) 
and Reversa! 

Recognized for the year Aa:umulated Net Dividends 
2017 ownershi(!% Cost (Note 16.6} imiE?irment fnvestment recelved 

ASFALTOS ESPAÑOLES, S.A. 50% 17,869 17,869 

MOPU HOLDING SINGAPORE 100% 283,812 (101,888) (101,888) 181,924 

CEPSA (RHOUDE EL ROUNI) LIMITED 100% 148,955 148,955 

CEPSA COLOMBIA, S.A. 100% 636,191 (65,990) (242,324) 393,867 

COASTAL ENERGY KBM SDN BHD 70% 80,540 (28,914) (28,914) 51,626 23,373 

CEPSA COMERCIAL PETROLEO, S.A.U. 100% 219,373 2,019 219,373 143,558 

CEPSA EP, S.A.U. 100% 16,275 (16,136) 139 

CEPSA GAS Y ELECTRICIDAD, S.A.U. 100% 55,621 55,621 

CEPSA INTERNACIONAL B.V. 100% 187,515 187,515 

CEPSA KENYA LIMITED 98% 74,407 (23,343) (73,596) 811 

CEPSA MARINE FUELS DMCC 100% 30,323 (30,323) 

CEPSA OLEO E GAS DO BRASIL, LTDA 100% 47,276 (16,171) (43,288) 3,988 

CEPSA PERU, S.A. 100% 154,639 (1,119) (31,853) 122,786 

CEPSA PORTUGUESA PETRÓLEOS S.A. 100% 125,957 125,957 7,800 

CEPSA QUIMICA, S.A. 100% 80,192 80,192 65,299 

CEPSA SURINAME, S.L.U. 100% 101,254 (31,754) (77,391) 23,863 

CEPSA SEA, S.L.U. 100% 267,257 (158,782) (158,782) 108,475 

CMD AEROPUERTOS CANARIOS, S.L. 60% 12,946 12,946 5,499 

COASTAL ENERGY MALASIA SDN BHD 100% 17,875 (5,704) (7,690) 10,185 

MEDGAZS.A. 42% 148,904 148,904 38,430 

NUEVA GENERADORA DEL SUR,S.A. 50% 21,535 7,046 21,535 

PLASTIA CANTES DE LUTXANA, S.A. 100% 6,258 605 (2,630) 3,628 

Other investments 43,049 3,800 (284) 42,765 104,963 

To@I 2,778,023 {_420,1952 (§_15,0992 1,962,924 388,922 

As at December 31, 2018, none of the Group companies were listed on a stock exchange, The Company 
considers that it exercises control ar significant influence over the companies in which it controls more than 
50% ar 20%, respective/y, of their share capital, except in the case of the subsidíary Cepsa International, 
B.V., named Cosmo Abu Dhabi Energy E&P, Ca Ltd, in which, despite having only a 12% shareholding, it
has one representative on the Board of Directors.

Additionally, it should be noted that in 2018, there were no changes in control. 

Main movements in 2018: 

Cepsa Petronuba, S.A.U. was acquired for 60 thousand euros, as well as the remaining ownership 
interest (to 100%) in Cepsa Panamá, S.A.U. for 146 thousand euros. 

Distribution of share premium by Cepsa Colombia, S.L. amounting to 185,684 thousand euros, by 
Cepsa Portuguesa Petróleos, S.A. for 60,000 thousand euros and by Medgaz, S.A. amounting to 9,050 
thousand euros. 

Creation of the companies Cepsa Treasury, S.L.U., Cepsa Finance, S.L.U and Cepsa E.P. Mexico, S. de 
R.L. de C.V.

Capital increase by Cepsa Oleo gas do Brasil LTDA amounting to 3,156 thousand euros and of Cepsa 
Algerie S.L. by means of a contribution from the branch of activity in Timimoum valued at 133,033 
thousand euros. (Note 2.5) 

Owner contributions in Cepsa EP Abu Dhabi, S.L. amounting to 1,368,650 thousand euros, Cepsa Gas 
Comercializadora S.A. amounting to 13,090 thousand euros, Cepsa Panamá S.A.U. amounting to 
21,966 thousand euros and Cepsa Algerie S.L. amounting to 53,820 thousand euros. 

Liquidation of Cepsa Kenya Limited. 
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In 2018, CEPSA applied fair value hedge accounting criteria to its equity instruments in group 
companies and associates, increasing the cost of the investments in: Cepsa Colombia, S.A.; Cepsa 
International B.V.; Cepsa Rhoude El Rouni Limited; Cepsa Sea, S.L.U.; Coastal Energy KBM SDN, BHD; 
Mopu Holdings (Singapore) pte Limited, Cepsa Perú, S.A., Cepsa Algerie S.L. and Cepsa EP Abu Dhabi 
S.L. by 20,700 thousand euros, 8,858 thousand euros, 7,078 thousand euros, 5,101 thousand euros,
1,285 thousand euros, 7,434 thousand euros, 5,457, 1,192 and 116,066 thousand euros, respectively.

Main movements in 2017: 

Partial spin-off of Cepsa EP, S.A. through the en bloc transfer of the activity assumed from Cepsa E.P. 
ASIA in favor of Cepsa Sea, S.L.U. at the net value of 686,338 thousand euros. 

Distribution of dividends by Cepsa SEA, S.L. in the amount of 344,996 thousand euros. 

Cepsa Comercial Noroeste S.L.U. was absorbed by Cepsa Comercial Petróleo S.A.U. 

A capital increase in Cepsa Perú, S.A. of 40,523 thousand euros, Cepsa Bioenergía San Roque, S.L. in 
the amount of 8,000 thousand euros, Cepsa Oleo e Gas Do Brasil, LTDA of 5,973 thousand euros, 
Cepsa Kenya Limited of 10,292 thousand euros, and Nueva Generadora del Sur, S.A. of 14,490 
thousand euros. 

Owner contributions to Cepsa Suriname, S.L. in the amount of 21,400 thousand euros. 

Creation of Cepsa EP Abu Dhabi, S.L. 

Purchase of 70% in Coastal Energy KBM SDN, BHD far 80,943 thousand euros, and purchase of 100% 
in Mopu Holdings (Singapore) Pte Limited in the amount of 287,355 thousand euros. 

In 2017, CEPSA applied fair value hedge accounting criteria to its equity instruments in group 
companies and associates, diminishing the cost of the investments in: Cepsa Colombia, S.A.; Cepsa 
International B.V.; Cepsa Rhoude El Rouni Limited; Cepsa Sea, S.L.U.; Coastal Energy KBM SON, BHD; 
Mopu Holdings (Singapore) Pte Limited and Cepsa Perú, S.A. for 58,603 thousand euros, 23,990 
thousand euros, 19,140 thousand euros, 74,105 thousand euros, 402 thousand euros, 3,542 thousand 
euros, and 8,405 thousand euros, respectively. 

In 2018 and 2017, CEPSA recognized the necessary impairment losses to adjust the cost of investments in 
group companies and associates in the financia! statements, according to the recoverable amount of the 
present value of future cash flows from the investment. The cash flows were calculated in accordance with 
the principies described 4.1.g. The impairments recorded were mainly due to the expected decline in future 
prices and the updating of the oil and gas reserves estimates far certain assets. 

Table I (in the final pages of these explanatory notes) contains a breakdown of companies holding 
significant direct ownership interests in CEPSA as at December 31, 2018, a breakdown of their equity and 
information on their activity. A breakdown of the companies in which CEPSA has an indirect shareholding 
is also included in Table II. 

8.4 Joint ventures 

Set forth below far 2018 and 2017 is a breakdown of the main joint ventures operated as jointly-controlled 
ventures and assets in which CEPSA has an ownership interest. The accompanying financia! statements 
include the assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses in proportion to the Company's percentage of 
ownership. 
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Thousands of euros 

Sales in 
2018 Uneof Owner ship thousands 
Joint Venture Holdil)!IS Count!)'. ()perator Business % Joint Venlure Assets of euros lnalme t.ax 

Plant and machinery 

Algeria Sonatrach 
Exploration and 

37.1% 85,530 453,745 (105,810) 
Ourhoud Field rodudion 

ToliJI 85.530 453.745 (105,810) 

Thousands of euros 

Sales in 
2017 Uneof Ownershlp thousands 
Joint Venture Holdin s Coun rator Business % Joint Venture Assets of euros Incometax 

Plant and machinery 

Algeria Sonatrach 
Exploratlon and 

39.8% 99,940 324,332 (114,884) 
Ourhoud Field produdion 

Algeria 
Total Exploration & Exploration and 

11.3% 157,493 
l7 mimo un Field Productlon A l¡¡erie produdion 

Tofill 257,_43l. 324,d.32 (J14,eo4¿ 

Revenue from the Rhourde el Krouf (RKF) (100% owned by CEPSA until October 9, 2018) and Ourhoud 
oilfields is obtained on a unit basis, thus optimizing the rights generated by the exploitation of the two 
fields. Sales therefore include revenues from both oilfields. 

In 2018, as a result of the non-monetary contribution described in Note 2.5, the assets associated with the 
Timimoun block were derecognized. 

In 2016, an agreement with Sonatrach was signed, strengthening our collaboration with that Company in 
the long-term projects underway in Algeria. A framework agreement was obtained for signing a concession 
contract for the operating license for the RKF field for 25 years, and to extend our presence in the Ourhoud 
field through an extension of the current production distribution contract for a 10-year period commencing 
December 2019. 

During December 2017, RKF's inclusion in the current 406A block contract was extended from May 2016 
to the approval of RKF's concession agreement. This extension became effective subsequent to the Council 
of Ministers signing the approval decree, the last 5th of June 2018. 

In January 2018, the parties signed the RKF cession agreement with a 49% investment, which became 
effective after the approval of the Council of Ministers, and publication in the "JOURNAL OFFICIEL DE LA 
REPUBLIQUE ALGERIENNE" (JORA) on 10th October 2018. 

9. Derivative financial instruments

Pursuant to the risk management policies explained in note 21, CEPSA uses derivative financia! instruments 
to hedge the foreign currency, interest rate and commodity price risks to which future cash flows are 
exposed. 

The types of derivatives normally used are "forward" contracts to hedge foreign currency risk, "swap" 
contracts to hedge interest rates and futures and "swap contracts" to hedge "commodity" price risk. The 
transaction limits and the hedging instruments are approved by Group management and the monitoring 
process observes the separation of the performance and control functions. 

The following derivatives were not designated as hedging instruments since they do not meet all the 
requirements to qualify for hedge accounting, established in the Spanish GMP. At 2018 and 2017 year
end, the characteristics of CEPSA's derivative financia! instruments not assigned to hedge accounting were 
as follows: 
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2018 

Currency forward (Note 13.2) 

Currency forward Group Companies 

Exchange rate swaps 

Product swaps Group Companies (Note 8.2) 

Total 

2017 

Currency forward (Note 13.2) 
Currency forward Group Companies 
Exchange rate swaps 
Product swaps Group Companies (Note 8.2) 

Total 

Fair value 

Asset U 

562 

562 

(910) 
(275) 

(2,980) 

(222) 

(4,387) 

Fafr value 

Asset 

2,008 

2,008 

Llability 

(2,029) 
(358) 

(10,251) 
(1,530) 

(14,168) 

Thousands of euros 

Notional or 
contractual value 

96,070 

43,471 

174,672 

11,319 

325,532 

Thousands of euros 

Notional or 
contractual value 

132,344 
26,428 

166,764 
56,848 

382,384 

The notional or contractual amounts of the contracts settled do not reflect the actual risk assumed by 
CEPSA, since these amounts only constitute the basis on which the derivative's settlement calculations were 
made. 

The maturity of abovementioned currency forward is January 31, 2019 and the impact recorded through 
the income statement with changes in fair value amounted to 1,185 thousand euros in 2018 and 2,387 
thousand euros in 2017. 

Toe maturity of abovementioned product swaps is October 31, 2019 and the impact recorded through the 
income statement with changes in fair value amounted to 340 thousand euros in 2018, and 478 thousand 
euros in 2017. 

The maturity of abovementioned exchange rate swaps is July 14, 2021 and the impact recorded through 
the income statement with changes in fair value amounted to 2,980 thousand euros in 2018 and 10,251 
thousand euros in 2017. 

At the end of 2018 and 2017, the following foreign currency financia! instruments were recognized as fair 
value hedges: 

2018 

Currency forward (Note 8.2) 

Total 

Asset 

2,720 

2720 

Thousands of euros 

Notional or 
contractual value 

253,275 

253275 

Thousands of euros 

Fair value Notional or 
2017 Asset Liabill contractual value 

Currency forward 7,641 338,906 

�T.�o�ta�! ________________ _,7'-'-"-64�J,__ ________ 338,90€_ 

At the end of 2018 and 2017, the following derivative instruments were documented as cash flow hedges: 

Cash Flow Hedges 

Thousands of euros 

Notional or 

-=2=0=1=8 ________________ _,A=sse==t---=L=ia=b=i=li=-<- contractual value 

Interest rate swap (note 8,1) 1.069 (1,304) 335,839 
Total 1,069 (1,304) 335,839 
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2017 

Interest rate swap 

Total 

Thousands of euros 

Cash Flow Hedges Notional or 

Asset Liabilitv contractual value 

2,873 491,895 

2873 491895 

These instruments cover the interest on loans in USD, for the same notional amount. The fair value of 
these financia! derivative instruments as at December 31 2018, net of their tax effect, leads to an additional 
equity amount of 439 thousand euros at year-end 2018 under the "Value change adjustments" caption 
(December 31, 2017: 1,728 thousand euros). 

10. Inventaries

The breakdown of "Inventaries" as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as follows: 

Inventories 

Goods for resale 

Raw materials 

Materials and other inventaries 

By-products and recovered materials 

Refined finished products 

Advances to suppliers 

Total 

Thousands of euros 

�� �lZ 
62,593 20,768 

593,992 614,409 

94,940 109,912 

9,870 8,783 

935,928 709,509 

177 245 

1 697.500 1463626 

Pursuant to the Directorate-General of Energy Policy and Mining resolution dated March 30, 2009, Cepsa 
and other Group companies which act as operators are required to maintain mínimum oil product safety 
stocks equivalent to 50 days of sales of the preceding 12 months in the domestic market, excluding sales 
to other wholesalers, and CORES (Corporation of Strategic Reserves of Oil-based Products) inspects and 
controls the fulfillment of this obligation. Cepsa management considers that the consolidated Group has 
been meeting this obligation. 

As indicated in Note 4.6, CEPSA uses the Average Unit Cost Method to measure its inventaries of raw 
materials and goods hefd for resale. 

The changes in impairment losses in the "Inventaries" caption of the attached balance sheet were as 
follows: 

Thousands of euros 

Balance at Additions Disposal o Balance at 
2018 01.01.18 Transfers for the year additions 12.31.18 

Impairment of merchandise (C02) 35 35 

ImQairment of finished goods 619 28,515 29,134 

Total 654 28515 29169 

Thousands of euros 

Balance at Additions Disposal o Balance at 

2017 01.01.17 Transfers for the year addltions 12.31.17 

Impairment of merchandise (C02) 37 (2) 35 

Impairment of f inished goods 1,249 (630} 619

Total 1,286 (6322 654
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At the end of 2018, CEPSA had not inventory purchase commitments. 

At the end of 2018 and 2017, CEPSA had leased to third parties inventaries of 47,960 MT and 28,414 MT, 
respectively. 

11. Eguity

11.1 Share capital and Share premium 

Share capital amounts to 267,574,941 euros and consists of 535,149,882 book-entry ordinary shares, 
totally subscribed and paid, with a par value of 0.5 euro each. 

In September of this year, the nominal value of the shares was split, going from a nominal value of one 
euro to 0.5 euro per share. 

The sale shareholder and title holder of the entirety of CEPSA shares, representing the 100% of the share 
capital, is Cepsa Holding LLC. The parent company of Cepsa Holding LLC is Mubadala Development 
Company PJSC ("MDC"), ultimately controlled by Mubadala Investment Company PJSC ("MIC"), as of 
december 2018, 31st (See Note 1.a). 

Toe Spanish Companies Act permits the use of the share premium account balance to increase share capital 
and establishes no specific restrictions as to its use. There were no changes in 2018 or 2017 in the balance 
in this account, which amounts to 338,728 thousand euros. 

11.2 Legal reserve 

Under the Spanish Companies Act, 10% of net profit far each year must be transferred to legal reserves 
until the balance reaches at least 20% of the share capital. Such reserve can be used to increase capital 
provided that the remaining reserve balance does not fall below 10% of the increased share capital amount. 
Otherwise, until the legal reserve exceeds 20% of share capital, it can only be used to offset losses, 
provided that sufficient other reserves are not available far that purpose. 

As at December 31, 2018, CEPSA's legal reserve is fully funded in the amount of 53,605 thousand euros. 

11.3 Other reserves 

As indicated in note 5, in 2017 the Board of Directors approved the spin-off of the Canary Islands service 
station business in favor of the subsidiary Cepsa Comercial Petróleo, S.A.U .. 

As a result, all the assets and the liabilities associated to the business were derecognized, with a net impact 
recorded as a decrease in reserves under "Other reserves" in the amount of (121,878) thousand euros. 

11.4 Revaluation reserve 

This reserve in the amount of 212,572 thousand euros, relates to the revaluations made pursuant to the 
1979 State Budget Law 1/1979, 1981 State Budget Law 74/1980, Royal Decree-Law 7/1996, of June 7, 
and Royal Decree- Law 16/ 2012 on asset revaluations. 

Toe entire balance of the afarementioned revaluations relating to State Budget Law 1/1979 and State 
Budget Law 74/1980, amounting to 15,896 thousand and 16,602 thousand euros, respectively, can be 
transferred to unrestricted voluntary reserves. The balance shown under "Revaluation reserve, Royal 
Decree-Law 7/1996," of June 7, which amounts to 58,438 thousand euros, is still subject to the restrictions 
contained in the legislation under which it was recognized and can be used, free of tax, to eliminate 
recognized losses and to increase capital. 

From January 1, 2007 (i.e. ten years after the date of the balance sheet reflecting the revaluation 
transactions), the balance of this reserve can be taken to unrestricted reserves, provided that the monetary 
surplus has been realized. The surplus will be deemed to have been realized in respect of the portian on 
which depreciation has been taken far accounting purposes or when the revalued assets have been 
transferred or derecognized. 
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As at December 31, 2018, the unrestricted balance of this reserve amounted to 58,438 thousand euros, 
included in "Other reserves" in the balance sheet. If this balance were used in a manner other than that 
provided for in Royal Decree-Law 7/1996, it would be subject to tax. 

In accordance with Royal Decree-law 16/2012 the revaluation reserve has a balance of 121,635 thousand 
euros as at December 31, 2018. Its balance will be unavailable until it is checked and accepted by the 
Administration. The balance must be verified within three years from the filing date of the special return. 

Once verified by the tax authorities, or after three years, the balance may be used to offset losses orto 
increase capital; 10 years after the 2012 balance restatement, it may be used for unrestricted reserves. 
However, the reserve may only be directly or indirectly distributed when the revalued assets have been 
totally depreciated, transferred ar derecognized. 

11.5 Adjustments for changes in value 

The breakdown by nature of the other valuation adjustments in 2018 and 2017 was the following: 

Thousands of euros 

Hedging transactions 

Tax effect of hedging transactions 

Total 

2018 

(585) 

146 

{439) 

11.6 Grants, donations or gifts and bequests received 

2017 

2,304 

(576) 

1,728 

The information on the grants received by the Company in 2018 and 2017, which are part of equity, net of 
the tax effeet, and on the amounts taken to the income statement in this connection is as follows: 

2018 Thousands of euros 

Dea-eases and 
Balance at transfer to Balance at 

Aaengi" Territorial Extenslon 0ll01l2018 Increases lnaime 1.2[31[2018 

Grants Received 

Ministry of Tourism and Trade Central Government 4,443 (718) 3,725 

Ministry of Economy and Finance Central Government 999 389 (462) 926 

Ministry of Science and Innovation Central Government 113 (76) 37 
Ministry of the Environment and Rural and Marine 
Affairs (Note 20) Central Governm ent 684 21,279 (20,254) 1,709 

Andalusia Autonomous R�ion Autonomous Regían 4,686 (638) 4,048 

Total 10,925 21,668 (22,148) 10,445 

Thousands of euros 

Deaeases and 
Balance at transfer to Balance at 

Ageng: Territorial Extenslon 0ll0ll201s Increases income 12[31[2018 

Tax effect 

Ministry of Tourism and Trade Central Government (1,110) 180 (930) 

Ministry of Economy and Finance Central Government (252) (97) 116 (233) 

Ministry of Science and Innovation Central Government (29) 19 (10) 
Ministry of the Environment and Rural and Marine 
Affairs (Note 20) Central Government (170) (5,320) 5,064 (426) 

Andalus,a Autonornous R�1on Auronomous R�1on (1,171) 159 (1,012} 

Total (_2,732) (_5,417) 5,538 {.?,611) 

Total orants net of the tax effect 8,193 16,251 (_16,610) 7,834 
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2017 Thousands of euros 

Deaeases ami 

Balance at transfer to Balance at 

A e Territorial Extenslon 01 01 2017 Inaeases ill<lOme 12 31 2017 

Grants Received 

Ministry ofTourism and Trade Central Government 5,161 (718) 4,443 

Ministry of Economy and Finance Central Government 1,095 157 (253) 999 

Ministry of Sdence and Innova�on Central Government 193 (80) 113 
Ministry of the Environment and Rural and 

Central Government 4,303 17,044 (20,663) 684Marine Affairs (Note 20) 

Andalusia Autonomous Region Autonomous Region 3,416 2,232 (962) 4,686 

Total 14,168 19,433 (22,676) 10,925 

Thousands of euros 

Decreases ami 

Balance at transfer to Balance at 

A e Territorial Extension 01 01 2017 Increases ill<lOme 12l31l2011 

Taxeffect 

Ministry of Tourism and Trade Central Government (1,290) 180 (1,110) 

Ministry of Economy and Finance Central Government (274) (41) 63 (252) 

Ministry of Science and Innova�on Central Government (49) 20 (29) 
Ministry of the Environment and Rural and 

Central Government (1,076) (4,260) 5,166 (170) Marine Affairs (Note 20) 

Andalusia Autonomous Region Autonomous Region (854) (558) 241 (1,171) 

Total (3,543) (4,859) 5,670 (2,732) 

Total r¡_rants net of tbe tax effet:t 10,625 ./11,574 [17,006) 8,193 

CEPSA considers that all the requirements to ensure that the grants received are not repayable have been 
met. 

12. Provísions and contingencies

12.1 Provisions 

The breakdown of the non-current provisions in the accompanying balance sheets and of the main changes 
therein in 2018 is as follows: 

Thousands of euros 

Balanoe at Revaluatlon Balance at 

01 01 201B Additions lncreases Amounts used 12 31 2018 

Long-term employee benefit obligations 9,813 1,959 145 (2,076) 9,841 

Environmental contingendes (note 18) 15,954 218 (61) 16,111

Restructuring provision 1,833 1,833 

Other ¡;,rovisions 247,205 17,679 5,343 (22,800) 247,427

Total 274,805 19,638 5,.706 (24,937¿ 275,.212 

The breakdown of the current provisions in the accompanying balance sheet and of the main changes in 
2018 is as follows: 

Short-term provisions 

Provision for Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Note 20) 

Restructuring provision 

Total 
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12.2 Provisions for employee benefit obligations 

a) Non-current defined contribution obligations

The amounts recognized by CEPSA in 2018 and 2017 as an expense far defined contribution obligations 
under "Staff costs" on the income statement are as follows: 

Retirement (Pension Plan) 

Life Insurance 

Total {Note 16r42 

b) Non-current defined benefit obligations

2018 

4,321 

4 146 

8,467 

Thousands of euros 

2017 

4,108 

4 075 

8,183 

The net amounts of íncome and expenses recognízed in the íncome statement and the changes in defined 
benefít obligations on the liability side of the balance sheet in 2018 and 2017 are as follows: 

Beoínning_ Balance 2017 
Plan contributions 

Financia! cost 

Pa}:'.ments made 

Closing_ Balance 2017 

Beoinninq_ Balance 2018 
Plan contributions 

Financia! cost 

Pa}:'.ments made 

Closinq_ Balance 2018 

Thousands of euros 

Commitments 
j!resent value Balance 

9,800 9,800 

1,924 1,924 

145 145 

(2,056) (2,056) 

9r813 9,813 

9,813 9,813 

1,959 1,959 

145 145 

(2,076) (2,076) 

9,841 9,_841 

Of this balance, in 2018 3,960 thousand euros corresponded to the commitment arising from the closing 
of company stores, and 5,881 thousand euros corresponded to the provision recorded to cover future 
employee loyalty payment commitments (Note 4.13). 

The maín assumptions used to determine the pension obligations and post-employment benefits under 
CEPSA's plans are as follows: 

Company stores - Loyalty award 

Discount rate 

Expected salary increase rate 

Age of retirement 

Mortality tables 

12.3 Environmental provisions 

Thousands of euros 

2018 

1.5% 

0.3% 

65 

PEMF2000 

2017 

1.5% 

0.3% 

65 

PEMF2000 

CEPSA records a provisíon far environmental risks and charges, whích amounted to 15,954 thousand euros 
as at December 31, 2017 and had changes during the 2018 year of additions of 218 thousand euros and 
deregistration of 61 thousand euros. The balance as at December 31, 2018 is 16,111 thousand euros. 

The above provision covers expenses incurred by resolving the gradual land contamination, partially 
covered by insurance policies in force. 
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12.4 Restructuring provisions 

In 2014, there were layoffs at the Company's facilities in Madrid, the Gibraltar-San Roque refinery, and the 
La Rábida refinery. By the end of 2014, all personnel had been terminated except far the Huelva refinery 
which was completed in February 2015. 

As at December 31, 2018, and December 2017, the respective balances of this provision whích 
corresponded to commítments with public authoritíes were 20,109 thousand euros and 1,833 thousand 
euros (current and non-current, respectively). 

12.5 Other provisions 

The breakdown of the changes in 2018 and the balances at each year end are as fallows: 

Thousands of euros 

Balance at Revaluatlon Balance at 

01[01[2018 Additions lncreases Amounts used 12[31[2018 

Provision for taxes 116,276 1,253 3,251 120,780 

Provision for third-party liability 3,722 781 1 (123) 4,381

Provisions far other exeenses 127,207 15,645 2,091 (22,677) 122,266 

Total 247,.205 17,.679 5,_343 (22,8002 247,.427 

The prov1s1on far "taxes" reflects the amounts recognízed by the Company to cover possible tax 
contingencies arising from the contested assessments (note 14). 

The provísíons far "other liabilities" and "other expenses" cover the contingencies arising from CEPSA's 
ordínary operatíons and its relationships with thírd parties, and those arising from contractual matters 
relating to the limits on the ownership percentages of the Ourhoud field in Algeria held by the shareholders. 

CEPSA's management considers that the provisions recognized in the accompanying balance sheet 
adequately cover the risks relating to litigation, arbitration proceedings and other transactions described in 
this note and therefare do not expect that any additional liabilities will arise. 

In view of the nature of the contingencies covered by these provisions, it is not possible to determine a 
reasonable schedule far the related payments, if any. 

13. Financia! liabilities (Non-current and current)

13.1 Non-current financia! liabilities 

The book value by category of the non-current financia! liabilities at 2018 and 2017 is as fallows: 

Categories 

Payables 

Derivatives (Note 9) 

Total 

Classes Bank borrowings and 
finance leases 

2018 2017 

2,680,371 1,342,469 

2,680,371 1,342,469 

Thousands of euros 

Other finandal liabilities Total 

2018 2017 2018 2017 

26,280 36,919 2,706,651 1,379,388 

4,284 10,251 4,284 10,251 

30,564 47,170 2,710,935 1,389,639 

The breakdown, by maturity, of "non-current payables" as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 is as fallows: 
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2018 

Bank Borrowings 

Derivalives 

Other financial liabilities 

Total 

2017 

Bank Borrowings 

Derivatives 

Other financial liabilities 

Total 

13.2 Current financia! liabilities 

2020 

29,274 

9,487 

38,761 

2019 

83,270 

10,156 

93,426 

2021 2022 

947,161 299,944 

2,980 

7,689 4,299 

957,830 304,243 

2020 2021 

341,657 572,339 

10,251 

9,447 7,574 

351,104 590,164 

Thousands of euros 

Maturing in 

2023 Resto Total 

1,056,735 347,257 2,680,371 

1,304 4,284 

1,976 2,829 26,280 

1,058,711 351,390 2,710,935 

Thousands of euros 

Maturlng in 

2022 Resto Total 

50,455 294,748 1,342,469 

10,251 

3,911 5,831 36,919 

54,366 300,579 1,389,639 

The carrying amount by category of the current financia! liabilities at 2018 and 2017 is as follows: 

Categories 

Payables 

Derivatives (Note 9) 

Total 

Classes Bank borrowings and 
flnance leases 

2018 2017 

201,671 292,742 

201,671 292,742 

Thousands of euros 

Other finandal liabilities Total 

2018 2017 2018 2017 

2,532,538 3,030,293 2,734,209 3,323,035 

910 2,029 910 2,029 

2,533,448 3,032,322 2,735,119 3,325,064 

The average annual nominal interest rate on the short and long-term loans received in euros was 0.32% 
in 2018 and 0.29% in 2017. The interest rate on loans in foreign currencies was 2.83% in 2018 and 2.24% 
in 2017. The overall average annual interest rate on the loans received was 2.38% in 2018 and 1.75% in 
2017. The fair value of these financia! liabilities coincides basically with their carrying amount as they relate 
mainly to loans with variable interest rates. 

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, CEPSA had unused credit facilities amounting to more than 2.214.630 
thousand and 1,712,150 thousand euros, respectively, with various banks (note 21). 

The Company arranged bank borrowings subject to certain covenants, basically linked to consolidated 
EBITDA <1l and consolidated net debt. As at December 31, 2018, the Company was in compliance with 
those covenants and thus no early repayment was required. 

(1l Earnings befare interests, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) includes operating revenue and expenses far each operating
segment or business area and excludes depreciation, amortization and results from assets sold, financia! results and results from 
equity investments. 

13.3 Information on the average supplier payment period 

In accordance with the stipulations established in the third additional provision of Law 15/2010, of July 5, 
modified by Law 31/2014, of December 3, and the ICAC Resolution of January 29, 2016, on information 
concerning average payment periods to suppliers in commercial transactions to be included in the notes to 
financia! statements, the breakdown of payments made and pending, as well as the related ratios, is as 
follows: 
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Average supplier payment period 
Ratio of payment made 
Ratio of pending payments 

Total payments made 
Total pending payments 

14. Tax matters

14.1 Current tax balances 

Days 

2018 2017 

22 23 
22 23 
19 16 

Thousands of euros 

2018 2017 

23,505,221 
638,819 

18,918,894 
712,084 

The breakdown of current tax balances receivable from and payable to tax authorities at 2018 and 2017 
year end is as follows: 

Income tax refundable 
VAT and IGIC refundable 
Other 

Total 

Income tax payable 
VAT and IGIC payable 
Social Security payable 
Other 

Total 

2018 

105,075 
5,322 

18 494 

128891 

2018 

724 
112,342 

3,860 
12 470 

129396 

Thousands of euros 
2017 

61,498 
6,407 

41 318 

109223 

Thousands of euros 

2017 

1,857 
204,971 

3,512 
26 449 

236.789 

Since 2010, in Spain Cepsa Group has adhered to the Code of Good Tax Practices drawn up by the Large 
Companies Forum jointly with the Spanish tax authorities. 

CEPSA files consolidated income tax returns as the parent company of tax group number 4/89. The main 
balances receivable and payable with Group companies are as follows: 

Thousands of euros 
Amounts recelvable a able 2018 2017 

COASTAL ENERGY COMPANY (1,309) (765) 
CEPSA COLOMBIA, S.A. (14,643) 
CEPSA COMERCIAL PETROLEO, S.A.U. 14,180 9,032 
CEPSA TRADING, S.A.U. 4,590 2,844 
CEPSA DISCO, S.L. 2,100 
RESSA, S.A.U. 2,133 (879) 

CEPSA QUIMICA, S.A. 8,595 7,726 
CEPSA GAS Y ELECTRICIDAD, S.A.U. (1,695) 1,097 
Other Companies (1,730} (2,234) 

Total 12221 16821 

On December 3, 2016 Royal Decree-Law 3/2016 was published which adopts tax measures for the 
consolidation of public finances and introduced relevant changes in corporate income tax. Among others 
matters, with effect from January 1, 2016, the offset tax loss carryforwards far large companies is restricted 
to 25% of the previous tax base and limits the application of the interna! ar international double taxation 
generated ar pending application to 50% of the previous total tax. Additionally, with effect from January 
1, 2017, losses on the transfer of shares will not be deductible. 
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14.2 Reconciliation pre-tax profit and taxable profit 

The reconciliation of CEPSA's pre-tax profit and taxable profit for Spanish corporate tax purposes for 2018 
and 2017 is as follows: 

2018 

Accounting profit far the year (alter tax) 

Income tax 

Individual permanent differences 

Individual temporary differences 

Arising in the year 

Arising in prior years 

Loss carryforwards applíed 

Taxbase 

2017 

Accounting profit far the year (alter tax) 

Income tax 

Individual permanent differences 

Individual temporary differences 

Arising in the year 

Arising in prior years 

Loss carryforwards applied 

Taxbase 

Statement of income 

1,010,464 

Increases Decreases 

110,118 

80,090 (784,878) 

25,422 (1,490) 

54,944 (92,363) 

1,281,038 (878,731) 

Income statement 

408 276 

Inaeases Deaeases 

263,971 

480,621 (471,794) 

5,760 (1,670) 

55,496 (29,273) 

(218,645) 

1,214,124 (721,382) 

Thousands of euros 

Income and 
expenses 

reoognised 
directly in 

e ui Total 

(2,526) 1,007,938 

Decreases 

(843) 109,275 

(704,788) 

(19,987) 3,945 

23,356 (14,063) 

402,307 

Thousands of euros 

Income and 
expenses 

recognised 
directly in 

eguity Total 

4123 412 399 

Deaeases 

1,375 265,346 

8,827 

(20,165) (16,075) 

14,667 40,890 

(218,645) 

492,742 

The permanent differences a rose mainly as a result of non-deductible expenses and income not computable 
for tax purposes. The permanent differences recognízed in 2018 and 2017 related basically to Corporate 
Tax paid by the permanent establishment in Algeria not deducted in the total tax due according to the 
article 31.2 of the Corporate Tax Law 27/2014, provisions, fines, dividends distributed by Group companies, 

CEPSA is taxed in Algeria on the income obtained from the exploration and production of petroleum from 
the "Berkine" Block 406 A oilfield, in the Central-East region of the Algerian Sahara, its permanent 
establishment. The tax on remuneration for production activities in force in Algeria is deemed to be of the 
same nature as Spanish Corporate Income Tax. The current tax rate is 38% on the gross annual 
remuneration in barreis of Saharan Blend crude oil, withheld and settled through the Algerian state-owned 
company Sonatrach, in the name and on behalf of CEPSA. New legislation, applicable since 2006, was 
enacted in Algeria, introducing a new Windfall Profits Tax. On this basis, CEPSA estimated the expense to 
be borne and included in the amount under "Other taxes" in the income statement. Chargeable tax in this 
connection was 105,810 and 114,884 thousand euros in 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

Temporary differences are basically due to accrued expenses and income that will be tax-deductible in 
subsequent periods. The most significant differences are due mainly to the application of Law 4/2008 which 
regulates accelerated depreciation with maintenance of employment, application of Royal Decree 13/2010 
which regulates accelerated depreciation without maintenance of employment, and application of Law 
16/2012 which regulates balance sheets restatements limitations on the amortization/depreciation 
deductions up to 70%. Additionally it includes temporary differences from losses attributed to permanent 
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establishments in Algeria. It also includes costs from hedging, portfolio impairment losses which are 
deductible on the liquidation and the update of supplementary pension commitments. 

14.3 Taxes recognized directly in equity 

The breakdown of the taxes recognized directly in equity in 2018 and 2017 is as follows: 

Thousands of euros 

2018 Inaeases Deaeases Total 

Deferred taxes 

Arislng in the year 

Grants 5,417 5,417 

Arising in prior year 

Grants 5,537 (5,537) 

Other - cash flow hedge (722) (722) 

Total taxes recog_nized direct11:. m eqw!X_ 4,695 5,_537 (842¿ 

Thousands of euros 

2017 Increases Decreases Total 

Current tax 

Arising in the year 

Grants 4,858 4,858 

Arising in prior year 

Grants 5,669 (5,669) 

Other - cash flow bedge 2,186 2,186 

Total taxes recogpised directir_ in �ul!z'_ 7,.044 5,_669 1
(
375 

14.4 Reconciliation between the profit/(loss) for the year and income tax expense (on profit) 

The reconciliation between the profit/(loss) for the year and income tax expense (on profit) during 2018 
and 2017 is as follows: 

Thousands of euros 

2018 2017 

Recorded profit (before tax) 1,120,582 672,247 

Permanent differences (704,788) 8,827 

Income Tax rate 25% 103,949 170,269 

Tax credits applied 

Double taxation (82,019) (73,536) 

R+D+i and other (20,241) (4,773) 

Tax expense adjustment (6,026) (12,564) 

Deferred taxes adjustment 8 645 69 691 

Total tax expense/ {lncome) 4308 149087 

In calculating the income tax expense far each year, CEPSA took into account the applicable tax credits far 
dividend double taxation and investments (mainly Algeria), as well as other tax incentives, in accordance 
with applicable regulations. 

Tax adjustments included the deposit corresponding to the difference between the expense recognized far 
2017 and 2016 corporate income tax and corresponding to the definitive settlement far these years in the 
amount of (6,026) and (12,564) thousand euros, respectively. 

Far 2018 and 2017 the deferred tax adjustment includes, inter alía, the adjustment of deferred tax assets 
arising from portfolio impairment in the portian relating to fareign subsidiaries whose performance depends 
on the exchange rate, which gave rise to higher expenses of 8,012 thousand euros and 92,433 thousand 
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euros, respectively. Deferred tax arising from the settlement of the subsidiary Cepsa Kenya Limited, which 
gave rise to income of 18,411 thousand euros, and the amount of the requests far rectification of self
settlement of income tax far 2013-2014-2015, amounting to 9,854 thousand euros of income, was 
recognized in 2017. 

14.5 Corporate tax expense breakdown 

The breakdown of the corporate tax expense (income) far 2018 and 2017 is as follows: 

Current tax 

Continuing operations 

Deferred tax 

Continuing operations 

Total fax expense I (inrome) 

14.6 Recorded deferred tax assets 

2018 

(7,709) 

12,017 

4,308 

Thousands of euros 

2017 

86,974 

62,113 

149,087 

The breakdown of the deferred tax assets recognized in 2018 and 2017 is as follows: 

Non-current assets (Depreciation /amortisation and other) 

Impairment of group companies investment 
Other provisions 

Tax loss carryforwards 

Deductions pending application 

Other 

Total dererred tax assets 

2018 

12,262 

366,711 

7,731 

264 

31 912 

418880 

Thousands of euro� 

2017 

16,015 

376,100 

7,865 

351 

10,916 

26 220 

437.467 

"Impairment of portfolio and loans" mainly includes the tax credit generated by the impairment of the 
investment in the Coastal Group companies, as these companies will be liquidated. 

As at December 31, 2018, the Company had 264 thousand euros of unused tax loss carryforwards. Based 
on prevailing legislation, double taxation deductions do not lose validity. Other deductions generally expire 
after 10 years. 

Pursuant to Article 94.1.a, "Tax credits far investments in the Canary Islands", of Law 20/1991, of June 7, 
"Canary Island Tax Law", the fallowing tax credits were taken: 

Investments new non-current assests 
Tax credit 

2018 

15,597 

3,899 

Thousands of euros 

2017 

9,216 

2,304 

These investments should remain in service at the Company far either five years, three years in the case 
of movable property, or the related useful life, whichever is shorter. 

These tax credits were recognized in the balance sheets far both years. Based on the best estimate of the 
Company's future earnings, recovery is considered probable. 

14. 7 Deferred tax liabilities

The breakdown of the deferred tax assets recognized in 2018 and 2017 is as follows: 
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Investments new non-current assests 
Tax credit 

Grants, donations 

Other 

TotiJI deferred tax liabilities 

2018 

94,723 
2,375 

2,612 

2 683 

102,393 

Thousands of euros 

2017 

108,270 
895 

2,732 

3 103 

115,000 

Deferred tax liabilities relating to property, plant, and equipment include the effect of accelerated 
depreciation in accordance with Law 4/2008, due to the start-up of the assets in question for expansion of 
the La Rábida refinery. They also include the assets subject to accelerated depreciation as per Royal Decree 
Law 13/2010. 

The eleventh additional provision of the Corporate Tax Law applied to accelerated depreciation with 
maintenance of employment and reversa! of the same was: 

2018 

Depreciation far the period (44,611) 

Thousands of euros 

2017 

(44,726) 

At the end of the reporting period the requirements of the eleventh additional provision were met. 

Unrestricted amortization/ depreciation and its reversa! not subject to maintenance of employment in 2018 
and 2017 amounted to (6,137) thousand and (6,139) thousand euros, respectively. 

14.8 Years open to tax inspection and results of previous inspections 

Under current legislation, taxes are not deemed definitively settled until the filed tax returns have been 
reviewed by the tax authorities or until the faur-year statute-of-limitations has expired. 

There are assessments signed in lack of confarmity for different taxes, including corporate income tax far 
which the CEPSA Group has filed the corresponding appeals befare the corresponding courts. The Company 
had recognized a provision until year-end 2018 far the entire amounts determined by said tax assessments 
and related late-payment interest (Note 12). 

The tax inspections far the years 2013-2016, relating to Corporate Income Tax, VAT, Personal Income Tax 
Withholdings, and Non-Resident Income Tax far the Cepsa Tax Group were initiated in July 2018. CEPSA 
directors do not expect any additional material liabilities to arise far which provisions have not been 
recognized as a result of the appeals filed or inspections of the years not statute-barred. Likewise, years 
2017 and 2018, remain open for inspection. 

The Company files VAT returns as part of the VAT Group number 2800/08. 

In the opinion of the Company's directors and its tax advisors, related parties transactions are carried out 
at arm's length, transfer prices are adequately supported and it is estimated that there is no significant risk 
of material liabilities arising in the future in this respect. 

15. Foreign currency balances and transactions

Toe breakdown of balances and transactions in foreign currency, mostly in US dollars, valued at the year
end exchange rate and the average exchange rates for the years 2018 and 2017, is as fallows: 
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Trade and other receivables 

Loans to group companies and third parties 

Other long and short term financia! assets 

Trade and other payables 

Long and short term bank borrowings and loans to group companies 

Other financia! liabilities 

Sales 

Purchases 

Services provided 

Services received 

Finance income 

Fi nance expense 

2018 

459,298 

11,825 

411,677 

973,482 

2,853,211 

47,860 

6,209,261 

11,571,334 

5,287 

212,739 

283,752 

249,741 

Thousands of euros 

2017 

430,252 

132,878 

700,848 

676,080 

1,734,338 

117,176 

4,534,031 

8,789,183 

2,254 

190,230 

127,636 

241,370 

The gains (losses) on exchange recognized in the income statement for 2018 and 2017, by class offinancial 
instrument, are as follows: 

2018 

Financia! Assets 

Loans 

Other 

Fair value hedge 

Total 

Financia! Liabilities 

Bank debt 

Debt securities and other liabilities 

Other 

Total 

2017 

Financia! Assets 

Loans 

other 

Fair value hedge 

Total 

Financia! Uabilities 

Bank debt 

Debt securities and other liabilities 

Other 

Total 
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Transactions 
settled in the l{ear 

3,924 

171,280 

175,204 

191,811 

(2,499) 

(168,420) 

20,892 

Transactions 
settled in the year 

3,046 

(14,934) 

{11,888} 

30,062 

(2,949) 

8 140 

35253 

Thousands of euros 

Balances pending 
maturi� Total 

(363,065) (359,141) 

2,275 173,555 

186,845 186,845 

(173,945) 1,259 

(45,686) 146,125 

8,181 5,682 

(1,802) (170,222) 

09,307) (18, 4152 

Thousands of euros 

Balances pending 
maturity Total 

(100,366) (97,320) 

(8,123) (23,057) 

(165,764) (165,764) 

{274,253} {286,141) 

181,072 211,134 

130,097 127,148 

4 137 12 277 

315306 350559 
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16. Revenue and expenses

16.1 Revenue 

The breakdown of CEPSA's revenue in 2018 and 2017 by geographical area and line of business is as 
follows: 

Activitíes 

Hydrocarbon deríved products 

Petrochemical deríved products 

Crude oíl 

Gas and power 

Services Províded 
-=e'-'-""-=-'---'--'==------- - - -

Total 

Products Sales 

Spaín 

Rest European Unían 

Middle East 

A frica 

Rest of the world 

Total 

Thousands of euros 

2018 2017 

17,193,524 14,269,428 

1,044,407 969,936 

346,767 209,982 

540,887 372,891 

___ ___,3
C.C
3
'----'
4

"-'
3
'--=
1=3 __ -=3=32,216 

19 459 898 16154 45.J 

Thousands of euros 

2018 2017 

15,932,337 13,761,497 

893,284 694,260 

60,560 43,732 

1,753,037 1,039,985 

820 680 614 979 

19459898 16154.453 

In 2018 and 2017, sales from exchanges arranged by other operators not included in "Revenue" amounted 
to 1,386,970 thousand and 1,009,715 thousand euros respectively, considered to be exchanges of assets 
of a similar nature and value. 

As at December 31, 2018, there were no repurchase commitments far inventaries. 

16.2 Procurements 

The breakdown of the balances of "Goods consumed" and "Raw materials and other materia Is consumed" 
in 2018 and 2017 is as follows: 

Goods consumed 

Purchases 

Changes in inventaries 

Total 

Raw materials and other materials consumed 

Purchases 

Changes in inventaries 

Total 

Other externa! expenses 

Other externa! ex nses 

Raw materials impairment 

Raw materials impairment 

16.3 Breakdown of purchases by origin 

Thousands of euros 

2018 2017 

1,058,584 357,343 

(40,383) 4,542 

1 018201 361885 

13,546,531 10,894,066 

35,428 (77,269), 

13581 959 10816797 

13783 13480 

60 (2) 

Toe breakdown, by origin, of the purchases and other externa! expenses made by CEPSA in 2018 and 2017 
is as follows: 
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2018 Thousands of euros 2017 

National Intra-Community Import National Intra-Communl 

Purchases 1,975,952 1,665,079 10,977,867 1,936,517 1,010,880 

16.4 Employee benefit costs 

The breakdown of "Employee benefit costs" in 2018 and 2017 is as follows: 

Thousands of euros 

Em lo ee benefits 

Employer social security costs 

Pension contributions and provisions to pension allowances (Note 12.2) 

other employee benefit costs 

Total 

16.5 Other profit (loss) 

2018 

38,311 

8,467 

14,196 

6Q974 

The breakdown of "Other profit (loss)" in the income statements far 2018 and 2017 is as fallows: 

2017 

37,721 

8,183 

12,265 

58169 

Thousands of euros 

2018 2017 

other losses Ex enses Inoome Ex nses Income 

4,118 20 939 110 

Environmental contingencies 80 1,646 

Penalties and fines 244 4 535 

For litigation and other disputes 1,072 517 1,913 

Indemnity for loss of profits 

Exceptional income from definitive allowances 187 

Other indemnities 35 12 

Exceptional income and other expenses 5,612 2,042 

Total 11126 763 7,075 122 

16.6 Impairment and losses 

This heading includes the net provision far impairment of equity instruments amounting to 6,179 thousand 
euros in 2018. In 2017 there was a net provision of 420,195 thousand euros which included a reversa! of 
impairment of loans to group and associated companies amounting to 11,448 thousand euros (note 8.3). 

17. Related party transactions and balances

17.1 Group companies, associates and related party transactions 

CEPSA performs its transactions with related parties on an arm's length basis. 

Related party transactions are mainly due to the fact that the Company sells its products primarily through 
its subsidiaries. Most of these purchases involve the supply of crude and products to be used in production 
processes. Likewise, "Services received" are related to the re-invoicing from Group companies far different 
services ( charges, fees, expenses, technical services, staff, etc.). 

Regarding loans to group companies, the average interest rate applied by CEPSA to loans granted to 
subsidiaries in 2018 and 2017 was similar to the average cost of externa! financing far the same type of 
transaction (note 13). 

"Loans to subsidiaries", which include long-term investments in Group companies and associates shown in 
the accompanying balance sheet, correspond to renewable credit facilities which mature in 12 to 36 months. 

In 2018 and 2017, CEPSA performed related party transactions in relation to the following items: 
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Thousands of euros 

Parent Other Group Assodates and Other related 
2018 c:om an Com anies Other arties 

Purchases (13,409,082) (60,611) 

Sales 9,659,171 60,040 
Services provided 146,536 3,252 1,683 

Services received (419,938) (6,097) 
Interest paid (14,024) 

Interest col lected 9,205 6,635 
Dividends 653,954 37,647 

Other financia! income 1 529 

Total (3,372,649) 40,866 1,683 

Thousands of euros 

Parent OtherGroup Assoáates and 
2017 com an Com anies Other 

Purchases (10,368,469) (102,587) 
Sales 7,604,335 373,964 
Services provided 433 133,612 3,226 
Services received (3,765) (269,906) (89,025) 
Interest paid (10,794) (72) 

Interest collected 13,557 7,205 
Dividends (note 8.3) 349,970 38,477 
Other financia! income 1 826 

Total 0,332) (2,545,_869) 231,188 

Other related parties include transactions carried out with the group company MDC called MDC General 
Services Holding in 2018, amounting to 1,683 thousand euros, far the rebilling of miscellaneous services 
and expenses. 

On the other hand, the caption "Other financia! results" mainly includes exchange differences far operations 
with group companies and associates, amounting to 1,447 thousand euros. 

17.2 Related party balances 

At the end of 2018 and 2017, CEPSA held the following balances with related parties: 

2018 

Non-current financia! assets and investments 
Equity instruments (Note 8) 
Loans to i:Jlird parties 

Trade receivables 

Current financia! assests and investments 
Loans to third parties 
Derivatives 
Other financia! assets 

Current a ables 

Trade payables 
Total 
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Parent 
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Other group 
coman 

3,340,376 
3,287,176 

53,200 
925 729 
120,627 
118,995 

562 
1 070 

(620,392) 

(1,030,977) 
273�363 

Thousands of euros 
Associates Other related 
and other arties Total 

181,331 3,521,707 
181,331 3,468,507 

53,200 
18 970 1 683 946 382 

8,457 129,084 
7,457 126,452 

562 
1 000 2 070 

(4,245) (624,637) 
(22,450) (1,053,427) 
182063 1683 2,Jl.19,109 



��CEPSR 

Thousands of euros 
Parent Other group Associates 

2017 comeanlt'. comeanlt'. and other Total 

Non-current financia! assets and investments 1,793,077 198,582 1,991,659 
Equity instruments (Note 8) 1,771,472 191,452 1,962,924 
Loans to companies 21,605 7,130 28,735 
Other financia! assets 

Trade receivables 819 772 51 457 871 229 
Current financia! assests and investments 187,202 2,174 189,376 

Loans to third parties 145,826 2,174 148,000 
Derivatives 2,008 2,008 
Other fi nancial assets 39 368 39 368 

Current [2a;¡:abies (1,169,807) (17,984) (1,187,791) 

Trade [2a;¡:ables (4,206) (898,243) (27,084) (929,533) 

Total {_4,206¿ 732,001 207,_145 934,940 

The Company distributed dividends to the Sole Shareholder in 2018 amounting to 350,523 thousand euros 
(2017: 331,793 thousand euros) (note 11). 

17.3 Remuneration of directors and senior executives 

The breakdown of the remuneration received by the Board of Directors of CEPSA in 2018 and 2017, 
classified by item, is as follows: 

Fixed remuneration 
Variable remuneration 
Remuneration per by-laws 
Other items 
Pension funds and plans: contributions (note 4.13) 

Total 

2018 

843 
2,116 
1,528 

12 
606 

5.105 

Thousands of euros 
2017 

778 
1,665 
1,077 

15 
556 

4091 

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Board of Directors was comprised of 7 members (1 woman and 6 
men), as well as a Secretary and Vice Secretary (non-Board members). 

CEPSA's directors and officers liability insurance policy was renewed on March 5, 2018 for 12 months, with 
a total annual net premium of 66 thousand euros for the entire Group. 

In 2018 and 2017, the total compensation paid to Senior Executives classified by ítem (for members of the 
Management Committee, regardless of the type of relationship to the company) was as follows: 

Fixed remuneration 
Variable remuneration 
Other items 
Pension funds and pians: contrlbutlons (note 4.13) 

Total 

2018 

2,743 
5,072 

130 
584 

8529 

Thousands of euros 
2017 

2,720 
4,711 

124 
575 

8130 

Senior Executives receive an annual fixed and variable remuneration package. The latter is calculated as a 
percentage of the fixed remuneration, with said percentage being conditional upon the leve! of achievement 
of the objectives established for the year. These objectives, which are subject to measurement and control 
systems, are determined on the basis of the earnings of the Consolidated Group, occupational safety rates, 
operating aspects of the business, such as the performance of projects pursuant to established criteria 
relating to price, quality and deadline, and individual performance. 
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The number of senior executives as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 was 8 in both years, ali of whom were 
men. 

The Company has not granted any advances or loans to its Board members or to senior managers. 

17.4 Conflict of interests (Directors) 

As provided for in the current text of article 229 of the Capital Companies Act, the Company's directors 
disclosed the following conflicts of interest: 

(i) At the Board of Directors meeting on May 11, 2018, Board Members Mr. Abdulmunim Alkindi and
Mr. Abdulla Aldhaheri reported that, as Directors of Abu Dhabi National Oil Company (ADNOC),
they were in potential conflict with the Company's interest in the joint ADNOC/CEPSA project for a
future petrochemical plant in Abu Dhabi, and therefore both were absent from the meeting during
the deliberations and voting on this matter. The statements of conflict of interest and their
abstention from debate and voting were duly recorded in the minutes of that meeting.

(ii) At the meeting of the Board of Directors on September 17, 2018, the following members of the
Board of Directors: Mr. Suhail Al Mazrouei, Mr. Musabbeh Alkaabi, Ms. Alyazia Alkuwaiti, Mr.
Abdulmunim Alkindi and Mr. Abdulla Aldhaheri reported that, given their status as proprietary
directors, they were involved in potential conflict of interest situations in relation to the purchase
and sale of Medgaz, S.A. between CEPSA and Mubadala Investment Company, and consequently,
the five directors were absent from the meeting during the deliberations and voting on this matter.
The statements of conflict of interest and their abstention from debate and voting were duly
recorded in the minutes of that meeting.

Upon their respective resignations on November 13, 2018, the directors Mr. Suhail Al Mazrouei, Mr. 
Abdulmunim Alkindi and Mr. Abdulla Aldhaheri made it clear that neither they nor any related person were 
in any other situation of direct or indirect conflict with the interest of the Company up to that date, except 
for those previously mentioned, and this was duly recorded in the corresponding minutes of the meeting. 

Toe directors who continue to sit on the Board of Directors of CEPSA at the date of preparation of the 
Financia! Statements, Mr. Musabbeh Alkaabi and Ms. Alyazia Alkuwaiti, both notified the aforementioned 
conflict of interest in letters dated February 11, 2019 addressed to the Secretary of the Board of Directors, 
stating that neither they nor any related person were involved in any other situation of direct or indirect 
conflict with the interests of the Company. 

As for the remaining members of the Board of Directors, none of them, nor any of their related parties, 
disclosed any direct ar indirect conflicts of interest, pursuant to the Capital Companies Act in force, either 
at year-end 2018 or at the date of drafting of these Financia! Statements 

17.5 Group structure 

The Company is the parent company of the CEPSA Group. The Company is the parent of the CEPSA Group, 
which is organized and manages its businesses in the following areas: 

- Exploration and Production, which includes oil and gas exploration and production activities.

- Refining and Distribution, which includes supply, refining and distribution, as well as the cogeneration of
electrical energy and its distribution and marketing.

- Petrochemical, which includes production, distribution and marketing.

18. Information on the environment

At the end of 2018 and 2017 CEPSA had the following significant items of property, plant and equipment 
used to minimize the environmental impact and to protect and improve the environment, classified in 
accordance with their use: 
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2018 

Water 

Air 

Wast.e 

Soil/Ground water 

Other/Noise 

Total 

2017 

Water 

Air 

Waste 

Soil/Ground water 

Other/Noise 

Total 

Gross carrying 
amount 

98,070 

305,937 

2,420 

5,917 

7,370 

419,714 

G ross carrying 
amount 

98,827 

300,199 

1,595 

5,669 

8,584 

414,874 

Thousands of euros 

Accumulated Net carryng 
Oepreciation amount 

(75,621) 22,449 

(212,160) 93,777 

(831) 1,589 

(1,931) 3,986 

(4,691) 2,679 

(295,234) 124,480 

Thousands of euros 

Accumulated Net carryng 
depreciation amount 

(68,899) 29,928 

(194,739) 105,460 

( 704) 891 

(1,406) 4,263 

(4,420) 4,164 

(270,168) 144,706 

The expenses incurred in 2018 and 2017 (including in-house resources), and expenditure for the purpose 
of protecting and improving the environment, by use, were as follows: 

Thousands of euros 

Expenses Investments 

2018 2017 2018 2017 

Water 10,259 9,935 156 3,816 

Air 24,720 19,633 4,257 1,581 

Waste 2,042 3,020 795 9 

Soil/Ground water 4,578 4,132 37 117 

Other/Noise 1 797 1 617 110 1 066 

Total 43396 38337 5355 6589 

In accordance with the definition contained in the Spanish Accounting and Audit Institute (ICAC) Resolution 
which approved the rules for the recognition, measurement and disclosure of environmental matters in 
financia! statements, environmental investments were identified for the purpose of this classification. 

In arder to achieve sustainable development, CEPSA has programs in place far the ongoing improvement 
of its production processes, the reduction of wastewater, the elimination of spills and waste management. 
To this end it has implemented an environmental management system, enabling it to comply with its 
statutory obligations and to introduce betterments on a rolling basis. The investments relating to the 
environment reflect the commitment acquired by the Company as a result of environmental aims. 

The most significant environmental assets recognized by CEPSA under "Technical installations" are the 
following: sulfur recovery plants, plants far the treatment of amino acids and acidified water, waste water 
treatment plants (chemical and biological), and technical improvements to production plant equipment in 
arder to achieve enhanced energy efficiency and the reduction of COV and NOx emissions. 

Company management does not expect any contingencies to arise in connection with its actions in this 
respect. However, it has arranged insurance policies to cover risks that could arise from its activities, except 
for that of soil pollution, the only contingency not covered in the insurance policies. CEPSA has therefore 
recognized a provision in this connection totaling 16,111 thousand and 15,954 thousand euros as at 
December 31, 2018 and 2017 respectively (note 12). 

19. Other disclosures

19.1 Employees 

The average number of employees as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, by professional category, is as 
follows: 
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Cate ories 2018 2017 

Directors 1 1 

Senior Management 8 8 

Management 49 so 

Technical personnel and other managers 1,551 1,510 

S ecialists Assistants 1 048 -1,QZQ__ 

Total 2657 2639 

The headcount as at December 31, 2018, by category and gender, was as follows: 

Cate ories 

Directors 

Senior Management 

Management 

Technical personnel and other managers 

Special 1s1:5/ Assistants 

Total 

Men 

1 

8 

42 

1,172 

919 

2142 

Women 

6 

417 

143 

566 

The average number of employees as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, with disability greater than or equal 
to thirty-three percent, by professional category, is as follows: 

Cate ories 

Technical personnel and other managers 

Specialists/ As.sistants 

Total 

19.2 Fees paid to auditors 

2018 

7 

3 

10 

2017 

6 

6 

12 

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, the fees charged far auditing the financia! statements and other 
services provided by the Company's auditor or by companies related to the auditor through control, 
common ownership or management were as follows: 

2018 

Audits of accounts 

Other verification services 

Tax advisory services 

Other services 

Total 

2017 

Audits of accounts 

Other verification services 

Tax advisory services 

Other services 

Total 
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Thousands of euros 

Total 

509 

501 

1 092 

2102 

Thousands of euros 

Total 

344 

280 

624 
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19.3 Off-balance sheet agreements 

Guarantee commitments to third parties and other contingent liabilities 

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, CEPSA had provided guarantees to various entities, mainly to secure 
financing for Group companies in connection with supply contracts. The breakdown of these guarantees is 
as follows: 

Bank guarantees to public authorities as a result of CEPSA's business activities (1) 

Guaranted provided by CEPSA to financia! institutions 

As a result of financia! transactions of Group subsidiaries (2) 

Otller guarantees (3) 

Total 

As regards 2018: 

Thousands of euros 

2018 2017 

227,333 235,982 

743,365 712,676 

237,744 57,207 

1 208 442 1 005. 865 

(1) Includes guarantees provided to public authorities totaling 15,538 thousand euros relating to
subsidized loans which were already recognized on the liability side of CEPSA's balance sheet.

(2) These transactions in the amount of 395,074 thousand euros were already recognized on the
liability side of the Group's subsidiaries' balance sheets.

(3) The other guarantees include foreign currency guarantees to third parties, and other entities and
Stand by amounting to 70,524 thousand euros and letters of credit amounting to 70.333 thousand
euros.

CEPSA management does not believe that any unforeseen liabilities potentially arising from the guarantees 
provided as at December 31, 2018 would have a material effeet.

Non-current firm commitments of CEPSA as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 are as follows: 

Thousands of euros 

2018 2019 2,020 2,021 2,022 2,023 Rest Total 

Gas Transportation 45,472 46,38 2 47,309 48,256 49,221 387,460 624,100 

Thousands of euros 

2017 2,018 2,019 2,020 2,021 2,022 Rest Total 

Gas Transportation 44,581 45,47 2 46,382 47,309 48,256 436,680 668,680 

The Company has purchase commitments for natural gas with Sonatrach which have been assigned in full 
to Cepsa Gas Comercializadora, S.A. 

20. Greenhouse gas emission allowances

In compliance with the commitments to reduce greenhouse gas emissions assumed by the European Union 
in May 2002, various EU and national regulations were issued, which led to the approval of the EU Emission 
Trading System. Phase III is currently underway, covering the years 2013 to 2020 (the second period of 
the Kyoto Protocol), as set out in Commission Decision 2011/278/EU as well as in Directive 2003/87 /EC 
and Law 1/2005. Allocation for each plant far the period 2013-2020 was calculated in accordance with a 
detailed set of European Community regulations which determine allocation directly, without discretionary 
margins. Specifically, the assignment methodology was the one established in European Commission's 
Decision 2011/278. 

The allowances assigned to CEPSA were as follows: 

Assigned allowance 

Thousands of MT 

2015 2016 2017 2018 

2,984 2,843 2,789 2,735 
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The assignment of free rights for each exercise is valued at the market price prevailing at the time of the 
concession, 6.99€/MT in 2015, 8.04€/MT in 2016, 6.11 €/MT in 2017 and 7.78€/MT in 2018. 

At year-end 2018, the market price of emission allowances was 22.66€/MT far EUAs, and 0.25€/MT far 
CER. At present, CEPSA has not recognized any significant CER rights since it was decided to hedge the 
maximum percentage allowed by European Union far these rights during the starting years of the 
compliance period. 

The changes in 2017 and 2018, in tons and thousands of euros, were as fallows: 

Balance at 12/31/2016 

Assignment 

Prior years assignment 

Additions/period provisions 

Disposals 

Balance at 12/31/2011 
Assignment 

Prior years assignment 

Additions/period provisions 

Disposals 

CER'S rlghts 

Balance at 12/31L_2018 

Greenhouse gaslemission allowances 
(Thousands of MT) 

4,9/1 

2,789 

532 

(4,821) 

1412 

Greenhouse gas 
emission allowances 

(Thousands of MT) 

3,412 
2,735 

668 

(3,403) 

557 

4l029 

Inventaries 

29484 

17,044 

3,173 

(28,927) 

6 

20,768 

Inventories 
20,768 
21,279 

9,705 

(20,809) 

{49) 

30,894 

Thousands of euros 

Provisions for 
current 

Grants contlngendes 
Note 11 Note 12 

4303 25.758 

17,044 

15,417 

(20,663) (21,219) 

684 19,956 

Thousands of euros 

Provisions for 
current 

Grants contingencies 
(Note 11) (Note 12) 

684 19,956 

21,279 

29,547 

(20,254) (19,777) 

1,109 29,726 

The value of the CO2 emission allowances which were freely assigned in accordance with the emissions 
trading scheme during 2018 was 21,279 thousand euros, equivalent to 2,735 thousand tons. Allowances 
have also been purchased from Cepsa Gas y Electricidad and Cepsa Química. 

Disposals reflected under 2017 movements include compliance deliveries and well as the sale of rights to 
Cepsa Gas y Electricidad, S.A. and Generación Eléctrica Peninsular, S.A. 

CEPSA has a share of 1.373 % in the Spanish Carbon Fund in arder to finance a variety of projects that 
target greenhouse gas emissions reduction and the sustainable development of developing countries. If 
successful, these projects will generate emission allowances. 

Toe value of the emissions made is recognized under "Other operating expenses" in the accompanying 
income statement and a "Short-term provision" is recognized as a balancing item far the obligation to 
deliver to the government the emission rights relating to each of the years. In 2018 and 2017, emissions 
were estimated to amount to 3,259 thousand MT, valued at 29,726 thousand euros, and to 3,268 thousand 
MT, valued at 19,956 thousand euros, respectively. 

The use of the grant far allowances assigned far no consideration, which is recognized under "Grants, 
donations or gifts and legacies received" (note 11), is recognized, as the emissions are produced under 
"Allocation to profit or loss of grants related to non-financia! non-current assets and other grants" in the 
income statement. 
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In 2018 the estimated emissions were higher than the volume of rights assigned, deficient tons, considering 
the abovementioned purchase from Cepsa Gas y Electricidad and Cepsa Química, amounted to 502 
thousand tons. The Company does not expect that final certification will result in any relevant liabilities 
with respect to those already considered. 

In 2019 the allowances corresponding to the emissions made in 2018 will be delivered to the European 
Union and the amount corresponding to these rights will be derecognized for accounting purposes from 
Inventaries and Short-term provisions. 

Company management does not expect any contingencies to arise in this connection. 

21. Risk management policy:

21.1 Main risks associated with CEPSA's operations 

CEPSA operates in environments characterized by a number of externa! factors, changes in which could 
affect the manner in which operations are performed and the results obtained therefrom. 

Specifically the Company is exposed to the following risks deriving from the use of financia! instruments: 

• Credit risk
• Liquidity risk
º Market risk

This note sets out information on CEPSA's exposure to each of these risks, objectives, policies and processes 
for measuring and managing risk, and the management of capital. Additional quantitative disclosures are 
included below. 

CEPSA includes a chapter on risk management in its Management, Report which offers a more detailed 
explanation of the risks to which it is exposed. 

21.2 Risk management framework 

The Board of Directors, through the Audit Committee, the Risks Committee, other specific committees, 
together with the Directors of the respective divisions, supervises and monitors risks on a regular basis, 
adapting their profile to prevailing circumstances, where appropriate. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is defined as the possibility of a third party not complying with its obligations under a financia! 
instrument or client contract, leading to a financia! loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its 
operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with 
banks and financia! institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financia! instruments. 

The carrying amount of financia! assets included in the balance sheets as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 
represents the maximum credit exposure. 

CEPSA does not have a significant concentration of credit risk on trade payables, discounting the amounts 
relating to logistical exchanges. The exposure of the remaining commercial debt is widely distributed among 
a large number of customers and other counterparties. 

The Company has established severa! interna! norms and procedures to minimize the risk of default by 
trade debtors, using credit verification to qualify customers to trade on credit terms and setting mandatory 
credit limits for each one. This regulation deals with, among other aspects, the determination of commercial 
credit limits, the monitoring and control of the assigned credit limits, the establishment of the most 
adequate collection instruments, the guarantees to be requested in case of excessive or unacceptable risk, 
the steps to be taken in case of non-payment to collect past-due balances, etc. 

In arder to do so, various creditworthiness models have been designed. Based on these models, the 
probability of client default on payment can be measured, and the potential loss can be kept under control. 
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These are the parameters relating to client solvency and payment habits included in the system for credit 
quality analysis: 

High quality: Preferential clients, clients with high credit ratings and financia! capacity, clients who have 
made advance payments in cash or whose payment terms are secured. 

Medium quality: Clients of an average size who enjoy a good reputation and are economically healthy, 
but have a history of slow payments. 

Low quality: New customers without any credit history, customers who are repeatedly slow in making 
payments and whose financia! position is weak. 

The breakdown of this analysis for 2018 and 2017 is as follows: 

2018 

Credlt quality 

Trade receivables For sales and services and Olher debtor 
Trade receivables, group oompanies (Note 17) 
Personnel 
Cash and cash eguivalents 
lota/ 

2017 

Credlt quality 

Trade receivables for sales and services and Olher debtor 
Trade receivables, group companies (Note 17) 
Personnel 
Cash and cash eguivalents 
Total 

Hi h uallty 
707,874 
944,699 

673 
115,340 

1768586 

High quality 
858,525 
871,229 

670 
382.610 

2113 034 

Medium uall 
19,621 

19621 

Medium quallty 
6,567 

6567 

Thousands of euros 
Low quall Total 

42,761 770,256 
944,699 

673 
115,340 

42 761 1 830 968 

Thousands oí euros 
low quality Total 

34,086 899,178 

871,229 
670 

382,610 
34,086 2,153,687 

Balances receivable are supervised based on their due dates, which helps mitigate exposure to 
unrecoverable trade receivables. The maturity schedule for unimpaired "Trade and other receivables" for 
2018 and 2017 is as follows: 

Thousands of euros 
2018 2017 

Not past due 723,799 844,587 
0-30 days past due 34,017 35,530 
31-90 days past due 9,839 5,886 
91-180 days past due 292 6,298 
More than 180 days 11ast due 2,982 7,547 

Tot,a/ 770929 899848 

Sorne credit insurance policies have been arranged to cover the risk of default on a portion of the past-due 
receivables that have not been provisioned. In addition, guarantees have been provided that cover another 
portion thereof. 

In order to mitigate the credit risk arising from cash and financia! debt positions, CEPSA works only with 

highly solvent and prestigious national and international financia! institutions. Additionally, the counterparty 

risk in investments and financia! instruments contracts is analyzed. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk relates to the capacity of CEPSA to obtain financing at reasonable market prices, as well as 

cover the required financing needs for performing the activities of its businesses. 

CEPSA monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool. The objective is to maintain 
a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of credit facilities, bank loans and 
other sources of funding. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its 
debt and concluded it to be low. 
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Thus, CEPSA pursues a conservative financia! policy which involves maintaining available cash balances 
and other liquid financia! instruments, as well as committed credit lines yet to be drawn down, sufficient to 
cover debt maturing within 24 months without the need to obtain new financing in the market or refinance 
available credit lines. 

Its liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows in main currencies as well as considering the 
degree of liquid assets necessary to meet them. 

The tables below present an analysis of the maturities of the financia! liabilities existing as at December 
31, 2018: 

,.,,....,,. 

lnCu,-.-qUSDolla
lnCll:rl,fS(Et..-0 

---

Oltie-fi""1áaliiblibei 

i'IJ�ÍC!l1ilies,payables 
PayaijetoirOllJCOmpajesaldassodate; 
ett.,- ,tjes 

Market risk 

Payable O - 3 mooths 3 - 12 months 

662,581 
1051m 

l716,008 

7,920 
7,920 

910 

125,654 
119,396 
624,6]7 
55076 

9]4,76] 
?,659,6(11 

m,958 

18.793 
193,JSI 

11,163 

11,16] 

2()1,914 

2 years 3 years 

10,52! 928,411 

18,750 lll,750 

19,m 9l7,161 

Z.'f/lJ 

9,lll7 7,689 

9,487 7.689 
.y§l gs},8]() 

4 years 5 years 

275,361 1pso,002 
24,saJ 5,1113 

299.9'14 l056,735 

4,299 1,976 

4,199 1,976 

JOUIJ L058,1JJ 

Th!usir<lsrloros 
>5 years Total 

188,924 
158,lll 

347.257 

1.l14 

2,829 

l.829 

]51,390 

662,581 
105),427 

\,71;,lm 

2,619,000 

m,962 
2,882,042 

S,194 

163,097 
129,396 
624,6]7 
55076 

5,575,450 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financia! instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices. Cepsa is exposed to several types of market risks (price rísks, exchange rate 
risks and interest rate risks) which affect the financia! results. Toe main market risks inherent to the oil 
sector result from fluctuations in crude oil prices, derivative prices, the refining margin and the exchange 
rate. 

The Company monitors its exposure to market risk through ongoing sensitivity analysis. Far each of the 
market risk factors detailed below, a table is displayed with sensitivity of the company's net profit to such 
factors to which financia! instruments are exposed. 

The estimates made reflect the impact of favorable and adverse changes. The impact on profit and/or 
equity is estimated on the basis of the financia! instruments held by CEPSA at each year-end. 

Financia! instruments subject to market risk include financia! assets at fair value through profit or loss, 
available-for-sale financial assets, derivative financia! instruments, short-term deposits, borrowings and 
certain other financia! instruments. 

a) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financia! instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in the foreign exchange rates used by the Company. The Company's exposure to the 
risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating actívities (when 
revenue or expense are denominated in a different currency from the Company's functional currency) and 
the translation of foreign subsidiaries. 

The Company's profit and equity are exposed to fluctuations in the exchange rates of the currencies in 
which it does business. The most significant foreign currency exposure is to the US dallar. 

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, debt in dollars was 2,635,410 euros and 1,363,728 euros (Note 13), 
representing 91.44% and 83.40% respectively of total gross debt. 99.50% of the debt in dollars is assigned 
to accounting hedging transactions, chiefly fair value hedges ($3,002 million) (Note 9). 
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The sensitivity of net income and equity to exchange rate risk, taking into account the hedge accounting 
prevailing at the reporting date, as a result of the appreciation or depreciation of the euro against the 
dollar, on the financia! instruments held by CEPSA at year end, is illustrated below: 

Effect of fluctuations in the euro a ainst the U.S. dallar 

Impact on profit or loss after taxes 

b) Commodity price risk

2018 

+o.os USD/EUR 

28.85 

Millions of euros 

2017 

-o.os USD/EUR +o.os USD/EUR 

(31.36) 9.53 

+o.os USD/EUR 

(10.35) 

CEPSA businesses have a certain degree of sensitivity to the changes in and volatility of oil prices, managed 
through a hedging system, refining margins and energy product sales. In this connection the Company's 
high degree of vertical integration, which has increased in recent years, is a strategy that, by itself, mitigates 
the effects of economic cycles and their specific impact on the result. 

Fluctuations in crude oil prices also have an effect on product refining and marketing operations, opposite 
to the effeet of the area of Exploration and Production whose scale depends, among other factors, on the 
speed with which price changes in energy products or base petrochemical products at source is relayed to 
the international and local finished goods markets. 

Exposure to all these prices is constantly monitored, and on certain occasions the Company contracts 
financia! derivatives with a view to reducing its exposure to their volatility. These derivatives thus comprise 
economic hedging of results though they are not always accounted far as hedges far accounting purposes 
(Note 9). 

In this regard, the impact on the net result of a 10% increase or decrease on the price of crude oil is 
irrelevant. 

c) Interest rate risk

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its borrowings at floating rates, mainly 
USD Libar. The Company's policy is to manage its debt portfolio with the aim of minimizing non-current 
interest costs. 

To manage and mitigate this risk, CEPSA obtains financing at a fixed rate or contracts interest rate hedges 
via financia! derivatives when it considers appropriate (Note 9). 

The sensitivity analysis excludes all fixed income financia! instruments carried at amortized cost as well as 
loans with variable rates which, through transactions with derivatives, result in a similar effeet to a fixed 

rate. Currency and commodity based derivatives have not been included in the sensitivity analysis below 
as they are not considered to be exposed to interest rate risk. 

The fallowing table shows the sensitivity of the Company's interest expense to reasonably possible changes 
in interest rates, assuming all other variables remain unchanged. 

Interest rate variatlons effect 

+ 50 bps 

- 50 bps 

21.3 Capital management 

Mi\lions of euros 

2018 2017 

Inc:ome 

statement 

11.23 

(10.50) 

Inc:ome 

statement 

3.10 

(1.11) 

Maintaining a sound equity structure is one of CEPSA's capital management priorities. 

Compañía Española de Petróleos, S.A.U -66-



:,J=CEPSR 

This objective is achieved by controlling the level of borrowing in arder to protect against possible changes 
in economic and industry-based circumstances and to ensure readiness to appropriate financing which 
enables the Company to take on new profitable business opportunities to act as pillars of growth and 
contribute significant value. 

The trend of indebtedness is determined through the relationship between net CEPSA indebtedness and its 
Equity, based on the following breakdown for 2018 and 2017: 

Non-current financia! liabilities (Note 13) 

Current liabilities (Note 13) 

Gross debt 

Cash and cash ecuivalents 

Remunerated net debt 

Netequity 

Remunerated net: debt / Net equlty 

Thousands of euros 

2018 2017 

2,680,371 

201,671 

2,882,042 

115,340 

2,766,702 

3,899,508 

42% 

1,342,469 

292,742 

1,635,211 

382,610 

1,252,601 

3,242,093 

39% 

CEPSA analyzes this ratio on a regular basis, using future estimates, as it considers it key to do so in arder 
to establish its investments policies and dividend distribution. Containment on investments, divestitures on 
non-core assets for the group and cost control reduction of fixed costs has meant a significant reduction in 
debt. 

22.Subseguentevents

No events took place subsequent to year end which might represent a modification to the information 
contained in these notes, ar which reflect circumstances which did not exist at year end and would affect 
the application of the going concern principie. 
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Table I 

Detail of significant direct holdings as at December 31, 2018: 

lf nu, 

Oil R��� to Obta_n_aspi:iat products 50% 

E ul 

Share Capit.11 

8,529 8,S29 

TIIOUS,!(l<lsOfeuros 

21,072 17,869 ASFALTOS ESPAÑOLES, S.A. (ASESA) 
ÁTLAS, s)\ . COMBUSTIBLÉS 'y 

.
. 

LIJBRIFICANTS Pfa· a Bcn•te, n. 51004 Ceuta. �ña _ _ __ --=.10'-'0'-'%-'------"=-----"=----=-121,'-'16..;....¡ � },'l'JO 1-9:lO 
Poi ono lndust.11al Valleóe Gúimar Manzana )(IV, 
parcelas 17 y 18. 38509 Güimar - Santa Cruz de 

C.M.D AEROPUERTOS CA;..:N:;:ARl=OS:::,,c:S:..:L:__�l1
á'
.,..,
::¡:.

"ri
a"
�,:;O,:..::;::ñ'J\,"--:::-=ac-.-=--=,,_.,=.----'":::':.;;'""::::..:distnbu0on 

2ndfloor, MI lawn P!a,a P,0. Sa,c418, KYl-1106 
Grand C.�man. Cllyrn,n !slan,i. ('º) CEPSA (RHOURDE EL ROUNl)_LIM!TED 

CEPSA ALGERIE, S.L 

CEPSA AVIACIÓN, S.A. 

CEPSA BIOENERGIA SAN ROQUE. S L U. 

CEPSA BUSINESS SERVICES, S A. 

Paseo de lá OJ�eHa®, l59 A. 28046 Müdna. España ��a-�h and ex���lio:1 
Es. Coníb�

0

Avlac. camno de Saíl .. Lázin:,* i;/n 
Zona ind. Aeropuerto Tenerife Norte Los Rodeos. 
38206 San Cl'istobal de la Laguna - Santa Cruz de 
Tenenfe. España �I i!nd gas transport 

Paseo de la Castellanat 259 A. 28046 Madrid. España 0,11M g,.;;;"'c:".;;;"':c'"'c:,_ ____ _ 

Paseo de la Castellana, 259 A 28046 Madri�. España Corporare serv1ces 

100% 

100% 

lOOOro 

100% 

100% 

)t.S7t 

100.�I 

" 

95< 

].003 

60 

5250 Boulevard Becancour. G9H 3X3 Becancour. commer-cralizabonofpetrochemical 
�C=EP;..;�=C�H�IM�I�E�B�ÉCA=�=º�u���I��=-�--�Q�U=EB=E�C�.=cª�"�ªd=ª�------------���oo===-----------=-1º=º�%�- -�=-30,670 

CEPSA COLOMBIA, S.A. 

CEPSA COMERCIAL PETRÓLEO, $.A.U. 

CEPSA.I!, S A  U 

CEPSA E.P, MEXICO S_ DE R.L DE C.V. 

CEPSA EP ABU DHABJ1 S.l.,U. 

CEPSA GAS COMERCTALIZAOQR� S A 

CEPSA GAS Y El.fCIRiClDAO, S.,\.U. 

Paseo de la Ost�lilna. 259 A. 28046 Madrid. España Research and exploral!oo 

Paseo de la caslellana, 259 � 28046 Madrid España Petral 5tiltion adm1nístrab0f1 

Paseo de la Castellana, 259 A . 280% Madrid. España Roe.riharx! exp!orabon 
AVPa5eO de 1a·tefO-rma, 295··P1só·s-Oficfna A. 06506 
Cuauhtemoc - Ciudad de Mexico. Mexlco � Md � 

Paseo de la Castellana! 259 A. 28046 Madrid. España Rex.c,ch and �c.-anon 

Pas� de 1� Castellan<!, 2:59 A. 28046 Madnd- Esec:ña <:aoc (!ó,c .... t,.,,OI....,.. 

Paseo de la castellano, 259 A. 280% Madnd España _,,d<>o_
Beurs - Ylo,ld Trade Cenlre - ornee Qli8 

CEPSA INTERNATIONAL 8,V. --�"'" 37. 3011 M l!lltl<!!dam. The Netherlands Oilarxlp� 
Commc,óalli!<!l:Íoo ar oU 

aPSA r'IAA!NE Ams, DMCC 

CEPSA OLEO f GAS 00 8AASII., L TD� 

CEPSA PANAMA, 5,A. 

CEPSA PERU, S.A.U 

Cl:PSA PETRONUBII, S.A.U. 

OITTa: 3201 / nnd Roer l'loMum Tower Juemc,,a� 
Lake Tower. - Oub,a1. EAU produa< (outstde EAU) 

Rua do <:armo� n° 43 9º andar. - Río de Jane1ro. Brasil Rese.atth ;¡nd exp1o,aUOn 
l'H Alb¡ook olr1«1, , Oesx 17 1\1-, Ciudad 

-

de PaMmá: • República del Panamá 

�de la Castel lona, 259 A, 280% Madrid. Es¡,;,iia 
. - Refinería "La-Rábido" Pollgoño Nuevo Puerto .• 218Í� 

Palos de la Frontera, HUELVA. �faa 
J\�� Columbano 80tdi!IO Pinheiro, 108•3º B. 1070• 

Suopy oil products to vessels 

R_ese� �e�_� n9. ��P!.º!ª t1on 

SIJl!(.ll oll !!Olluet< to vessels 

�E_P_SA_ ro.�:r.u_G�ES_A_ PETROLEO�, s,A ___ 06? L��boa. Po}Wgal 01/ and gas trad1ng 

CEPSA guiMJCA1 S.A. 

CEPSA SEA, S,LU. 

CEPSA SURJN�E, S L U, 

CEP� TRADING S.A.U. 

CEPSA TREASURY,� ___ 

CEPSA S.A. 

COASTAL ENERGY KBM SDN BHD 

CQI\STAL fNEl<.GY MALASYA SDN BHD 

MEDGA2, S.A 

MOPU HOLDINGS (SU.� PTE L TD 

NUEVA Gl:NElWXllUI DEI. SUR. S.A. 

OLEODUCTOS CANARIOS1 S.A- (OLECASA) 

PETRÓLEOS DE CANARIAS, S A 
(PETROCAN) 

Paseo de la Castellana, 259 A .  28046 Madnd. España 

Paseo d": la C��t��a�a, 25� __ A._ 2�9.�?- ��Sl�(�•_España 

�aseo de la Castellana1 259 A. 28046 Madrid. España 

P;iseo de la Castellana, 259 A� 280'16 Madrid España 

Prodocoon and sale of petro�icals 

Re:sear_� .rd .:_�_!llor�on 

Re-;e2.rch�n 

011 arxl gas trad1119 

Paseo de la Ca-steildna:, 259 A. 28046 Madrid. Españ�o,1 arxl gas tradHVJ 

Paseo de la castellana, 259 A. 280'16 Madnd. Esoaña Corporateserv1ces 

�ev�i �-3, Et1ga Twins, 11 J�!�-�-: Pi�ang� KL. M�lasi� ?-e:se¾Ch aCYJ exp;oi:-at:on 

Level 2.l, EOII!! Twln<, 11 Jalan. · Plnongm, M.!lJsla Resea,dl an::J a:tk,t111itlOn 
P1pdi� constructlon for gas 
transportadon between Algma and 

Mu":[l_e de Poniente, s/n. 9�09� Al,:nen'a. España __ E�r�pe 
6, Temasek Boulevard #38-01 Suntec Tower Four 

_ 038986-.Sin_ga� _________ ___ Resea-chcnie<:plO-:��-C?n 
Avda. san Luis, nº 77 Edificio e 4<' planta. 28033 
�nd. ña --:-

--:-:=e=-:--::,- Power (09e"Cf.oeon 
ExµÍanoda de Tom,19 Q.,evedo, 5/n, 35008 Las !'alma, 
de Gtan Canaria (GRAN CANARIA), España Env1rormental Serv1ces 

Explanada de Tomás Quevedo, s/n. 35008 Las Palmas 
de Gran Cananas (GRAN CANARIA). España a.inkmn� se-vices 

100% 

100% 

100% 

2'1,109 

82,0-l) 

7,679 

100% 100 K.Pesos 

100% 

70% = 

IW.� 11,lJ<I 

100% J.,ill 

100% 406 

100% ""� 

100% 1,227 

100% 60 

100% '° 

100% 30,000 

100% "' 

100% 19 

_100% 2],706 

100% 60  

100% 60 

100°/n 6t 

70% ,,,,. 

100% 

42% 30,000 

100% --�__!_]� 

5()'l!, 2.l'!O 

20% 108 

100% 120 

J>UI.STIFICANTCS DE lllTXANA. S.1'. (P.O.L) Paseo de la Cosu!llano, 2S9 A .  28046 Madnd. E<¡J>na 
Avd;,, Col11mbano tlard•lo Plnlleuo, 108·JO !070-067 

Productlcnz.-;dsaleot�-- .!QQ!2,_ __ J,02:i 

21,576 

t_CX>,!!!,__ 

V 

954 

,.� � 
6Msa __ 1� 

186,131 188,112 

2◄,<197 956 

l,003 -="'-- --"ª'.;;;":oª- �

60 3,]85 60 

]0,670 

2-"1,109 63,061 25),895 

82,0'l] 6S8,320 219,37] 

7,679 2,203 9,643 

54 

1.370,887 

J,C6□ 1¡ •. nt 

11.JlO 87,263 

l,SIS 190,109 196,372 

406 2.,"llJ 

���)_ 

1,227 22,152 20,87] 

.. 98,778 99,217 

"' 550 60 

30,000 59,718 65,9S7 

60 775,078 80,192 

19 (270,592) 109,766 

23,705 7,805 3'1,661 

60 (77) 

60 --'-"- 60 

61 780 

"l,926 55,1'15 

t.l!U 

30,000 21,5-!6 

_ � 56,3'15 )S,937 

2,290 a $110 

108 74< 

''° 33.885 

J,023 558 

61 

51,137 

U9,854 

--·-�.!005 

2!-� 

22 

10,542 

],628 

��;:��d:�o���l-��.-� Pcrt=�uga=l ------------�=�' .. �"-m-"'2"'�-""-....... ______ 1'14o�---�U�•--------� m 1.u, I.J'Se 

EFI�f\lCJA, S A.U Paseo de lij OJs.te:llal"la. 259 A. 28046 Madr_1d_Es�pa_ña _,_1ectr_,o��-"'-'""------ 100% 100 100 3,720 2,"l08 

1,000 .. 'J{j, 1.JOO Sl'ANIS>I !NrtlPl.NiC 51:RVICES, S.L,.!!:...._Paseo de la c...ii,Udtl<l,.!;S'J� _2-,;BO-l=G"'-'-'M'"'""'=Kl,:..E,p¡o=:::'i"'o�C;.;.•.:.".:.d_,.�.,=�....,="--- -----=-10""0'-'%"----"-''"'<K>J:.:... ___ ="-- --=-=---=a. 
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Table II 

Detail of significant indirect holdings as at December 31, 2018: 

Name 

C§; sel\VICES (IHAllANDl bTO 

CEPSA DISCO, S.l.�. 

CEPSA EP ASIA, S.l.U. 

CEPSA EP ESPAÑA, S.L.U. 

Q;f� PER!,!/1.NA, S.JI.C. 

COASTAL ENERGY COMJ>ANY 

.Q;&.lliTERNATIONAL L 1'0 

NUCOASTALITHA[LANDJ UMJTED 

CEPSA CliENICAL ¡SHMIGHAl), CO., LTD 

CEPSA �' S.�.A.. 
CEPSA QUU-U!:8 CHl!!8, �-

CEPSA Uk, LTD. 

OETEN QUIMI�, S.A. 

CED!PSA, CIA. ESPAÑOLA DISTRJBUIDORA DE 
PETROLEOS, S,A. 

CEPSA CARO, S.A,U. 

RED ESPi!,,/ilOlA DE SERVIOO� S.A,!,!. /RESSA 1 

ABU DHABI OIL, CO, LTD !AOOC) 

�10 ABU OH/\81 El.i_ERGY E&O Co. � 
COASTAL ENERGY COMPANY (KHORAT) LTD 
(Ae!!:!!l 

COASTAL !;!:!ERGY COMPANY (KHO�T¡ LID 

SINARM<\·S CEPSA l'TE, LTO 

��� I_TD 

CEPSA GlBMLTAR, �TO. 

CEPSA CHIMIE BÉCANCOUR, INC, 
SURESA RETAMA, S .L.U. 

Une of Business llne or Business 
Unit 1601 - 1604, 388 Exchange Tower, Sukhumvit Rd., Research and 
K!Q;!!I�, !QIIQ Ba!J!l�!¡, Ti!!@..ndla �ll!!it�□

Petrel sta□on 
�dela C§!:!lana, 259 A. 28046 Madad_ �1!;! ;l!!rTNru�on 

Research and 
�laaa, 2�A. 280q6Ma:lrld, �• exl1!01•tion 

Re.search and 
�d�laC�el!i,ia,.25!1A. 2804�Madnd. �ña gg¡lo<Won 
Av Ricardo Rivera Navarrete, 501, 27 San Isisdro·Uma. Research and 
Perú to(OIO<alJOn 
Cricket Square, Hutchins Orive PO Box 2681. KY1 Research and 
1111 Gratwl C!l'.man. ISlaS(ajman exl!}Qm�n 
Cricket Square, Hutchins Orive PO Box 2681. KYl - Research and 
u ll Grand C!l'.!!!i!!!, �as e.man l!XQIOraUon 
Unit n° 3901 · 3904, 39th. Floor, Exchange Tower, 388 Research and 
SUkhurnv,tl!/l. KIO[!Q!9e-l Banal<t>k Tha!la!.!'J C!Xg1ora!!gn 
Codan (Maur1t!"5) Umil!!<I, Levd 3, ToM!f I Nextwaccm Re!eatch and 
TowttC ,x lorallon 
Pasoo dela lan� 259 A. 280'16 MilOrid, Poi � 

Nº 159 Pu Gong Rd- Shanghai Chemical Industrial Park Production and sale of 
�ha1•Ch1na �OC'3!!]lcals. 
Viale Milanofiori Palauo A/6. 20090 Assago- MIL.AN, 
Italia �e or Jll1l1'0Chem1tals 
Pasoo de la Castellana, 25<;! A. 28046 M.ldrld. EsoaJ1;¡ Sñareholder 
Audrey House 16 · 20 Ely Place. EC!N 65N London Production and sale of 
!!!;!�o yrnoo 1!!:!!2S!!!l!!l�• 
Rua Hldrogenio 1744 
Complejo Industrial. 42810·010 Cam"'°ri Bahía • Praduction and sale of 
Brasil. l!l'il�I IIS!!OCheml<;jl!S 

Paseo de la Castellan.,, 152 A, Z§l!46 Madrid, �ña Sisles ,n se,v,cc 51.a'JOR 
Group card 

� dt"cla !:=J!Sell;!!!!!, 252 A. 28046 Modnd. E<ooíla �emen¡ 
Group card 

Pas,,o dS la Caslellan.,, 259 A. �8046 Madnd. sm,i�• !I!iJ.!li!9emern 
Research and 

1-1 Shibaura 1 • Choms. MIMIO • KlJ Tok�o J;,¡o,in etJ1!!!!alion 
Hamamatsucho BLDG. 1-1 Shibaura 1 - Chome, Minato - Research and 
Ku TOkJ'.O Ja�an 
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive PO Box 2681. KYl -
1111 Grand <:avman. ISias Calman 
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive PO Box 2681. KYl -
uu Grand �man. lslasC..mlltl 

108 Pasir Panjang Road - Golden Agn Plaza. 118535 
Sioqapore 

161 A, Rauru Taytc, Closc Victoria Jsland. • L.,gos. 
N!!l� 
Europo,tllulld1ng 7 2nd Floor. (P.O. Box 51). • •· 
Glbrallar 

5250 Boulevard Becancour. G9H 3XJ Becancour. 
QUEBEC. Canadá 
Paseo de la Castellana, 259 A. 28046 Madrid. España 

!:l!J!IO<;i!icn 
Research and 
ex21ocat1on 
Research and 
!::!!!!!2!•Uon 
Sulphonation and 
sulfation of LAB and 
ra1w afcohnl<. 

Product,o,, and "3le of 
!.i2·� 

Q•!•nd�llildi[!!I 

Production and sale of 
eetrochem1cals 
Wind �eneration 
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Thousands ar euros 
Egui!} 

Share capital Share capital Reserves+ 
OWn�rst,I Subscribed Paid Net Profll 

ln_\lirm 23 2.3 665 

lndlre:t 12 12 188,5,9 

lndlrs;I 100 100 �2Q,2jll 

ll'l<lirl!CI 100 100 {286) 

1�1!!9 Uí6 868 166,� ,�.12,1 

lnd1rcd 37 p (190,343} 

lndl¡m (204,554), 

tndlrea 1 730 -1,730 IJJ,73§1 

lndlrect 2 11 156 
lndlrea 32 3l 000 S6 

lndlrea 231,337 231,137 {t['t§fill 

lndirect 6,000 6000 5,587 
(ndirect 12,ª30 12,830 S3,0�S 

lndlrtltt 3,337 J,337 8,208 

Indlrec! 6j,ll3 61J33 �.�!ll! 

lndJ!lfl 8,114 B,IM }.7,2!!1 

lndlrett 60 r,o !204} 

lndln,:t 300 3110 35,332 

frl(llr«:t 92,987 69,q76· !i:11,4�1 

tnd!rect 28 28 (37,205) 

lndir«:t 4f289 �2,289 ¡2a,1211 

Indirect 46 46 63 506 

lndlrtg �6.551 4§,'351 19,981)1 

(ndl!!¡!;\ 116 116 §g,�18 

l!l!li!N 71 71 18,!�7 

Indirect 30.670 30,670 16,186 
Jndlrect 605 605 12,365 
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1. Company situation

a. Our Group

CEPSA is a multinational energy group with more than 89 years of experience in the sector. We operate the 

entire value chain for oil and gas, from exploration and production to distribution and marketing of the final 

products. 

This integrated business model provides us with the additional stability needed to offset adverse effects on 

any single business area, and allows us to establish synergies amongst different activities, increasing 

efficiency. 

Our technical expertise and adaptability have made us one of the largest Spanish industrial groups in terms 

of sales volume, and a benchmark group for the sector. 

Currently, we are present in more than twenty countries and working on further expanding our activities 

internationally. As a dynamic group with an innovative spirit and a great capacity to adapt to new and 

evolving scenarios in the industry, in 2011, we initiated a deep cultural and strategic change together with 

International Petroleum Investment Company PJSC (IPIC). 

In 2017, Mubadala Investment Company (the ultimate parent of the Company) instructed International 

Petroleum Investment Company (100% direct owner of the Company) to transfer its entire ownership in the 

Company to an entity under common control, Cepsa Holding LLC. Hence, Cepsa Holding LLC is the direct 

100% shareholder of the Company as at 31 December 2018. 

Our objective is to position ourselves uniquely in the global energy market, establishing presence across all 

phases of the oil and gas value chain while remaining true to our mission of supplying the energy that each 

situation may require and vision to be a global energy company of choice. 

In Cepsa we maintain our commitment to the safety and environment. We are aware of the impact of our 

activities on the environment and uphold the compatibility of development and conservation of the 

environment, supporting the sustainability and optimization of our activities with the mínimum possible 

impact on the natural environment. 

b. Business model

As an integrated energy Company we perform our activities in many countries via the following business 

segments: 

Exploration and Production (E&P) 

This business area includes all activities related to exploration and production of hydrocarbons. We are 

present in South America, Africa, the Middle East, Spain, and Southeast Asia, with a production capacity of 

more than 83,000 barreis of petroleum per day. 

In March 2018, Cepsa acquired a 20% interest for 40 years in a concession with two large oil fields in the 

Abu Dhabi. As a result of this acquisition, our resources have been tripled and our production capacity 
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increased by 50%. We also operate several oil fields in Algeria, including the second largest in the country. 

Finally, our presence in Colombia is significant, where we are the fifth largest company in the sector. 

We have a diversified E&P activity, with assets onshore and offshore (in deep and shallow waters). 

The price of crude oil has a significant impact on exploration and production activities. For the coming years 

moderate increases are expected in crude oíl prices as the markets gradually find sorne equilibrium, with the 

oversupply concerns receding. 

Rising development costs for exploration projects, mainly due to projects' increasing technical complexity, 

and the low price of crude oil, has accelerated the search for efficiencies and required us to be very selective 

when investing in new projects. 

In the recent years, CEPSA has adapted to the new environment of volatility in the price of crude oil, 

optimizing our costs, showing resilience in the face of crude oil prices, progressively reducing our break-even 

levels below $30/barrel, successfully working on the replacement of reserves and strengthening our position 

in the key regions where we are active. 

Refining 

Crude oils are distilled via refining, which involves selecting the most appropriate oil for our refineries and 

transforming the oil into products for sale in the markets where we operate. The refining activity is integrated 

in other businesses of the CEPSA, from supplying crude oil to marketing products (Trading, Marketing, 

Petrochemicals, Gas and Power) with a view to maximizing margins in the value chain. 

Our refining activity is centered in Spain with two refineries, amounting to a total crude oil distillation capacity 

of 23.9 million tons per year, totaling 32% of capacity installed in Spain, and from which we supply to the 

domestic and export markets. 

The refining overcapacity in Europe and the competitiveness of refineries in Russia, the Middle East, and the 

USA continue to pose the main threat to European refineries. In 2018, the refining margins have registered 

a decline to more moderate levels when compared with the high margins registered in 2017. 

The regulatory framework is becoming a factor of great influence in the industry, where environmental 

demands and technical specifications of the products are increasingly restrictive, including lower CO2 

emissions and greater presence of biofuels. 

The 'Bottom of Barrel' project is being implemented, which, with an estimated budget of 930 million euros, 

will involve, through the manufacture of intermediate products of greater value, an improvement in our 

refining margin and the competitiveness of our refineries, consolidating them as among the most efficient in 

Europe. 

Through the Trading unit we carry out the sale of the crude oil we extract together with our surplus refinery 

products, supplying the refinery with raw materials and intermediate products, managing the price risks in 

the markets of futures and other derivatives. 

As a complement to our operations of refining, we have a combined cycle plant as well as electricity and 

steam cogeneration plants in the main production centers, fueled by natural gas, and we also supply 

electricity to industrial clients and consumers in the service sector. 
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In Cepsa we strive to enter new energy markets with high growth potential to complement our integrated 

model, as in the case of renewable energies. In this context, we have acquired the rights to develop a wind 

farm which will be located in the province of Cádiz. 

Marketing 

In CEPSA we pursue commercial oil and gas activities via three sales channels: we boast a wide network of 

service stations (around 1,800 service centers) in Spain, Portugal, Andorra, and Gibraltar, our own direct 

sales channels, and an extensive domestic and international network of agents and distributors. Employing 

these three channels, we market automotive, and jet fuels, asphalt tars, lubricants, and liquefied petroleum 

gases, as well as a wide range of petrochemical products. Likewise, we supply fuels far ships at the main 

Spanish ports, where are leaders, and at important locations far international maritime traffic, such as 

Fujairah and Panama. 

We market our innovative quality products and services in numerous countries. We are positioned in the 

market as a company which supplies products and services adapted to the needs of our clients. 

In Spain, the degree of coverage provided by our service station network is slightly greater than in other 

European countries. Consequently, it is of great operational importance to differentiate these service stations 

in the market as well as ensure customer loyalty to so as to ensure the network's profitability in a competitive 

environment. 

Petrochemicals 

We manufacture and market basic petrochemical products and derivatives, through our investment in group 

companies. We carry out basic petrochemical activities in the refineries, obtaining raw materia Is, intermediate 

products, and finished products. We have plants that carry out derivative petrochemical activity, in Spain, 

Germany, Canada, Brazil, Nigeria, China and Indonesia. Our manufactured products have a multitude of 

applications as raw materials, far the production of detergents, as well as the manufacture of resins, 

electronic components, insecticides, synthetic fibers, and pharmaceutical products, amongst others. We are 

global leaders in the LAB business line and second in the Phenol-Acetone line. 

Since technology is a key competitive factor in the chemical industry and one of the most important 

differentiating elements, the Chemicals unit of the Cepsa Group works with the Research Center of the 

Company in the development of new manufacturing and optimization processes, in collaboration with official 

bodies, such as the Spanish National Research Council (Consejo Superior de Investigaciones Científicas in 

Spanish - "CSIC"), as well as with outside institutes and universities. 

c. Corporate governance

CEPSA believes effective and robust corporate governance plays a critica! role in ensuring its success in the 

markets where it operates and the achievement of its strategic objectives, and serves as a springboard far 

long-term sustainable growth and value creation. The Company's governance framework adheres to the 

recommendations set out in the new Code of Governance of Usted Companies in Spain, insofar as applicable; 

the legal and regulatory requirements far corporations; and best international governance standards and 

practices. 

CEPSA's governance structure consists of its Sale Shareholder, the Board of Directors and two standing Board 

Committees: the Audit, Compliance and Ethics Board Committee and the Nomination and Compensation 

Compañía Española de Petróleos, S.A.U. 5 



i CEPSA

Board Committee, both of which are advisory and non-executive bodies, with powers to review, inform and 

recommend within their scope of authority and responsibilities. 

With the exception of matters reserved exclusively to the Sole Shareholder, the Board of Directors is the 

highest administrative and representative body of the Company and is responsible far overseeing and 

monitoring business and management performance; approving the plans, policies, targets and strategies of 

the Company, including the corporate risk management and control policy and tax strategy, and ensuring 

their execution and implementation. 

The members of Cepsa's Board of Directors, appointed for six-year terms, collectively bring their high 

professional caliber, diverse and distinguished backgrounds, and extensive business expertise in industry, 

finance and energy. 

At December 31, 2018 and until the date of issuance of this report, the composition of the Board of Directors 

was as follow: 

Mr. Pedro Miró Roig 
Managing Director and Vice-

chairman 

Mr. Ahmed Saeed 
Mohamed Alcalily Alameri 

Director 

Mr. Musabbeh Helal Musabbeh Ali 
Alkaabi 

Ms. Alyazia Ali Saleh 
Ahmed Alkuwaiti 

Director 

Mr. Bakheet Saeed Bakheet 
Salem Alkatheeri 

Director 

Chairman 

Mr. Ángel Corcostegui Guraya 
Director 

Mr. Ignacio Pinilla Rodríguez 
Company Secretary 

Toe two Board Committees have the following duties and responsibilities 

Mr. Saeed Mohamed 
Hamad Fares Almazrouei 

Director 

Mr. José Tellez Menchén 
Company Vice Secretary 

Audít. Compliance and Ethics Board Commlttee: provides oversight for matters related to: interna! audit, 

interna! control, compliance and risk management; the preparation of financia! information and financia! 

reporting and disclosure processes; and the relationship with the externa! auditor. It also reviews and makes 

recommendations on key stakeholder policies for Board approval. 

Nomination and Compensation Board Committee: reviews, reports and makes recommendations on the 

general compensation and incentive policies for Board members and Company Executives; and formulates 

reports and proposals to the Board on the decisions to be adopted in cases of conflicts of interest. 

d. Group companies and business lines

The main entities comprising the Cepsa Group are shown below: 
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And a world map showing where we operate: 
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Below are the most significant Group companies grouped by business segments: 

r 

\. 

EXPLORATION 

& 

PRODUCTION 

Exploration & 
P1-od1.,ctior; 

C2psa E.P AtH! !)hcÜJI 
S.L.U. 

[ Ce'erSa p'°, ';dl!ci, S.A c. 

�lopu Holdi11s1 
(SinLk.ll.;l.)l f)) ¡ .. rt- i l [� 

1...-:oastai En.::•!�'; 
r�o: 1ma11\ Kll1}1 a 1, L T D 

�()�íV\0 Anu [.llkiOl 
E.P. Co 

Aou Dhahl 011 Co 
( A[J(JC) 

1\µico t LC 

r 

REFINING 

\.. ,, 

Gas ) [ __ R.efining�] (..___________, 

[...__Trading____,] [ 
__ 

Power 

;: .\l.L1. AE; opue1 IGS 
r_:Lmc:fio:,, S,i..... 

s ,\ 

Spdíl1si 1 �nt,_1t!lé11�•:? 
S-e1 1:iu:?:::., ':"1.1'.:I..U 

',_'P!)�,ll CJS 

( o, ne! Lic,it.ddo, ,=1, ''"lJ\. 

-�1 1)�_,'-: ;; 1�; Y 1:!�.:d1iUcl1!(I 
S J.\ i.: 

'.J':.'!H:,·, l!,/)11 f:!(-�Ctt IC _;, 

1 )�:;¡ 11nStil 11, � /\, 

illit:'/LI tJ,.;,rn.:r:1(i01,1,11:l 'lu1, 
e, A 

')¡ 1 1 .'u (<1b t:"11'-'in��!1co•� 1 !P 
/\\tu E: 1t!1-:11cld, '.:

'. 
.L\ 1.I. 

] 

Compañía Española de Petróleos, S.A.U. 

MARKETING 

D1rect Scl\:éS 

Aviiltion 

Lubr:cants 

A,phalts 

LP.G 

Sunker 

C•.:;!J'..1d 1 0111,,¡, i11! 
f\�{1Ólt:or S.J�"',J, 

Cf::!J!PS;\, C,1(!i(k1llhJ 
J :.�: .. dl1ílk1. iJbt: 1DUldn 

i:i,:: 1.i,;1 ,l_)!,:n 1 �).A. 

t 1-�!YH1 ! J111 tu1 lli(-",d 
,1,•r,•iku•, :,J\ 

[ Ai 1 A�,·,A ) 

( ,:,,p,n •'c11i,ll!I,,., '.;.A ] 

l!�IU 

9 

PETROCHEMICAL 

LAB 1_,15 

l..!:::r.1-:.,(� U1ir-1t1 
dóc....111Cou, 1 rr-ic 

r, .. :;}Scl (JV:.' :l((di 
�r1anun,ii: i.;CJ, � íl) 

'-::iÍl1(11, �1dS L-1-��)'d i) ! t, 
!__lLJ 

r 

CORPORATION 

& SUPPORT 

CORPORA:lml 

¡:, SUDPORT 

(
.
e:_}Sd f:1Lb!! 1';"·½�1 
')<:.'I\IÍ(:f�-., S.I\ 

Ct�p�a 1ntc• 11e11.1oi1 ii 
bV 

(t::¡.Jbd r11.�cl:'>l 11 \/ 
:; A ,1 



�J=CEPSR 

e. Strategic bases

The Group strategy is based on considering, first, our long-term plan with a 2019-2023 timeline and, 

second, a strategic outlook up to 2030 (hereinafter, Cepsa 2030). 

In the 2019-2023 timeline, we firmly maintain our main objectives and strategic commitments: 

• maximizing shareholder returns

• maintaining financia! soundness

• achieving sustained long-term growth

Given that externa! factors condition present and future developments in our activity, we have prioritized 

objectives which we will achieve by implementing strategic actions in each of the business units. 

Externa! factors: 

• Crude oil price volatility

• Slow recovery and stabilization of demand far petroleum products

• Refining overcapacity in Europe

• Stricter requirements / Changes in regulations

• Geopolitical situation

• Technological developments

Priority objectives: 

1. Replacement of reserves and strengthening of our position in key regions

2. Continuous improvement in efficiency of processes and optimization of our operations

3. Adapting portfolio to include products of higher added value

4. Technological innovation

5. Management regulatory impact

6. Expansion of business to new markets, both domestic and international

Strategic actions: 

• Optimization of costs

• Investments adapted to the price environment

• Possible mergers and acquisitions

• Redesigning our product portfolio to manufacture products with greater added value and more

demand

• Exploring international opportunities

• Progressive entry to renewable energy market

As far Cepsa 2030, it is rooted in the Group's Mission of providing the energy solutions to meet the 

demand of consumers, our Vision of being a global energy company of choice, and our Values. Cepsa's 

2030 strategy is based on three basic pillars: 

1. An exhaustive analysis of the energy outlook until 2030 based on projected demand set out in

our Cepsa Energy Outlook 2030 report.
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2. Our strengths and ability to continue developing new capacities required by our industry in the

future.

3. The vision of our shareholder.

Our strategic goals and differential approach are as follows: 

Robustness: being a top integrated and balanced energy player, focused on achieving our targets. 

Growth: relying on our privileged access to high-growth markets in MENA and LATAM, we are 

uniquely positioned to capture value from new energy trends. 

Leadership: we strive to be a top quartile performer in terms of operational excellence in each of our 

businesses. 

Maximize value: through delivering salid economic and sustainable value creation. 

Agility: we are owned by a sole shareholder, providing agility in executing our strategies and flexibility 

in adapting to changes in the operating and business environment. 

Cepsa 2030 will enable us to create a bigger and stronger Cepsa, with sizeable strategic operations in 

areas that offer high-growth potential, and to be well-positioned to face a rapidly changing and dynamic 

energy sector. 

f. Responsible business

Mission 

We are present across the value chain for the oil and gas industry, involving more than 10,100 

professionals and presence in four continents. 

Our process for continuous improvement leads us to search for new objectives and challenges 

constantly, maintaining a firm commitment to the maximum customer satisfaction, adapting the energy 

solutions to their needs. 

Vision 

We are an integrated energy company, technically excellent, modern, innovative, and with adaptive 

capacity. Cepsa is considered as a reference point in the domestic market and our objective is to attain 

an important position in the global energy markets. This vision is realized applying the fundamental 

values associated with our brand: 

• Security: Security and well-being for people is one of our priorities for both employees and

clients, preventing and minimizing risks at our installations and in the environment in which we

operate. We aim for excellence as well as spreading the value of security beyond the working

environment.

• Sustainability: The Company is committed to maximum respect for protection of the

environment and communities in the areas where we are present.

• Continuous improvement: Cepsa is committed to developing and promoting talent and

knowledge, innovating processes, and taking on new challenges, thus reflecting its drive for

excellence and an open-minded attitude towards change.
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• Leadership: The Group strives to defend its interests audaciously and ambitiously, but also in

an honest and wholesome manner, showing commitment to excellence and continuous

collective learning.

• Solidarity: Since we are a team with global interests, we maintain a positive attitude while

working and thereby manage to create value through the collaboration of our professionals

amongst themselves and with our clients and suppliers.

Code of ethics 

CEPSA has always maintained a strong commitment to ethical behavior and integrity in all its actions. 

We follow a Code of Conduct and Ethics, supervised by the Board committee far Audit, Compliance, and 

Ethics, which is responsible far impelling, monitoring, and controlling compliance with the Group's 

values, principies, and norms of behavior, as well as analyzing and responding to ethical dilemmas that 

have arisen and been investigated. Said Code covers a wide regulatory framework and is integrated 

within the norms and policies far good corporate governance of our organization. Further, it is obligatory 

far all personnel of the Group to adhere to said Code. 

CEPSA has an Ethical Channel and a procedure far investigation, both accessible to the public via the 

corporate website www.cepsa.com, far purposes of communicating incidences and reporting 

irregularities with respect to our Code of Conduct and Ethics. 

2. Business outlook

a. Macroeconomic environment

The results of the Cepsa's businesses far the period were achieved within an environment in which the 

key variables affecting it have developed as shown below: 

• Global environment

• Price of Brent crude oil

• Supply and demand far petroleum products

ID Regulations 

• Refining margins

• $/€ exchange rate

Global environment 

At the beginning of 2018, the world economy showed a high rate of growth, but during the year it 

faltered. The international organizations agree that Global growth is entering a period of deceleration 

and the latest estimates have been revising these projections downward. 

Toe International Monetary Fund, in its January 2019 publication "World Economic Outlook" estimates 

a 3.7% growth of the world economy in 2018 and projects a 3.5% growth of the world economy in 

2019, 0.2 percentage points less than forecast in its October report. This slowdown is partly due to the 

negative effects of tariff increases in the US and China during the year. 

Although economic growth is slowing down in emerging economies and the Eurozone, the positive global 

environment is maintained, with the world economy continuing to expand. The impact of protectionism 

Compañía Española de Petróleos, S.A.U. 12 



�J=CEPSR 

is currently limited, but remains the main risk along with the normalization of the FEO and política! 

uncertainty in Europe (tensions in Italy and Brexit). 

The Spanish economy continued to show considerable momentum in 2018, supported by favorable 

worldwide economic growth and the persistence of positive financing conditions, with GDP growth of 

2.5% in 2018. The Bank of Spain forecasts GDP growth of 2.2% far 2019. These projections are 

somewhat lower than those reported in the previous quarter due to the slowdown in domestic 

consumption, uncertainty abroad and the lower impact of the ECB's expansionary monetary policy. 

Price of crude (Brent) 

The price of crude oil has a crucial impact on oil and gas companies, especially affecting exploration 

and production activities. 

The price of Brent crude oil, Europe's benchmark, has averaged 71.0 $/bbl for 2018, compared to 54.3 

$/bbl in 2017. During the first nine months of 2018, the price rose sharply to 86 $/bbl as a result of 

supply cuts (mainly OPEC Countries and Russia) and looming US sanctions on Iran oil exports coupled 

with the increase in world oil demand. However, in the last quarter of the year, the increase in the 

United States production, exemptions to 8 countries by US to continue buying Iran oil along with the 

fear of a slowdown in the global economy reduced the demand for crude, drove to a significant reduction 

in the prices, which reached a mínimum of 50 $/bbl in the month of December. 

Below is the evolution of the Brent prices during the last two years: 

BRENT $/Bbl 
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Demand 

The global economic growth of 2018, which was a continuation of 2017, resulted in higher global 

demand for crude oil during the year. This growth was especially notable during the first semester, 

partially slowing down during the second hatf-year. On one hand, the tower international oíl prices and 

a weaker dallar has enable to sustain this increase in demand, especially in Asia. On the other, the 

confidence is waning in many developed economies and this may entail a slowdown is anticipated in 

OECD countries, with the exception of the USA. 

Quantitatively, global demand for petroleum during 2018 amounted to an average of 99.2 mi Ilion barreis 

per day (hereinafter "MMBD"), compared to 97.9 MMBD in 2017. 

Supply 

On the supply side there was also an increase of 1.5 million barreis per day, resulting in an average of 

99.9 MMBD as compared to 97.4 MMBD for 2017. Production in the USA has shown strong growth which 

largely offset the productions cuts from Venezuela or Iran. 

Regulations 

Regulatory issues are becoming an even more influential factor in the oil and gas industry than up until 

now, mainly in developed countries where environmental demands and technical specifications with 

respect to products are increasingly restrictive. The well-trailed changes to the International Maritime 

Organization's marine fuel regulations due in 2020 are a big challenge for sorne refineries which will 

have to adapt their production mix. 

Refining margins 

Refining margins during the year reached more moderate values than those exceptionally high in 2017. 

The main decreases by product have occurred in the light and heavy distillates while the middle 

distillates had higher margins compared to the previous year. 

Exchange rate 

The early months of 2018 initially registered an appreciation of the euro against the dallar, reaching an 

exchange of $1.25 per € in the month of March. From April on, the protectionist measures implemented 

by the United States government to curb the deficit, together with the political instability in the Eurozone 

(tensions in Italy and Brexit), have reversed the trend, leading to an exchange rate of $1.1450 per € at 

the end of the year. 
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Performance of $/€ exchange rate 
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b. Significant events for the period
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In order to optimize the structure of the group, the following operations have been carried out: 

Contribution by shareholders in Cepsa EP Abu Dhabi, S.L. amounting to 1,368,650 thousand euros, 
Cepsa Gas Comercializadora S.A. amounting to 13,090 thousand euros, Cepsa Panamá S.A.U. 
amounting to 21,966 thousand euros and Cepsa Afgerie S.L. amounting to 53,820 thousand euros. 

• Incorporation of the companies Cepsa Treasury, S.L.U., Cepsa Finance, S.L.U and Cepsa E.P. Mexico,
S. de R.L. de C.V.

• Capital increase of Cepsa Oleo gas do Brasil L TOA in the amount of 3,156 thousand euros and of
Cepsa Algerie S.L. by means of a contribution from the activity in Tímimoum valued at 133,033 
thousand euros.

On the other hand, the signíficant operations carried out during the year 2018 are the following: 

• In January 2018, the purchase agreement between Cepsa and Total, partners together with
Sonatrach (the Algerían State hydrocarbons company) in the gas sales subsidiary Cepsa Gas
Comercializadora (CGC), under which Cepsa acquired the 35% that Total owned in that subsidiary,
took place after receívíng approval from the competent authorities. After this transaction, Cepsa has
increased its stake to 70%, becoming therefore the controlling shareholder, while Sonatrach holds
the remaining 30% of the share capital.

• In January 2018, Cepsa, Sonatrach and Alnaft, the National Agency of Algería for the Valorization of
Resources in Hydrocarbons, signed a new concession contract far the exploitation of the Rhoude el
Krouf (RKF) deposit, located in the Berkine basin. Thís new contract, which has a 25 year term, will
allow a complete redevelopment of a mature field, after 19 years in operation, with the objective of
significantly increasing the production of crude oii and proc!ucing líquefied petroleum gas (LPG) for
the first time, thanks to the use of cutting-edge hydrocarbon recovery tecl1niques.

• In January 2018 we launched Cepsa Hogar, which provides retail customers an integrated energy
offer (which includes electricity, gas and maintenance services, along with fuel discounts in our
network of service stations). With Cepsa Hogar, the objective is to become an integral energy
supplier.

Compañía Española de Petróleos, S.A.U. 15 



::;J:: CEPSA

• In February 2018, Timimoun, our first natural gas field in which Cepsa owns an 11 % interest, located

in the south-west of Algeria, started production. Timimoun connects with the GRS gas pipeline, which

links the gas fields of southwest Algeria with Hassi R'mel, the largest natural gas field in Algeria and

also one of the largest in the world. The field will reach a maximum daily production of 5 million

cubic-meter of gas, the equivalent of 28,000 barreis of crude oil per day.

• In February 2018, we signed an offshore concession contract with ADNOC, upan which Cepsa has

acquired a 20% interest in the SARB and Umm Lulu concessions in Abu Dhabi. The contract lasts 40

years, triples the Group's crude reserves and will increase production by more than 50 percent. Total

investment far the acquisition of the 20% interest amounted to 1,500 million US dollars. In December

2018 the commercialization of crude oil extracted from these fields began.

• In March 2018, the revamping of the chemical plant of Puente Mayorga was approved, a transaction

that will improve the plant's market positioning by implementing the best technology available, and

which will increase its current production capacity by 50,000 tons. The project will also consolidate

our position as world leaders in the manufacture of LAB, especially in west, north and South African

markets, which present a high growth potential for the demand for this product. This investment will

also reinforce our integrated model by securing 100% of LAB's supply to the three CSChem plants

in Nigeria, manufacturers of LABSA. In addition, thanks to the implementation of the new technology,

DETAL PLUSTM, the inherent risks of the current technology (HF - hydrofluoric acid) will be

eliminated, overall plant efficiency will improve, raising its qualitative parameters, making its

environmental behavior more sustainable and reducing its operating costs. This revamping is

expected to enter into production during 2020.

• In March 2018, Cepsa was awarded with three exploration blocks in Mexico, in the Tampico-Misantla

basin, one of the largest hydrocarbon producing areas in Mexico, where it is explored in shallow

waters and with nearby deposits. The participation of Cepsa is 20% in each block, with the remaining

percentage being PEMEX Exploration and Production in one of the blocks, and PEMEX Exploration

and Production and DEUTSCHE ERDOEL Mexico in the other two.

• In April 2018, the acquisition of the Petronas stake in the Algerian Bir el Msana (BMS) field was

completed, increasing our interest from 45% to 75%. The remaining 25% stake belongs to

SONATRACH (state-owned hydrocarbons company). BMS is an oilfield located in the northeast of the

Algerian desert, in the Berkine basin, where we lead the operation, alongside with SONATRACH,

since 2013. It was launched in July 2015, and has seven wells in total: three production wells, three

of water injection and one of gas injection. Currently, the field produces around 12,500 barreis per

day of oil.

• In May 2018, the Group approved the 'Bottom of the Barre!' project in the Refining segment with an

estimated budget of 930 million euros. This strategic project will entail a change in a combination of

severa! key levers such as the change in crude quality supply and the production of higher added

value products and intermediates. It will improve Cepsa's competitiveness and its refining margin,

consolidating its refineries among the most efficient in Europe, through greater integration in the

refining system. Therefore, this project is expected to have an important impact on the Refining

segment long term results, contributing to boost Cepsa's Group results.

• In July 2018 Cepsa teams up with IONITY to install a network of high performance charging points

in Spain and Portugal. IONITY will install up to 100 charging points at Cepsa Service Stations located

on motorways and highways. Objective is to make long distance electric vehicle journeys possible.
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The electricity supplied at these facilities will be 100% renewable. The first charging points will be 

operational in early 2019. 

• The 17 September 2018, Cepsa announced its intention of an Initial Public Offering and starting

therefore to be listed in the stock exchange market. However, on 15 October 2018, Cepsa Holding

LLC decided to pull out the offer for the sale of shares of Cepsa, and in consequence, delay the

process of admission to trading on the Spanish Stocks Exchanges citing the unfavorable market

conditions. This decision was communicated to the National Securities Market Commission (CNMV)

as a relevant fact.

• In October 2018 Cepsa's Gibraltar San Roque refinery started up its new plant called Sorbex-2 for

the production of metaxylene, a raw material in the manufacture of polymers and plastics. Around

€70 million has been invested for the implementation of the latest industrial advances made in this

production process.

c. Analysis of results

The financia! statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 were prepared in accordance with the 

regulatory framework of financia! information applicable to the Company, applying the accounting 

criteria established in Spanish National Chart of Accounts. 

Revenue increased to 19,460 million euros in 2018, with a 3,305 million euros increase over 2017. The 

above increase was chiefly the result of the increase in the price of crude oil and finished products and 

the recovery of domestic demand which boosted sales. The rise was partially offset by the depreciation 

of the dallar vs. the euro, as a significant portian of sales are in the US dallar. 

The cost of supplies rose 3,422 million euros and reached 14,614 million euros in accumulated figures 

for the year. 

Profit befare tax totaled 1,121 million euros, which is 67% higher than in 2017: discounting income tax 

expense and similar taxes, after tax profit was 1,010 million euros (2017: 408 million euros). 

d. Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2018, CEPSA's assets amounted to 9,909 million euros, which represents a 14.8% 

increase on the previous year. 

Of the above figure, non-current assets, including property, plant, and equipment, intangible and 

financia! assets, and deferred tax assets totaled 6,107 million euros at year-end 2018, with an increase 

of 30.3% compared to the previous year. 

Equity totaled 3,900 million euros at year-end 2018 and represents 39% of assets. 

In compliance with the third additional provision on "Duty of information" of Law 15/2010, the average 

payment period to suppliers was 22 days. 

3. Risk management model

Risk management is a majar focus area at all levels of CEPSA. The Board of Directors, Management, 
and other stakeholders share the view that poor risk management has the potential to destroy value in 
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the Company, while good risk management can identify market positioning opportunities and increase 
shareholder value. 

Following the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO-ERM) and 

the ISO 31000 standards, Cepsa has developed an Integrated Risk Management System (IRMS) that 
defines the general framework, principies and procedures that must be followed, in arder to effectively 
identify, monitor, assess, manage and mitigate risks of any nature faced by the Cepsa Group. 

The spectrum of risks that the Cepsa Group is exposed to can be broadly grouped into the following 
four key risk categories: 

a. Strategic risks, related to general factors such as política!, economic, socio-cultural,

technological, and environmental risks, as well as those related to the Group's strategic

positioning and planning.

b. Financia! and Market Risks arising from the volatility of commodity prices, credit markets,

exchange rates, interest rates and hedging and trading transactions, as well as those related to

liquidity and solvency management, credit risk management and counter-party risk.

c. Operational and Infrastructural Risks associated with, among others, the business model,

natural disasters and the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, including the supply of

products, goods and services, transport management, extraction and manufacturing processes,

sales and marketing, safety of people and facilities, respect far the environment, human

resources and information technology.

d. Compliance Risks, related to any Ethical misconduct, violation of or non-compliance with

applicable law and regulation, and violation of or non-compliance with the Group's internal

policies and procedures.

In this context, in the course of the CEPSA's strategic and budgetary planning process, the effect of the 

main risks that could have an impact on the businesses was estimated and a sensitivity analysis of the 

main variables was performed in order to obtain an overall view of their impact. 

The following is a description of sorne of the main risks that may affect CEPSA: 

a. Strategical risks

Macroeconomics Risks 

Many economies around the world, including many of those in which we operate, have suffered 

slowdowns and/or recessionary conditions over the last decade. These conditions were amplified by 

volatile credit and equity markets conditions. While certain of these conditions had been reversed by 

2017, there can be no assurance that such conditions will not recur, even in the near-term. 

The International Monetary Fund has cut its forecast far world economic growth in 2019 to 3.5% down 

from its 3.7 % forecast in October and 3.9% expected in July. The IMF identifies several risks 

emphasizing the global trade tensions as the risk at the top of the list. 

The IMF also pointed to sorne reasons for concern about financial-market stability, including the risk of 

a messy Brexit as the U.K. struggles to negotiate its divorce from the European Union, Italian fiscal 

policies and the partial U.S. government shutdown. 
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Cepsa monitors key global macroeconomic indicators in-depth and incorporate them into Cepsa's 

decision-making process in arder to plan far potential market shocks. 

Geopolitical Risks 

CEPSA has investments and assets located in, and we source part of our crude oil supply from, countries 

with emerging or transitioning economies that are generally subject to political and economic instability, 

legal uncertainty and security threats. 

With the objective of managing this risk proactively, Cepsa monitors all countries in which it operates, 
fallowing the performance of sorne key indicators defined for a series of categories of identified risk 
sources, among which the fallowing are noteworthy: safety, political stability, efficacy of governments, 
the legal and regulatory environment, tax policy, and macro economy. 

Changes to the legal and regulatory framework in response to environmental as well as 

climate change concerns. 

CEPSA is subject to changes in the legal and regulatory framework related to the environment and 

climate change concerns in the countries in which we operate. Given the continued and increased 

attention to climate change and the global drive towards low-carbon economies and clean energy

sources, we expect, and are preparing far, additional policy and regulatory changes designed to reduce 

greenhouse gas ("GHG") emissions, which we believe will primarily impact our Refining and 

Petrochemicals segments (having current European strict GHG reduction regulation). In addition, while 

our E&P and Marketing segments have not been materially impacted by GHG-reduction regulations, 

these segments could be impacted in the future by the implementation of measures driven by the 

market on a voluntary basis or the imposition of new GHG regulations. 

We expect GHG emission costs to increase from current levels beyond 2020 and for regulation targeting 

reduced GHG emissions to have a wider geographical application than today. There is continuing 

uncertainty over the detail of anticipated regulatory and policy developments, including the targets, 

mechanisms and penalties to be employed, the timeline far legislative change, the degree of global 

cooperation among nations and the homogeneity of the measures to be adopted across different 

regions. 

We are aware that our activities, based on energy supply and petrochemical solutions, are powerfully 

affected by generation of GHG emissions. That is why we maintain a firm commitment to combat Climate 

Change. 

We strive to reduce greenhouse gas emissions generated by our activities in order to reduce our Carbon 

Footprint. By establishing an Energy Efficiency Plan in the production business units, in arder to reduce 

energy usage and bring about a reduction in CO2 emissions. Cepsa is working on a carbon strategy and 

on setting a carbon goal for 2030. 

Risk arising from market competition, changes in demand and the emergence of new 

technologies 

Cepsa products compete in commodity-type markets where product differentiation poses a significant 

challenge and faces strong competition across ali of our business areas. 
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Our principal competitors include other large oil and gas companies, which compete with us in the 

Marketing segment in Spain and Portugal and across our other segments internationally. We also face 

competition from new market entrants, such as in our Refining segment, where there is new production 

capacity in the Middle East, and where increased imports have begun to arrive in the European market 

from the U.S., India and the Middle East. 

Current efficiency improvements, regulatory pressure, and shifts in customer's preferences could cause 

a change in energy demand. 

Moreover, the emergence of one or more disruptive technologies in response to environmental and 

climate change-awareness among governments and consumers could rapidly accelerate the pace of 

change, or suddenly alter the direction of change, having a negative impact on our long-term strategy. 

The pursuit of excellence in customer service, permanent monitoring of a continuously more dynamic 

and changing market trends, or continuous improvement as one of the Group's main values, are sorne 

of the levers Cepsa uses to deal with these risks. 

Refining margin Risk 

A decline in oil refining margins or the product margins of our other segments would adversely affect 

our business, financia! position and income from operations. 

Our refining margins have fluctuated, and will continue to fluctuate, due to numerous factors, including: 

• variations in global demand for crude oil and refined products and, to a lesser extent, variations

in demand for crude oil and refined products in our domestic market;

• changes in environmental or other regulations, which could require us to make substantial

expenditures without necessarily increasing the capacity or operating efficiency of our refineries;

o changes in operating capacity of refineries in our key marketing areas, predominantly in the

Iberian market and the rest of Europe;

0 changes in the spreads between heavy and light crude oil prices on international markets;

• changes in the supply of refined products, including imports.

Transformation and optimization projects to improve the efficiency and effectiveness of processes and 

operations at our industrial plants, and strengthen integration and synergies between units are examples 

of how Cepsa manages refining margin fluctuations. 

Oil and Gas Reserves related risks 

The successful implementation of our strategy requires us to sustain and grow our long-term oil and 

natural gas reserves. This, in turn, depends on our ability to find and develop (or acquire) additional 

proved oil and natural gas reserves and to progress our upstream resources to "proved" reserves in a 

timely and commercially viable manner. 

If we are not able to replace or grow our oil and gas reserves, we may be unable to meet our production 

targets in line with our strategy and our total proved reserves would decline, any of which would have 

a material adverse effect on our business, financia! position and results of operations. 
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The Cepsa Group is focused on delivering production growth projects that ensure the long-term 

sustainability of the Upstream business. 

Risks arising from relationships with stakeholders 

Cepsa operates in multiple environments in which there are diverse interest groups, mainly local 

communities of the areas which may be affected by the Group's activities, as well as civil society or 

politics organizations, trade unions, etc. 

Should the interests of these groups be in conflict with the activities of Cepsa, and communication with 

said groups does not lead to the necessary agreements, the Group may be affected by the opposing 

opinions and actions with respect to its activities and that may damage its image and reputation, 

affecting business opportunities in the area or country. 

Maintaining responsible and transparent relationships with the communities where Cepsa is present is 

an essential and integral part of our activities and operations, that contributes to the generate value for 

the society and cooperate in its economic, social, and environmental development, integrating ourselves 

in the environment and developing social projects. 

The Cepsa Group has created the Cepsa Foundation in 2016 as an example of commitment to the host 

communities and locations where CEPSA performs its activity. Likewise, in 2016 Cepsa created Voluntas, 

a specific corporate volunteer program focused on caring for the environment, fostering employment 

and education, supporting culture, promoting sport and health and addressing basic needs. 

b. Financia! and market risks

The Company is exposed to a series of risks of a financia! nature as a consequence of the variety of 

businesses it pursues as well as its presence in a multitude of countries, sectors, and markets. 

Below is a description of the main financia! risks to which CEPSA is exposed: raw materia Is (commodities) 

prices, exchange rates, interest rates, liquidity risk, credit risk and taxation risk. 

Commodity price risk 

We are an integrated oíl and gas company with activities across the value chain, íncludíng exploratíon 

and production, refining, marketing and petrochemicals. The prices of crude oil, natural gas, oil products 

and petrochemicals are affected by supply and demand, both globally and regionally, and depend on a 

variety of factors. 

The price fluctuations of these commodities are constantly monitored and, on certain occasions, Cepsa 

contracts financia! derivatives in arder to reduce its exposure to the variability of these prices. 

Foreign currency risk 

The US dallar is the currency used as a reference in markets for crude oil as well as petroleum and 

petrochemical products, the main markets in which Cepsa operates. Thus, and considering that the euro 

is used as the presentation currency in the consolidated financia! statements, Cepsa is exposed in a 

large portian of its transactions to changes in the euro/US dallar exchange rate. 
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The different sources of exchange rate risk, as well as the actions taken to mitigate them, can be 

summarized as follows: 

l. From an operational point of view, the US dollar is the currency in which a multitude of the

commercial transactions are denominated, such as crude oíl supply for example.

CEPSA minimizes the impact of exchange rate risk on these transactions by centralizing and

managing the net global position of cash flows in US dollars from the different group companies

in a subsidiary.

2. Risk relating to the net value of consolidated equity investments in foreign subsidiaries is

mitigated maintaining debt in the currency in which each investment is denominated, applying

net investment hedges to said subsidiaries.

Interest rate risk 

CEPSA is exposed to changes in interest rates that may have an impact on its income statement, 

affecting interest-related income and expenses as well as certain balance sheet items as a consequence 

of discount rates applied to assets and liabilities, the profitability of its investments, or the future cost 

of financia! debt. 

For purposes of managing and mitigating this risk, CEPSA obtains financing at a fixed rate or contracts 

interest rate hedges via financia! derivatives when deemed appropriate. 

At 2018 year end, clase to 25.71% of gross financia! debt accrued interest at a fixed rate, including 

interest rate derivatives covering variable rate debt. The remaining 74.29% is referenced to the Libar 

and Euribor. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk relates to the capacity of CEPSA to obtain financing at reasonable market prices, as well 

as cover the funding needs required to carry on its business. 

Thus, CEPSA pursues a conservative financia! policy which involves maintaining available cash balances 

and other liquid financia! instruments, as well as committed credit lines yet to be drawn down, sufficient 

to cover debt maturing within 24 months without the need to obtain new financing in the market or 

refinance available credit lines. 

CEPSA works with leading and highly-reputable national and international financia! entities. However, 

counterparty risk is always analyzed when negotiating investments and arranging financia! instruments 

deals. 

Credit risk 

CEPSA is exposed to credit risk as a consequence of its counterparties' possible failure to perform 

contractual obligations, regardless of whether they are suppliers, customers, partners, financia! entities, 

etc. 
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To manage this risk, CEPSA has IT systems for the integral and automated treatment of both externa! 

and interna! data. With this information and vía application of scoring models and the assessment of 

risk analysts, counterparties are classified based on credit risk, with a credit limit set for each of them. 

On certain occasions, whether as a result of accumulation or of not wanting to assume certain risks, 

CEPSA transfers certain counterparties' failure risk to third parties by contracting banking guarantees 

or credit insurance policies. 

CEPSA also follows a series of interna! standards and procedures which are periodically updated and 

which regulate the management of credit risk at a global leve! and far each of its businesses. Among 

other things, these standards determine credit limits, monitoring and controlling said limits, establishing 

the most appropriate collection instruments, the guarantees to be requested in case risk is excessive or 

cannot be assumed, the actions to be taken in the case of non-payment far collection of past due 

amounts, etc. 

With respect to credit risk relating to financia! investments, financia! derivatives, and liquid assets, this 

risk is more limited than in the case of commercial credit, as the counterparties which CEPSA operates 

with are mostly financia! institutions and insurance companies with a high level of credit solvency. 

However, CEPSA also assesses the solvency of each of these counterparties, assigning a credit limit to 

each one of them. 

The risk to which CEPSA is exposed does not involve any significant concentration in terms of commercial 

counterparties, as its sales are distributed amongst a large number of clients. The maximum exposure 

to risk in connection with commercial counterparties does not exceed 2.5% of all commercial credit. 

Tax strategy and management 

The energy sector involves a particular tax framework. The existence of specífic taxes on profits, production 

or consumption of products is common in the Upstream and Downstream sectors. 

CEPSA tax strategy is mainly aimed at compliance with the applicable tax regulations in its areas of activity 

and to ensure adequate fulfilment of this principie by all the companies comprising the Group. CEPSA 

commitment is reflected in the Tax Policy approved by the Board of Directors in 2015. 

One of the main principies established therein by the CEPSA is not to utilize companies registered in tax 

havens unless their presence in said territories is a result of valid economic motives or because they were 

directly or indirectly acquired as a consequence of the acquisition of a group of companies. 

Notwithstanding the above, CEPSA is exposed to changes in the applicable tax regulation as well as to 

potential different interpretations of said tax regulation from the relevant tax authorities. 

c. Operation and infrastructure risks

The main operational risks to which Cepsa is exposed are as fallows: 

Process safety, personal safety and environmental 

The technical complexity of our operations exposes us to a wide range of health, safety and 

environmental (''HSE") risks. Our operations that are vulnerable to such risks include oíl and gas E&P, 

transport and shipping of hydrocarbons, oíl refining, distribution of petroleum products, operation of 
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electricity generation facilities and the processing of petrochemicals, particularly where such facilities 

are located in environmentally-sensitive regions or protected areas (such as maritime environments or 

remote areas with dense vegetation) or in the proximity of densely populated areas. 

CEPSA has a safety management system as set out in its "Basic Regulations", integrating safety 

throughout the different levels of the organization. This management system is based on the 

international OHSAS 18001:2007 standard, a certification that has been granted to all of Cepsa's 

industrial facilities. In addition, it has established procedures to be followed which reflect the best 

practices in the sector, guaranteeing the highest possible levels of safety, paying particular attention to 

the elimination of risks at source. 

The system implemented is aimed at continuous improvement in risk reduction, supported by a series 

of activities, such as work planning, analysis and monitoring of corrective actions related to incidents 

and accidents, interna! auditing, routine inspections of facilities, and supervision of maintenance and 

operation work. 

Likewise, CEPSA seeks to minimize risks to the environment in operations of its industrial plant, in the 

Basic Environmental Regulations, and in its positioning and strategies in environmental matters, which, 

along with other interna! regulations, form part of the Environmental Management Systems (EMS) 

implemented in the production centers and certified by an accredited externa! entity. 

AII CEPSA industrial plants in Spain have obtained their corresponding Integrated Environmental 

Authorizations, which are renewed periodically. These permissions allow us to tighten control over all 

processes in order to minimize environmental impacts. 

Information security related risks 

The operation of many of our business processes depends on the uninterrupted availability of our 

information technology ("IT") and operational technology ("OT') systems. To maintain competitiveness, 

we are increasingly reliant on automation, centralized operation and new technologies to manage and 

monitor our complex production and processing activities. A cyber-attack on any technology system 

could potentially have serious consequences. 

CEPSA has a security organization in place to guarantee the availability, integrity, confidentiality and 

auditability of the information required to ensure the smooth operation and continuity of the Group's 

activities at an acceptable cost and risk. 

CEPSA has implemented an Information Security Management System based on reducing risks which 

has been awarded the international ISO 27001 Certificate. The implemented system includes 

cybersecurity technology and services (protection, disaster-recovery and detection), as well as standards 

to manage cybersecurity incidents and risks. 

Additionally, CEPSA has a cybersecurity awareness program in place which aims to promote a clear and 

practica! vision of cybersecurity based on four fundamental pillars: information, raising awareness, 

legislation and use of technology. 

Physical and environmental effects of climate change 

Cepsa may be impacted by the physical and environmental effects of climate change, which are difficult 

to predict. Possible outcomes include less stable or predictable weather patterns, which could result in 
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more frequent or severe storms and other weather conditions (such as flooding, drought and hurricanes) 

that could increase our operating costs and interfere with our business operations, particularly when 

located in areas that typically experience more severe weather conditions. 

In addition, significant climatic changes, including a gradual, steady increase in global temperatures, 

could affect consumer behavior and global or regional demand for energy products such as propane, 

butane and natural gas used for residential heating or increase demand for electrical power from air

conditioning units or electric mobility. 

We are aware that our activities, based on energy supply and petrochemical solutions, are powerfully 

affected by generation of GHG emissions. That is why we maintain a firm commitment to combat Climate 

Change. CEPSA has framed a Carbon Strategy analysis to provide us with a range of tools to improve 

in this regard through compliance with the strictest regulations and standards, and with the efficiency 

and sustainability targets that we set ourselves in line with the improvement of our performance, 

evaluating them to bring them in line with our 2030 strategy. 

Major projects management 

CEPSA faces challenges in carrying out major projects, particularly in geographically and technically 

challenging areas. The future growth of our businesses depends on our ability to successfully identify, 

plan and execute projects in a timely and cost-effective manner. 

Exhaustive planning and permanent control of costs and project deadlines are key maxims applied at 

Cepsa when executing and managing the complexity of the projects it undertakes. 

Talent management 

Given the speedy pace of change in the oil and gas industry, evolving legal and regulatory requirements, 

including with respect to climate policy, and the increasing role of technology in the industry, we are 

increasingly reliant on the availability of a suitably-qualified and experienced workforce. CEPSA is aware 

that a long-term perspective on the capacity and competence of the workforce is essential. 

CEPSA had launched different programs focused on development, training and attracting talent such as 

the Challenging U program, established recruitment policies and procedures (such as "Success Factors'') 

that guarantee equal opportunities and zero discrimination and improve the employment offer through 

initiatives carried out by the Company such us Top Employer, certification as Responsible Family 

Company, Social Advantages and so on. 

Insurance and safeguarding of assets 

CEPSA is insured against risks involving material damages, including machinery failure and control of 

crude oil exploration and production wells; loss of profit stemming from material damages; civil liabilities 

arising for both Cepsa or its employees and directors in connection with material damages or personal 

injuries either to third parties or to Company personnel as a result of occupational accidents; and loss 

or damage during transportation of crude oil, other products or equipment. 
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d. Legal and Compliance risks

Regulatory compliance 

Our business activities are subject to laws and regulations in all of the jurisdictions in which we operate, 

including laws relating to the environment, climate change, health and safety, finance and trade, 

consumer protection, competition and anti-trust, employment, tax, data protection, hydrocarbon 

extraction, petrochemical products, public concessions and procurement. 

Any violation of or non-compliance with applicable law and regulation could lead to the imposition of 

substantial fines, sanctions or other measures, based on the findings of any investigation or proceeding 

of the relevant supervisory or administrative body. Furthermore, in sorne cases, plaintiffs could seek 

compensation for any alleged damages arising as a result of any sanctioned conduct. 

In arder to minimize the impact of any possible violation or non-compliance with the aforementioned 

laws and applicable regulations, Cepsa has implemented a compliance management system that 

consists of, various training, awareness-raising and control monitoring activities that mitigate these 

risks. 

Litigation and arbitration 

We are currently a party to a number of legal proceedings relating to civil, administrative, environmental, 

labour and tax claims filed either as a defendant or a plaintiff in the ordinary course of business. These 

claims involve a wide range of issues and in certain instances substantial amounts have been or may 

be claimed. 

Ethical misconduct 

Non-compliance with anti-bribery, anti-corruption and other similar laws could expose us to legal liability 

and negatively affect our reputation and business, financia! position and results of operations. 

We have activities in countries that present corruption risks and may have weak legal institutions, lack 

of control and transparency or a business culture that does not reflect, in all respects, the norms that 

prevail in Western Europe. In addition, governments play a significant role in the oíl and gas sector, 

through ownership of resources, participation, licensing and local content programs, which leads to a 

high level of interaction with public officials. Through our international activities, we are subject to anti

corruption and bribery laws in multiple jurisdictions. While we have anti-corruption policies in place, 

there can be no assurance that such policies will be effective or prevent us from being exposed to 

violations of anti-corruption or bribery laws. 

Our Code of Ethics and Conduct (the "Code'') sets out the fundamental principies, standards and 

conduct that, when complied with, enable us to successfully pursue our mission, accomplish our goals 

and promote our values, by outlining legal and ethical standards that are applicable to our Directors, 

managers and employees, as well as third parties who work for or on our behalf. However, there can 

be no assurance that incidents of ethical misconduct or non-compliance with applicable laws and 

regulations or the Code will not arise, any of which could result in damage to our reputation and 

repeated compliance failures could call into question the integrity of our operations. 
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Compliance risks associated with economic and trade sanctions imposed by the United 

States, the European Union and other jurisdictions. 

The United States, the EU and other countries have in the past imposed international trade and 

economic sanctions on designated countries, companies and individuals. 

The terms of legislation and other rules and regulations that establish sanctions regimes are often broad 

in scope, particularly in the U.S., and given the importance of the U.S. to the international financia! 

markets, the imposition of U.S. sanctions on a country, company or individual can result in companies, 

as in our case, that do not operate directly in the U.S., being effectively required to cease dealings with 

such sanctioned country, company or individual to ensure access to the U.S. ar international capital or 

bank debt markets. 

From the effective date of the lifting of European sanctions and secondary US sanctions on 16 January 

2016 -further the signing of the Joint Comprehensive Plan of Action (JCPOA)-, National Iranian Oil 

Company (NIOC) was removed from the "Specially Designated Nationals and Blocked Persons" List anct 

became listed on the OFAC page as being a non-SDN (Specially Designated National). 

Therefore, CEPSA Group resumed purchasing eructe oil from NIOC as of January 16, 2016 and continued 

such purchases until September 2018. 

Each purchase and shipment of eructe oil has been carried out in strict accorctance with all sanctions 

regulations that are applicable to the CEPSA Group. 

Due to the announcement macte on May 8, 2018 of the US withctrawal from the JCPOA and reínstatement 

of sanctions on Iran, CEPSA Group ceasect purchasing eructe oil from Iran prior to 4 November 2018, 

fully complying with the new US sanctions regime. 

Non-compliance with sanctions, in general, and U.S. sanctions in particular, could constitute an event 

of ctefault under our existing financing facilities and other contractual arrangements with our banks anct, 

particularly, with those firms based or operating in the Unitect States. 

CEPSA has established a third-party Due Diligence process completect with expert interna! anct externa! 

legal advice that guarantees the analysis of counterparties under a risk-based approach. 

4. Information on foreseeable peñormance of the entity

CEPSA is advancing in its transformation process towards a global integrated energy company, whether 

directly or through its subsidiaries. Among the actions planned far coming years, the Company has 

included investments in various business areas as part of a growth path to reach the objectives it has 

set. The strategic priorities, by Business Unit, are as follows: 

• Exploration and Proctuction: expand its portfolio, increasing eructe oil reserves in key regions

such as North Africa, Latín America, anct Abu Dhabi through the ctevelopment of projects anct

exploration opportunities in fields located nearby.

• Refining: improve competitiveness and efficiency assets through continuous optimization

programs and upctates to adapt production to new regulations. Assess opportunities in

renewable energies anct increase participation in the natural gas and electricity markets.
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• Marketing: consolidate CEPSA's presence in the natural markets of its key businesses, boosting

exploitation of synergies with high added value and searching for growth opportunities in

neighboring markets such as Portugal and Morocco;

• Petrochemicals: strengthen the current leadership of Cepsa in key business lines, continue

global expansion, develop the alcohol chain and diversify the downstream phenol chain;

S. Other relevant information

a. Dividend policy

Our Board of Directors propases annual dividend payments with a charge to the income statement of 

the year or unrestricted reserves, subject to approval by our Sale Shareholder at a general meeting. 

Toe dividend that the Board of Directors may recommend or approve with respect to a particular 

financia! year or period will be subject to the factors described below as well as any other factors which 

the Board of Directors considers relevant: 

• cash and debt levels, return on capital, and reserves;

• expected financia! performance;

o investment plans; and

• returns generated via dividends paid by comparable companies worldwide.

In general, dividends are subject to withholding at source in Spain when paid to non-resident 

corporations or to individual non-resident investors. However, there is an Agreement to avoid double 

taxation, signed by the United Arab Emirates and Spain, by virtue of which dividends paid to our sole 

shareholder are not subject to tax withholdings. 

Note 3 to the annual company only financia! statements provides disclosure on the dividends paid during 

2018. 

b. Treasury shares

Cepsa did not hold any treasury shares at December 31, 2018, nor had it carried out any transactions 

with treasury shares during said year. 

c. Events after the balance sheet date

Events subsequent to the balance sheet date are disclosed in Note 22 to the annual company only 

financia! statements. 

d. Research and Development activities

A culture of innovation is one of our defining traits. We use technology and research to generate value, 

be more competitive, optimize processes, and improve the efficiency and quality of our products. 

In the course of 2018 our Technological Research and Development Division worked on various 

innovative projects, the final objective of which is to open up new opportunities for our businesses and 

improve processes already in place at our production centers. 
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Amongst the most significant projects in 2018, the following are the most noteworthy: 

• In 2018, the in-detail engineering and procurements activities of "Bottom of Barrel" project

began at the Gibraltar San Roque refinery, which will allow us to obtain a greater volume of

distillates with higher added value and to increase production flexibility at this facility. In the

same plant, the MX-Sorbex II project was launched, which allowed to increase the

manufacturing of petrochemicals.

• New upgrade projects have also been initiated in different units of the refineries, to increase

their profitability and improve safety.

These projects are mainly carried out at the Cepsa Research Center, which has laboratories, last 

generation equipment, and pilot plants capable of reproducing the processes we carry out at our 

production centers, mainly in the areas of refining and chemicals. This has allowed us to create more 

efficient production processes that respect the environment, as well as develop new fuels and boost 

high value projects. 

e. Non-financia! information

In accordance with Article 262.5 of the Consolidated Text of the Spanish Companies Act, in the wording 

given by Law 11/2018, of December 28, the Company must include in the management report a 

statement of non-financia! information or draw up a separate report with the same content as that 

provided for in the consolidated financia! statements. However, a subsidiary of a group is exempted 

from the obligation to include in the management report such a statement of non-financia! information 

or to prepare a separate report with the same content, if that company and its subsidiaries, if any, are 

themselves included in the consolidated management report of another company that is drawn up in 

accordance with the content set out in that Article. 

Therefore, the Company makes use of the aforementioned waiver, since the statement of non-financia! 

information is contained in the separate report for the same year, issued by Compañía Española de 

Petróleos, S.A.U., which is referred to as the Annual Corporate Responsibility Report, which expressly 

states that such non-financia! information forms part of the consolidated management report of 

Compañía Española de Petróleos, S.A.U. y Sociedades Dependientes, which has been prepared in 

accordance with applicable regulations, and which is subject to the same criteria far authorization for 

issue, approval, filing and disclosure as the consolidated management report. In particular, this separate 

report, as well as the consolidated financia! statements and the consolidated management report of 

Compañía Española de Petróleos, S.A.U. y Sociedades Dependientes will be filed with the Madrid 

Commercial Registry. 

6. Glossary of terms

In order to improve understanding of the terminology employed, below we define the most common 

items: 

Barrel: Measurement unit for crude oil volumes equivalent to 42 US gallons or 158.9 liters; the amounts 
of liquid hydrocarbons in barreis are expressed at 60 º F. 

Pool: Wholesale electricity market. On a daily basis, electricity is purchased and sold in this market 
governed by the operator Orne!. 
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COMPAÑÍA ESPAÑOLA DE PETRÓLEOS, S.A.U. 

Financia! Statements and Management Report for the year ended December 31 2018 

The Financia! Statements (Balance Sheets, Statements of Income, Statements of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow 
Statements and Financia! Statements) and Management Report of Compañía Española de Petróleos, S.A.U. for 
the year ended December 31, 2018, contained in this document, have been drafted and issued by the Board 
of Directors of Compañía Española de Petróleos, S.A.U. (CEPSA) at a meeting held on 28 February 2019 and 
are hereby approved and signed by all the Directors in compliance with Article 253 of the Revised Text of the 
Spanish Companies Act. 

To the best of our knowledge, the Financia! Statements, prepared in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principies, offer a true and fair view of the financia! situation and results of the CEPSA, and the 
Management Report accompanying the Financia! Statements offers a true and fair view of the development 
and performance of the businesses and financia! position of the CEPSA, together with a description of the key 
risks and uncertainties that it faces. 

--

Musabbeh Helal Musabbeh Ali Alkaabi 
Chairman 

Alyazia Ali Saleh Ahmed Alkuwaiti 
Director 

SaeedM� 
Director 
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Bakheet Saeed Bakheet Salem Alkatheeri 
Director 

José Aurelio Téllez Menchén 
Deputy Corporate Secretary (Non-Director) 

Compañía Española de Petróleos, S.A.U 

Madrid, 28 February 2019 

Vice Chairman and Managing Director 

Ángel Corcóstegui Gura a 
Director 

Ignacio Pinilla Rodríguez 
Corporate Secretary (Non-Director) 
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COMPAÑÍA ESPAÑOLA DE PETRÓLEOS, S.A.U. 
Financia! Statements and Management Report for the year ended December 31 2018 

I hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the Financia! Statements (balance sheet, 
income statement, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement of and notes to the financia! 
statements) of Compañía Española de Petróleos, S.A.U. (CEPSA) for 2018 and drafted and approved by the 
Board of Directors of Compañía Española de Petróleos, S.A.U. at its meeting held on February 28, 2019, 
were prepared in accordance with generally applicable accounting standards and present a true and fair 
view of the assets and liabilities, financia! position and results of CEPSA. 

Madrid, February 28, 2019 

D. Álvaro Badiola Guerra
Chief Finalcial Officer
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